Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Dated: August 1, 2025

100% Book Built Issue

Please read Section 26 and 32 of the Companies Act, 2013

(This Draft Red Herring Prospectus will be updated upon filing with ROC)

NEOCHEM

Enabling Growth

NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(Please scan this QR code to view this Draft Red Herring Prospectus)

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND NEOCHEM TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED )
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: U24304GJ2017PLC097754

REGISTERED AND CORPORATE OFFICE CONTACT PERSON TELEPHONE AND EMAIL WEBSITE

303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Shradha Sarthak Agarwal Tel No: +91 079 35217792 www.neochem.in
Off. Iscon- Ambli Road, Ahmedabad - 380058, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer/ | Email Id: compliance@neochem.in
Daskroi, Gujarat, India Pradip Ramniklal Solanki
Chief Financial Officer

PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY: SWAPNIL RAMESHBHAI MAKATI AND HEMANGINI SWAPNIL DATHIA
DETAILS OF THE ISSUE
TYPE  FRESHISSUESIZE OFFERFORSALE  TOTALISSUE SIZE ELIGIBILITY
 IN LAKHS) SIZE

ZIN LAKHS
Fresh Issue | Up to 47,50,000 Equity Up t0 47,50,000 Equity Shares | The Issue is being made pursuant to Regulation 229(2) of
Shares of face value of of face value of 3 10/- each | Chapter IX of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
%10/~ each aggregating to aggregating to X [e] lakhs. | of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as
3 [o] lakhs. amended (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”). As the Company's post
issue paid up capital is more than T1,000.00 Lakhs and up to
%2.500.00 Lakhs.

DETAILS OF ISSUE FOR SALE, SELLING SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION - NOT APPLICABLE AS THE
ENTIRE ISSUE CONSTITUTES FRESH ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES

RISK IN RELATION TO THE FIRST ISSUE

This being the first Public Issue of our Company, there has been no formal market for the Equity Shares of our Company. The face value of the Equity Shares is 310/
each. The Floor Price, the Cap Price and the Issue Price (determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager on the basis of the assessment
of market demand for our Equity Shares by way of the Book Building Process as stated under chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” onpage 114 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus), should not be taken to be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after the Equity Shares are listed. No assurance can be given regarding an active

or sustained trading in the Equity Shares or regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.
GENERALRISK

[nvestment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk
of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision,
investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the Issue including the risks involved. The securities have not been recommended or approved by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Specific attention of investors
is invited to the section titled ‘Risk factors’on page 31 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

ISSUER’SABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains all information with regard
to our Company and the Issue, which is material in the context of the Issue, that the information contained in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is true and correct in all
material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the
omission of which makes this Draft Red Herring Prospectus as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions, misleading in
any material respect.

The Equity Shares issued through the Red Heering Prospectus are proposed to be listed on the Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE
Emerge”) in terms of the Chapter [X of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as amended from time to time. For this Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange will be National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE

NAME AND LOGO CONTACT PERSON EMAILAND TELEPHONE
Kruti Saraiya/Jay Dodiya E-mail; investors@vivro.net
" I RO Telephone: : +91-79-4040 4242

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

NAME AND LOGO CONTACT PERSON EMAILAND TELEPHONE
(.) MUFG e Shanti Gopalkrishnan E-mail: neochem.smeipo@in.mpms.mufg.com

Telephone: +91 810 811 4949
MUFG Intime India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited)

BID/ISSUE PERIOD
ANCHOR BID/ISSUE PERIOD: |e]* BID/ISSUE OPENS ON: [o] BID/ISSUE CLOSES ON*: [o]**

*Our Company may, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, consider participation by Anchor Investors in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The
Anchor Investor Bid/Issue Period will open one Working Day prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date.

**Our Company may, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, consider closing the Bid/Issue Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulation.

*UPI mandate end time and date shall be at 5:00 p.m. on Bid/Issue Closing Day



Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Dated: August 1, 2025

100% Book Built Issue

Please read Section 26 and 32 of the Companies Act, 2013

(This Draft Red Herring Prospectus will be updated upon filing with ROC)

NEOCHEM

Enabling Growth

NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AND NEOCHEM TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED )
CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: U24304GJ2017PLC097754

Our Company was originally formed as a partnership firm under the Indian Partnership Act, 1932 (“Partnership Act”) in the name and style of “M/s Vinayak Dyes & Chemical Industries”, pursuant to Deed of Partnership dated March 6, 1978 .Vinayak Dyes & Chemical
Industries was changed to “Neochem Technologies” with effect from January 6, 2006 and further the firm was converted from Partnership Firm to Private Limited company under Part I chapter XXI of the Companies Act, 2013 and received a Certificate of Incorporation
from Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad at Gujarat (“RoC”) on June 6, 2017 as “Neochem Technologies Private Limited”. Furthermore, the name of our Company was changed from Neochem Technologies Private Limited to Neochem Bio Solutions Private Limited and
Certificate of Name change dated March 18, 2025 was received by the Company. Subsequemly our Company was converted into a public limited company pursuant to a special resolution passed by our sharehold lution dated March 26, 2025, and the name of our
Company was changed to “Neochem Bio Solutions Limited”. A fresh certificate of Incory upon c ion from a Private Limited company to Public Limited company datcd April 15, 2025 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Central Processing
Centre. For details of the change in the registered office of our Company, see “History and Certain Corparale Matters” on page 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Registered Office: 303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Off. Iscon - Ambli Road, Ambh Ahmedabad - 380058, Daskroi, Gujarat, India
Website: www.neochem.in ; E-Mail: li hem.in ; hone No: +91 -079- 35217792
Company Secretary and Compllance Officer: Shradha Sarthak Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer: Pradip Ramniklal Solanki

APNIL RAMESHBHAI MAKATI AND HEMANGINI §!
THE ISSUE
INITIAL PUBLIC ISSUE OF UPTO 47,50,000 EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF %10/- EACH OF NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED &
NEOCHEM TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED), (“NEOCHEM” OR THE “COMPANY” OR THE “ISSUER”) FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF ¥[o]/- PER EQUITY SHARE INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF 3[o]/- PER
EQUITY SHARE (THE “ISSUE PRICE”) AGGREGATING TO %[e] LAKHS (“THE ISSUE”), OF WHICH [o] EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF Z10/- EACH FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF Z[o]/- PER EQUITY SHARE
INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF Z[e]/- PER EQUITY SHARE AGGREGATING TO Z[e] LAKHS WILL BE RESERVED FOR SUBSCRIPTION BY MARKET MAKER TO THE ISSUE (THE “MARKET MAKER
RESERVATION PORTION”). THE ISSUE LESS THE MARKET MAKER RESERVATION PORTION LE. NET ISSUE OF [¢] EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF %10/- EACH AT A PRICE OF% [o]/- PER EQUITY SHARE
INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF Z[o]/- PER EQUITY SHARE AGGREGATING TO Z[o] LAKHS IS HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “NET ISSUE”. THE ISSUE AND THE NET ISSUE WILL CONSTITUTE [o]
% AND [o] %, RESPECTIVELY, OF THE POST ISSUE PAID UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF OUR COMPANY.
THE PRICE BAND AND THE MINIMUM BID LOT WILL BE DECIDED BY OUR COMPANY IN CONSULTATION WITH THE BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER ADVERTISED IN ALL EDITION OF [e] (A WIDELY
CIRCULATED ENGLISH NATIONAL DAILY NEWSPAPER) AND ALL EDITION OF [o] (A WIDELY CIRCULATED HINDI NATIONAL DAILY NEWSPAPER) AND GUJARATI EDITION OF [o] (A WIDELY CIRCULATED
GUJARATI DAILY NEWSPAPER, GUJARATI BEING THE REGIONAL LANGUAGE OF GUJARAT, WHERE OUR REGISTERED OFFICE IS LOCATED). AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE
OPENING DATE AND SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE TO NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (“NSE”) FOR THE PURPOSE OF UPLOADING ON THEIR WEBSITE. FOR FURTHER DETAILS, KINDLY
REFER TO CHAPTER TITLED “TERMS OF THE ISSUE” ON PAGE 305 OF THIS DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS.
In case of any revision in the Price Band, the Bid/Issue Period shall be extended for at least 3 (three) additional Working Days after such revision of the Price Band, subject to the total Bid/ Issue Period not exceeding 10 (ten) Working Days. In cases
of force majeure, banking strike or similar circumstances, our Company may, in consultation with the BRLM, for reasons to be recorded in writing, extend the Bid/ Issue Period for a minimum of 1 (one) Working Day, subject to the Bid/Issue Period
not exceeding 10 (ten) Working Days. Any revision in the Price Band, and the revised Bid/ Issue Period, if applicable, shall be widely disseminated by notification to the Stock Exchange, by issuing a press release and also by indicating the change
on the website of the BRLM and at the terminals of the Members of the Syndicate and by intimation to Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor Bank.

THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES IS 210/- EACH AND THE ISSUE PRICE IS [] TIMES OF THE FACE VALUE
This Issue is being made through the Book Building Process, in terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended (“SCRR”) read with Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended, wherein
not more than 50% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”, the “QIB Portion”), provided that our Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, allocate
up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (“Anchor Investor Portion”), of which one-third shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription, or non-allocation in the Anchor Investor Portion, the balance Equity Shares shall be added to the Net QIB Portion. Further,
5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis only to Mutual Funds, and the remainder of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIBs, including Mutual Funds, subject
to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. However, if the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% of the Net QIB Portion, the balance Equity Shares available for allocation in the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to
the remaining Net QIB Portion for proportionate allocation to QIBs. Further, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Bidders wherein (a) one third of the portion available to
Non-Institutional Investors shall be reserved for Applicants with Application size of more than two lots and up to such lots equivalent to not more than 10 lakhs;(b) two third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Investors shall be reserved for
Applicants with Application size of more than 10 lakhs; and (c) any unsubscribed portion in either of the sub-categories specified in clauses (a) or (b), may be allocated to Applicants in the other sub-category of Non-Institutional Investors; and not
less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to Individual Bidders in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. All potential Bidders (except Anchor Investors) are
required to mandatorily utilize the Application Supported by Blocked Amount (“ASBA”) process providing details of their respective ASBA accounts, and UPL ID in case of RIBs using the UPI Mechanism, if applicable, in which the corresponding
Bid Amounts will be blocked by the SCSBs or by the Sponsor Bank under the UPT Mechanism, as the case may be, to the extent of respective Bid Amounts. Anchor Investors are not permitted to participate in the Issue through the ASBA process.
For details, see “Issue Procedure” on page 320 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

(Please scan this QR code to view this Draft Red Herring Prospectus)

NIL DATHIA

ELIGIBLE INVESTORS
All potential investors shall participate in the Issue through ASBA process including through UPI mode (as applicable) by providing details about the bank account which will be blocked by the Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (“SCSBs”) for the

same. For details in this regard, please refer to chapter titled “Issue Procedure” on page 320 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
RISK IN RELATION TO THE FIRST ISSUE
This being the first Public Issue of our Company, there has been no formal market for the Equity Shares of our Company. The face value of the Equity Shares is T10 each. The Floor Price, the Cap Price and the Issue Price (determined by our
Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager on the basis of the assessment of market demand for our Equity Shares by way of the Book Building Process as stated under chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” on page 114 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus), should not be taken to be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after the Equity Shares are listed. No assurance can be given regarding an active or sustained trading in the Equity Shares or regarding the
rice at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.

Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully
before taking an investment decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the Issue including the risks involved. The securities have not been recommended or approved
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Specific attention of investors is invited to the section titled “Risk factors” on page 31 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

ISSUER’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY
Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains all information with regard to our Company and the Issue, which is material in the context of the Issue, that
the information contained in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other

facts, the omission of which makes this Draft Red Herrini Prosiecrus as a whole or ani of such information or the exEression of ani such oiinions or intentions. misleadini in ani material resiect

The Equity Shares issued through the Red Herring Prospectus are proposed to be listed on the Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited in terms of the Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as amended from time to time.
Our Company has received ‘in-principle” approval from NSE Emerge for the listing of Equity Shares pursuant to the letter dated [e]. For this Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange will be NSE. A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus
shall be filed with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat in accordance under Section 26(4) and Section 32 of the Companies Act. For details of the material contracts and documents available for inspection from the date of the Red Herring Prospectus

up to the Bid/Offer Closing Date, see “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection” on page 404 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE
‘ ; I ‘/ RO MUFG Intime

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited MUFG Intime India Private Limited
Vivro House, 11 Shashi Colony, Opp Suvidha Shopping Center, (Formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
Paldi, Ahmedabad - 380007 Gujarat, India. C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400083, (Maharashtra), India.
Telephone: +91-79-4040 4242 Telephone: +91 810 811 4949
E-mail Id: investors@vivro.net Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com
Investor Grievance Id: investors@vivro.net Email ID: neochem.smeipo@in.mpms.mufg.com
Website: www.vivro.net Investor Grievance neochem.smeipo@in.mpms.mufg.com
Contact Person: Kruti Saraiya/Jay Dodiya Contact Person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan
SEBI Registration No.: INM000010122 SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058
CIN: U67120GJ1996PTC029182 CIN: U67190MH1999PTC118368

BID/ISSUE PERIOD
ANCHOR BID/ISSUE PERIOD: [e]* BID/ISSUE OPENS ON: [¢] BID/ISSUE CLOSES ON*: [o]**

*Our Company may, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, consider participation by Anchor Investors in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor Investor Bid/Issue Period will open one Working Day
prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date.

**¥Qur Company may, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, consider closing the Bid/Issue Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulation.

*UPI mandate end time and date shall be at 5:00 p.m. on Bid/Issue Closing Day



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I- GENERAL.......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt ettt et 1
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS .....ooiiiiiiiititit ettt 1
CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND MARKET DATA AND
CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION ......cotiiiiiiiiiitiittit ettt ettt sttt 18
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ..ottt ettt sttt 21
SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE DOCUMENTS .......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiietene ettt 23
SECTION II - RISK FACTORS.......oooiiiiii e e 31
SECTION HI — INTRODUCGTION .......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e 68
THE ISSUE. ...t ettt 68
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION.......cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit e 70
GENERAL INFORMATION........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et e 74
CAPITAL STRUCTURE . .......ooiiiiiiiiii et e 87
SECTION IV - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE ..........cccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiictccceeeee e 103
OBJECT OF THE ISSUE ... ..ot et ettt e 103
BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE ........oooiiiiiii et et 114
STATEMENT FOR POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS ... 123
SECTION V — ABOUT THE ISSUER COMPANY ... 126
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW ...t 126
OUR BUSINESS . ...ttt ettt ettt 166
KEY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES .......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiece e e 188
HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS.........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeceee e 200
OUR MANAGEMENT ...ttt ettt 205
OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccece e 221
OUR GROUP COMPANIES ...ttt e 224
DIVIDEND POLICY ..o ettt ettt et s 226
SECTION VI — FINANCIAL INFORMATION ... 227
RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION ......c.oiiiiiiiiii e 227
OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION ... 264
CAPITALISATION STATEMENT ...ttt 265
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt 266
FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS ..ottt st 277
SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION.........ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiieicceneecse e 280
OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS .........cccooiiiiiiiiiiininieeeiee 280
GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS ..o 285
OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES ..o 293
SECTION VIII - ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION ... 305
TERMS OF THE ISSUE ...t 305
ISSUE STRUCGTURE ...t ettt 315
ISSUE PROCEDURE .......oooiiiiiiiiii ettt 320
RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES............ccocveiiiiiiniiiiieieice 360
SECTION IX - DESCRIPTION OF EQUITY SHARES RELATED TERMS OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCTATION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e a ettt et s b ettt e e e 362
SECTION X - OTHER INFORMATION. .......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 404
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION .......cccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiciceceeeeeeee 404



SECTION I- GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise
indicates or implies, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislation, act, regulation,
rule, guideline, policy, circular, notification or clarification shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rule,
guideline, policy, circular, notification or clarification as amended and any reference to a statutory provision
shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that provision. Further, the Issue related
terms used but not defined in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms
under the General Information Document. In case of any inconsistency between the definitions given below and
the definitions contained in the General Information Document (as defined below),; the definitions given below
shall prevail.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references to “the Company “or “our Company “or “Issuer”, are
references to Neochem Bio Solutions Limited (formerly known as Neochem Bio Solutions Private Limited and
Neochem Technologies Private Limited), a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, and having
its registered Office at 303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Off. Iscon-Ambli Road, Ahmedabad, Ambli,
Ahmedabad 380058, Daskroi, Gujarat, India. Furthermore, unless the context otherwise indicates, all references

EXIYS

to the terms, “we”, “us” and “our” are to our Company.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus but not defined herein, shall have, to the
extent applicable, the meanings ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
the SCRA, the Depositories Act, or the respective rules and regulations made thereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in the sections, “Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits”,

»

“Industry Overview”, “Key Regulations and Policies”, “Restated Financial Information”, “Other Financial
Information”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Description of Equity Shares Related
Terms of The Articles of Association”, on pages 123, 126,188, 227, 264, 280 and 362, respectively, shall have the

meaning ascribed to such terms in such sections.
General Terms

Term Description
“Neochem Bio Solutions Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, Neochem Bio Solutions
Limited” or “NBSL” or Limited, refers to, a Public Limited Company incorporated as a Private Limited
“The Company” or “Our company under the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at 303, W1,
Company” or “The Issuer” Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Off. Iscon-Ambli Road, Ahmedabad, Ambli,
Ahmedabad 380058, Daskroi, Gujarat, India.
“we”, “us” and “our” Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company.

13 ERINTA

you”, “your”, or “yours”  Prospective investors in this Issue

Company and Promoters related terms

Term Description

“AoA” or “Articles of The articles of association of our Company, as amended

Association or Articles”

“Audit Committee” The audit committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with the Section 177

of the Companies Act, 2013, and as described in “Our Management — Corporate
Governance” on page 213 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
“Auditors” or The statutory auditors of our Company, currently being M/s Patel Mehta and
“Statutory Auditors” or ~ Associates, Chartered Accountants. having firm registration number 107773W
“Peer Review Auditor”
“Bankers to the Axis Bank Limited
Company”



Term
“Board/ Board of
Directors”

“Central Registration
Centre (CRC)”

“Chairman” or
“Chairperson”

“Chief Financial
Officer” or “CFO”

“CIN”

“Companies Act, 2013”
“Company  Secretary
and Compliance
Officer”
“CSR
Corporate
Responsibility
Committee”
“DIN”
“Director(s)”

Committee/
Social

“Equity Shares”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Group Company(s)”

“Independent Directors”

“IPO Committee”

ISIN

“KMP” or “Key
Managerial Personnel”

“Lenders to the
Company

“Legal Advisors to the
Issue”

“Materiality Policy”

“Managing Director” or
$‘MD9’

Description
The Board of directors of our Company. For further details of our Directors, please
refer to section titled “Our Management” beginning on page 205 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.
It’s an initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in Government Process
Re-engineering (GPR) with the specific objective of providing speedy incorporation
related services in line with the best global practices. For more details, please refer
http://www.mca.gov.in/MinistryV2/central+registration+centre+content+page.html
The chairman/ Chairperson of the Board of directors of our Company, being Dinesh
Chopra.
Chief Financial Officer of our Company, Pradip Ramniklal Solanki. For further
details see, “Our Management — Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel” on page 217 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Corporate Identification Number of our Company i.e., U24304GJ2017PLC097754.
The Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereto.
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company, Shradha Sarthak
Agrawal. For further details see, “Our Management — Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management Personnel” on page 217 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Corporate social responsibility committee of our Board, constituted in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and as described in “Our
Management — Corporate Governance” on page 213 this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.
Directors Identification Number.
The Director(s) of our Company, unless otherwise specified. For further details see,
“Our Management” on page 205 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Equity Shares of the Company of face value of *10/- each unless otherwise specified
in the context thereof.
Executive Directors shall include Whole-time Directors(s) and Managing Director
on our Board, as described in “Our Management”, on page 205 this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.
Companies with which there were related party transactions as disclosed in the
Restated Consolidated Financial Statements as covered under the applicable
accounting standards, and also other companies as considered material by our Board
of the issuer as disclosed in “Information with Respect to Group Companies” on
page 224 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Independent directors on our Board, and who are eligible to be appointed as
independent directors under the provisions of the Companies Act and the SEBI
Listing Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, please see “Our
Management” on page 205 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
The IPO committee of our Board
International Securities Identification Number. In this case being INE21UMO01018.
Key managerial personnel of our Company in accordance with Regulation 2(1) (bb)
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 as
applicable and as further disclosed in “Our Management” on page 205 this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.
Axis Finance Limited and Axis Bank Limited

The Legal Advisors being, Rajani Associates, Advocates and Solicitors.

The policy adopted by our Board in its meeting held on July 3, 2025, for
identification of material: (a) outstanding litigation proceedings; (b) creditors; and
(c) group companies, pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and for the purposes of disclosure in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red
Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus

The Managing Director of our Company being Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati.


http://www.mca.gov.in/MinistryV2/central+registration+centre+content+page.html

Term

“MoA” or
“Memorandum of
Association”
“Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee”

“Non-Executive
Director”

“NRIs/ Non-Resident
Indians”

“Peer review Auditor”

“Person or Persons”

“Promoters”

“Promoter Group”

“Registered Office”

“Restated Financial
Statements/ Restated
Financial Information/
Restated Consolidated
Financial  Statements/
Restated Consolidated
Financial Information”

“RoC” or “Registrar of
Companies”
“Stakeholders
Relationship
Committee”

“Stock Exchange”

“Subscriber to MOA/
Initial Promoter”

Whole-time Director

Description
The Memorandum of Association of Neochem Bio Solutions Limited as amended
from time to time.

Nomination and remuneration committee of our Board, constituted in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and as described in “Our Management — Corporate Governance” on
page 213 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

A Director not being an Executive Director or an Independent Director.

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes non-resident
Indians, FVClIs and FPIs.

The Peer Review Auditors of Neochem Bio Solutions Limited being M/s Patel
Mehta and Associates, Chartered Accountants.

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated
organization, body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture, or trust or any other entity or organization validly
constituted and/or incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as
the context requires.

The Promoters of our Company, being Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati and Hemangini
Swapnil Dathia. For further details, please see “Our Promoters and Promoter
Group” on page 221 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Such individuals and entities which constituting the promoter group of our
Company, pursuant to Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and as
disclosed in “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” on page 221 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

The registered office of our Company, located at 303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar
Colony, Off. Iscon- Ambli Road, Ahmedabad, Ambli, Ahmedabad 380058, Daskroi,
Gujarat, India.

The restated consolidated financial statement of our Company, which comprise of
the restated consolidated summary statement of assets and liabilities for the financial
years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the restated
consolidated statements of profit and loss, the restated consolidated statement of
cash flows for the financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March
31, 2023, read together with summary statement of significant accounting policies,
annexures and notes thereto prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“IGAAP”) and restated by Company in accordance with the
requirements of Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013,
SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company
Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, each as amended.

The Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at Ahmedabad.

Stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and as described in “Our Management — Corporate Governance” on
page 213 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited.

Initial Subscriber to MOA and AOA being Ramesh Chimanlal Dathia, Swapnil
Rameshbhai Makati, Meena Rameshbhai Dathia, Hemangini Swapnil Dathia,
Purnima Girishbhai Dathia, Keyur K Shah and Paresh P Yadav.

The whole-time director(s) of our Company, being Hemangini Swapnil Dathia. For
further details refer “Our Management — Board of Directors” on page 205 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.



Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations

Term

“T”/ “Rs.”/ “Rupees”/ “INR”
“AAGR”

“AGM”

“AlIF(s)”

“AlIF Regulations”

CEAS?’

“ASEAN”

“Banking Regulation Act”
‘GBD”

‘GBSE”

“BTI Regulations”

‘GCAGR”
“Category I AIF”

“Category 11 AIF”
“Category I FPIs”
“Category II FPIs”
“Category III AIF”
“CDSL”

“Civil Procedure Code”
“CIN”

“CLRA”

“CLSS”

“Companies Act, 1956”

“Companies Act”

“Competition Act”
“Competition ~ Amendment
Act”

“Consolidated FDI Policy”

“Consumer Protection Act”
“«Cp”

“CRE”

“CREDAI”

“CRM”

“CrPC”

“CSR”

“CST”

“D2C”

“Depositories Act”

Description

Indian Rupees.

Average Annual Growth Rate.

Annual general meeting of Shareholders under the Companies Act
Alternative Investment Funds as defined in and registered with SEBI under
the SEBI AIF Regulations.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012.

Accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, as notified from time to time.

Association of Southeast Asian Nations.

The Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Business Development.

BSE Limited.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue)
Regulations, 1994.

Compounded Annual Growth Rate.

AlFs registered as “Category I alternative investment funds” under the SEBI
AIF Regulations.

AlFs registered as “Category II alternative investment funds” under the SEBI
AIF Regulations.

FPIs registered as “Category I foreign portfolio investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations.

FPIs who are registered as “Category II Foreign Portfolio Investors” under the
SEBI FPI Regulations

AlFs registered as “Category III alternative investment funds” under the SEBI
AIF Regulations.

Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908

Corporate Identification Number.

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970.

Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme.

The erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 read with the rules, regulations,
clarifications and modifications thereunder.

Companies Act, 2013 read with rules, regulations, clarifications and
modifications thereunder.

The Competition Act, 2002.

The Competition (Amendment) Act, 2023

The Consolidated FDI Policy, effective from October 15, 2020, issued by the
DPIIT, and any modifications thereto or substitutions thereof, issued from
time to time.

The Consumer Protection Act, 2019.

Channel partner.

Commercial Real Estate.

Confederation of Real Estate Developers’ Associations of India.

Customer Relationship Management.

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

Corporate social responsibility.

Central sales tax.

Direct to customer.

Depositories Act, 1996, read with the rules, regulations, clarifications and
modifications thereunder.



Term
“Depository”

“DESA”
“DGFT”
“DIN”
“DP”/
Participant
“DPIT”

“Depository

L3

“EBITDA”
“EPS”
“ESG”

3 GEU’ b
“FABIRC”

“FCNR”
“FDI?’
“FDI Policy”

“FDI Circular”
“FEMA’)

“FEMA Rules”

“Financial Year”/ “Fiscal”/
“Fiscal Year”

“FPIs”

“FTA”
“FVCI”

“GCCs”
“GDP”
“GNI”
“Gol”/
Government”
“GST”
“GVA”
“HFA”
“HFC”

“HR”
“HUF(s)”
“ICAI”
“ICAI Guidance Note”

“Central

Description

A depository registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996.
Department of Economic and Social Affairs.

Director General of Foreign Trade, Ministry of Commerce.

Director Identification Number.

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of
Commerce and Industry (formerly Department of Industrial Policy and
Promotion), Government of India.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization.

Earnings per share.

Extraordinary general meeting of Shareholders under the Companies Act
European Union.

F- Find the right market,

A- Attract the right customer.

B- Build the right pipeline.

I- Interact with the right channel partner.

R- Reward the right channel partner.

C- Convert the right customer.

Foreign Currency Non-Resident.

Foreign Direct Investment.

Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment Policy notified by the Department for
Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT) by way of circular bearing
number DPIIT file number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020
effective from October 15, 2020

The Consolidated FDI Policy Circular dated October 15, 2020 issued by the
DPIT (formerly Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion).

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations
thereunder.

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019.

The period of 12 months commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding
calendar year and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year.
Foreign portfolio investor registered with SEBI pursuant to the SEBI FPI
Regulations.

Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 and the rules framed
thereunder FVCIL.

Foreign venture capital investors registered with SEBI pursuant to the SEBI
FVCI Regulations.

Global Capability Centers.

Gross Domestic Product.

Gross National Income.

The Government of India.

The Goods and Services Tax.

Gross Value Added.

Housing for All.

Housing Finance Company.

Human resource.

Hindu undivided family(ies).

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as updated from time to
time.



Term
“IFRS”

“IGAAP”
“Income Tax Act”
“Ind AS”

“Ind AS Rules”
“Indian GAAP”

‘ EI ST’ b

“IT Act”

3 GJLL?’

3 GKPI?’

3 GKYC’ 9

“Listing Agreement”

“Listing Regulations”

“LTM”
“MCA”/
Corporate”
“MEIS”
“MHI”
“MIS”
“Mn” or “mn”

“MSME”

“N.A”. or “NA”
“NACH”

“NBFC”

“NBFC-SI"/ “Systemically
Important NBFCs”
“NCLT”

“NCR”

“NFHS”

“NHB”

“NITI”

“NRE’

“NRI”

“NRO”

“NSDL”

“Ministry

of

“OCB”/ “Overseas Corporate

Body”

“P/E Ratio”
“PAN”
“Patents Act”
“PLFS”
“PLI”

Description

International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board.

Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Income-tax Act, 1961.

The Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act.

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act and read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016.

Indian Standard Time.

Information Technology Act, 2000.

Jones Lang LaSalle.

Key Performance Indicator.

Know Your Customer.

The equity listing agreement to be entered into by our Company with the Stock
Exchange

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Last Twelve Months.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

Merchant Export from India Scheme.

The Ministry of Heavy Industries, Government of India.

Management Information System.

Million

Micro, Small or a Medium Enterprise.

Not applicable

National Automated Clearing House.

Non-Banking Financial Company.

A systemically important non-banking financial company as defined under
Regulation 2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

National Company Law Tribunal.

National Capital Region.

National Family Health Survey.

National Housing Bank.

National Institution for Transforming India

Non-Resident External.

Non-Resident Indian

Non-Resident Ordinary.

National Securities Depository Limited.

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in
which not less than 60% beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs
directly or indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003, and
immediately before such date had taken benefits under the general permission
granted to OCBs under FEMA. OCBs are not allowed to invest in the Issue.
Price/Earnings Ratio.

Permanent account number.

Patents Act, 1970.

Periodic Labour Force Survey.

Production Linked Incentive.



Term
“PMAY”
“pR”

“RBI”
“Regulation S”
“RERA”
“ROCE”
“RoDTEP”
“ROE”
“RTGS”
“Rule 144A”
“SCRA”
“SCRR”
“SCORES”
“SEBI”

“SEBI Act”
“SEBI AIF Regulations”

“SEBI FPI Regulations”
“SEBI FVCI Regulations”
“SEBI

Circular”
“SEBI ICDR Regulations”

ICDR Master

“SEBI Listing Regulations”
“SEBI Merchant

Regulations”
“SEBI RTA Master Circular”

Bankers

“SEBI Takeover
Regulations”
“SEBI  Insider
Regulations”

Trading

“SEBI LODR Regulations”
“SEBI VCF Regulations”

“STT”

“SWOT”

“TAN”

“Trademarks Act”
“UN”

“UNFPA”

“U.S. GAAP”

“U.S. QIBs”

“U.S. Securities Act”
“US$/USD/US Dollar”
“USA/U.S./US”
“VAT”

“VCF”

Description

Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana.

Public Relations.

Reserve Bank of India.

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act.

Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act.

Return on Capital Employed.

Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products.

Return on Equity.

Real Time Gross Settlement.

Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act.

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956.

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

SEBI Complaints Redress System.

Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under section 3 of the
SEBI Act.

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012, as amended.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)
Regulations, 2019, as amended

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor)
Regulations, 2000, as amended.

SEBI  master circular  bearing  number
1/P/CIR/2024/0154 dated November 11, 2024.
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations,
1992, as amended

SEBI  master circular bearing
1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024.
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued
by SEBI from time to time.

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds)
Regulations, 1996, as amended.

Securities Transaction Tax.

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats.

Tax deduction account number.

Trademarks Act, 1999.

United Nations

United Nations Population Fund.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America.
Persons that are “qualified institutional buyers”, as defined in Rule 144A.
U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

United States Dollar.

United States of America.

Value added tax.

Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-

number SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-



Term

Issue Related Definitions

Term

“Abridged
Prospectus”
“Acknowledgement
Slip”

“Allot”/ “Allotment” /
“Allotted”

“Allotment Advice”

“Allottee(s)”
“Anchor Investor(s)”

“Anchor Investor
Allocation Price”

“Anchor Investor
Application Form”

“Anchor Investor Bid”
or “Issue Period” or

“Anchor Investor
Bidding Date”
“Anchor Investor

Issue Price”

“Anchor Investor Pay-
in Date”

“Anchor
Portion”

Investor

“ASBA”/
“Application
Supported by Blocked
Amount”

“ASBA Account”

Description
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations,
1996 (now repealed) or the SEBI AIF Regulations, as the case may be.

Description

Abridged prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient features of a
prospectus as may be specified by the SEBI in this behalf.

The slip or document issued by the relevant Designated Intermediary(ies) to the
Bidder as proof of registration of the Bid cum Application Form.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to
the Fresh Issue.

The note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Bidder who has
been or is to be Allotted the Equity Shares after approval of the Basis of Allotment
by the Designated Stock Exchange.

A successful Bidder to whom the Equity Shares are Allotted.

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in
accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations and this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, and
who has Bid for an amount of at least ¥ 200 lakhs.

The price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to Anchor Investors according to
the terms of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and the
Prospectus, which will be decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM.
The form is used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor Portion,
and which will be considered as an application for Allotment in terms of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.

The date, one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Opening Date, on which Bids by
Anchor Investors shall be submitted, prior to and after which BRLM will not accept
any Bids from Anchor Investors, and allocation to Anchor Investors shall be
completed.

The final price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to Anchor Investors in
terms of, the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, which price will be equal
to or higher than the Issue Price but not higher than the Cap Price.

The Anchor Investor Issue Price will be decided by our Company, in consultation
with the BRLM.

With respect to Anchor Investor(s), it shall be the Anchor Investor Bidding Date, and
in the event the Anchor Investor Allocation Price is lower than the Issue Price, not
later than two Working Days after the Bid/Issue Closing Date.

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion which may be allocated by our Company, in
consultation with the BRLM, to Anchor Investors and the basis of such allocation
will be on a discretionary basis by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One-third of the Anchor Investor
Portion shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation
Price.

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, to make a
Bid and authorize an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the relevant ASBA Account
and will include applications made by UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism where
the Bid Amount will be blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by the
UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism.

A bank account maintained with an SCSB by an ASBA Bidder, as specified in the
ASBA Form submitted by ASBA Bidders for blocking the Bid Amount mentioned in
the relevant ASBA Form and includes the account of a UPI Bidder which is blocked
upon acceptance of a UPI Mandate Request made by the UPI Bidder using the UPI
Mechanism.



Term

“ASBA Bid”
“ASBA Bidders”
“ASBA Form”

“Banker(s) to the
Issue”
“Basis of Allotment”

“Bid(S)”

“Bid Amount”

“Bid cum Application
Form”
“Bid Lot”

“Bid”/ “Issue Closing
Date”

“Bid”/ “Issue Opening
Date”

“Bid”/ “Issue Period’

Description

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder.

All Bidders except Anchor Investors.

An application form, whether physical or electronic, is used by ASBA Bidders to
submit Bids, which will be considered as the application for Allotment in terms of
the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.
Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank(s), the Refund Bank(s), the Public Issue
Account Bank(s) and the Sponsor Bank(s), as the case may be.

Basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders under the
Issue, is described in “Issue Procedure” on page 320 this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

An indication by an ASBA Bidder to make an Issue during the Bid/Issue Period
pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or on the Anchor Investor Bidding Date
by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to the submission of the Anchor Investor Application
Form, to subscribe to or purchase Equity Shares at a price within the Price Band,
including all revisions and modifications thereto, to the extent permissible under the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, in terms of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid
cum Application Form. The term ‘Bidding’ shall be construed accordingly.

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form, and
payable by the Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account of the ASBA Bidder, as the
case may be, upon submission of the Bid in the Issue, as applicable. In the case of
Individual Investors who apply for minimum application size Bidding at the Cut off
Price, the Cap Price is multiplied by the number of Equity Shares Bid for by such
individual investors who apply for minimum application size and mentioned in the
Bid cum Application Form.

The Anchor Investor Application Form or the ASBA Form, as the context requires.

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/- each and in multiples of [®] Equity Shares
of face value of *10/- each thereafter.

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after
which the Designated Intermediaries will not accept any Bids, which shall be notified
in all editions of [®] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper), all
editions of [e] (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and all editions
of [®] (a widely circulated Gujarati daily newspaper, Gujarati being the regional
language of Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is located), and in case of any
revision, the extended Bid/Issue Closing Date shall also be widely disseminated by
notification to the Stock Exchange by issuing a public notice and also by indicating
the change on the respective websites of the BRLM and at the terminals of the
Members of the Syndicate and by intimation to the Designated Intermediaries and
the Sponsor Bank(s), as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Our Company, in consultation with BRLM, may consider closing the Bid/Issue
Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date on which
the Designated Intermediaries shall start accepting Bids, which shall be notified in
all editions of [e] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and all
editions of [®] (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and all editions
of [e] (a widely circulated Gujarati daily newspaper, Gujarati being the regional
language of Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is located), and in case of any
revision, the extended Bid/Issue Opening Date also be widely disseminated by
notification to the Stock Exchange by issuing a public notice and also by indicating
the change on the respective websites of the BRLM and at the terminals of the
Members of the Syndicate and by intimation to the Designated Intermediaries and
the Sponsor Bank(s), as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Except in relation to Anchor Investors, the period between the Bid/Issue Opening



Term

“Bidder”/ “Applicant”

“Bidding Centers”
“Book Building
Process”

“Book Running Lead
Managers”/ “BRLM”
“Broker Centers”

“CAN”/
“Confirmation of
Allocation Note”

“Cap Price”

“Cash Escrow and
Sponsor Bank
Agreement”

“CDP(s)”/ “Collecting
Depository
Participant(s)”
“Client ID”
“Collecting Registrar

and Share Transfer
Agents”

“Cut-Off Price”

“Cut-Off Time”

Description

Date and the Bid/Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days, during which Bidders
(excluding Anchor Investors) can submit their Bids, including any revisions thereof
in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the terms of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus. Provided that the Bidding shall be kept open for a minimum of
three Working Days for all categories of Bidders, other than Anchor Investors. Our
Company, in consultation with BRLM, may consider closing the Bid/Issue Period for
QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing Date, in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Any prospective investor who makes a Bid pursuant to the terms of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form and unless otherwise stated
or implied, includes an ASBA Bidder and an Anchor Investor.

Centers at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Bid cum Application
Forms, i.e., Designated SCSB Branches for SCSBs, Specified Locations for
Members of the Syndicate, Broker Centers for Registered Brokers, Designated RTA
Locations for RTAs and Designated CDP Locations for CDPs.

Book building process, as provided in Part A of Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, in terms of which the Issue is being made.

The book running lead manager to the Issue, being Vivro Financial Services Private
Limited

Broker centers are notified by the Stock Exchange where ASBA Bidders can submit
the ASBA Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of such Broker Centers, along
with the names and contact details of the Registered Brokers are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com.

Notice or intimation of allocation of the Equity Shares sent to Anchor Investors, who
have been allocated the Equity Shares, on or after the Anchor Investor Bidding Date.

The higher end of the Price Band, above which the Issue Price and Anchor Investor
Issue The higher end of the Price Band, above which the Issue Price and Anchor
Investor Issue Price will not be finalized and above which no Bids will be accepted.
The Cap Price shall be at least [®] % of the Floor Price and shall be less than or equal
to [®] % of the Floor Price.

The agreement to be entered into amongst our Company, the Syndicate Members, the
Registrar to the Issue, the BRLM, and the Banker(s) to the Issue for, among other
things, collection of the Bid Amounts from the Anchor Investors, transfer of funds to
the Public Issue Account(s), and where applicable, remitting refunds, if any, to such
Bidders, on the terms and conditions thereof.

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with
SEBI and who is eligible to procure Bids at the Designated CDP Locations in terms
of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, and
other applicable circulars issued by SEBI as per the lists available on the website of
the Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to
the demat account.

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure Bids
at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of SEBI circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, issued by SEBI as per
the lists available on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com , as
updated from time to time.

Issue Price, which shall be any price within the Price Band, finalized by our
Company, in consultation with BRLM. Only Individual Investors who apply for
minimum application size are entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price. QIBs (including
Anchor Investors) and Non-Institutional Investors are not entitled to Bid at the Cut-
off Price.

For all pending UPI Mandate Requests, the Sponsor Bank(s) shall initiate requests
for blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts of relevant Bidders with a confirmation
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Term

“Demographic
Details”
“Designated CDP
Locations”

“Designated Date”

“Designated
Intermediary(ies)”
“Designated RTA
Locations”

“Designated RTA

Locations”

“Designated  SCSB

Branches”

“Designated  Stock
Exchange”

“Draft Red Herring
Prospectus” or

“DRHP’

“Eligible NRI”

“Escrow Account(s)”

“Escrow  Collection

Bank”

“First or sole Bidder”

“Floor Price”

Description

cut-off time of 5:00 pm after the Bid/Issue Closing Date.

The details of the Bidders including the Bidder’s address, name of the Bidder’s
father/husband, investor status, occupation, bank account details and UPI ID, as
applicable.

Such locations of the CDPs where Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms. The details
of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on
the website of the Stock Exchange at www.nseindia.com as updated from time to
time.

The date on which the Escrow Collection Bank(s) transfer funds from the Escrow
Account to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account, as the case may be,
and/or the instructions are issued to the SCSBs (in case of UPI Bidders, instruction
issued through the Sponsor Bank(s)) for the transfer of the relevant amounts blocked
by the SCSBs in the ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue Account and or the Refund
Account and / or are unblocked, as the case may be, in terms of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus, after finalization of the
Basis of Allotment in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, following
which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders in the Issue

SCSBs, Syndicate, sub-Syndicate, Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs who are
authorized to collect ASBA Forms from the ASBA Bidders, in relation to the Issue.
Such locations of the RTAs where ASBA Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms to
RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and contact
details of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange (www.nseindia.com) as updated from time to time.

Such locations of the RTAs where ASBA Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms to
RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and contact
details of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange (www.nseindia.com) as updated from time to time.

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms used by the
Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in,
updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI
from time to time.

Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, the EMERGE Platform of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated August 1, 2025, issued in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which does not contain complete details of the price at
which the Equity Shares will be Allotted and the size of the Issue, including any
addenda or corrigenda thereto.

NRI(s) from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an Issue or
invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Bid Cum Application Form
and the Draft Red Herring Prospectus will constitute an invitation to purchase the
Equity Shares.

Account(s) opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favor Anchor
Investors will transfer the money through direct credit/NEFT/RTGS/NACH in
respect of the Bid Amount while submitting a Bid.

Bank which is a clearing member and registered with SEBI as a banker to an issue
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations,
1994, and with whom the Escrow Accounts in relation to the Issue for Bids by Anchor
Investors will be opened, in this case being [e].

The Bidder whose name shall be mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or the
Revision Form and in case of joint Bids, whose name shall also appear as the first
holder of the beneficiary account held in joint names

The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision thereto, at or above which
the Issue Price and the Anchor Investor Issue Price will be finalized and below which
no Bids will be accepted,

11


http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.nseindia.com/
http://www.sebi.gov.in/

Term
“Fraudulent
Borrower”
“Fugitive
Offender”
“General Information
Document” or “GID”

Economic

“Individual Investor”

“Individual Investor
Portions”
“Issue Agreement”

“Issue Price”

“Market Maker”

“Market Maker
Reservation Portion”

“Market
Agreement”
“Minimum
Application Size”
“Mutual Funds”

Making

“Mutual
Portion”

Fund

“Net Proceeds”
“Net QIB Portion”

“Non-Institutional
Category” or
“Non-Institutional
Portion”

Description

Fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1)(1ll) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of the
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

The General Information Document for investing in public Issues, prepared and
issued in accordance with the circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/37) dated
March 17, 2020, issued by SEBI and the UPI Circulars, as amended from time to
time. The General Information Document shall be available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the BRLM.

Individual investor who applies for minimum application size.

Portion of the Issue being not less than 35% of the Net Issue consisting of [®] Equity
Shares face value of X10/- each which shall be available for allocation to Individual
Investors (subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price), which
shall not be less than the minimum application size subject to availability in the
Individual Investor Portion, and the remaining Equity Shares to be Allotted on a
proportionate basis.

The agreement dated August 1, 2025, between our Company and the BRLM,
pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to the Issue.

The final price at which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful ASBA Bidders
in terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus which will be decided by our Company,
in consultation with the BRLM, on the Pricing Date, in accordance with the Book-
Building Process and in terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Equity Shares
will be Allotted to Anchor Investors at the Anchor Investor Issue Price, which will be
decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, on the Pricing Date, in
accordance with the Book-Building Process and in terms of the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Market Maker appointed by our Company from time to time, in this case being [e],
who has agreed to receive or deliver the specified securities in the market making
process for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for
any other period as may be notified by SEBI from time to time.

The reserved portion of [@] Equity Shares of face value having 310 each at an Issue
price of X [®] each aggregating to X[e] Lakhs to be subscribed by Market Maker in
this Issue.

The market making agreement dated [®] between our Company, Book Running Lead
Manager and Market Maker.

The minimum application size shall be two lots provided that the minimum
application size shall be above X 2 Lakhs

Mutual funds registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996.

The portion of the Issue being 5% of the Net QIB Portion consisting of [e] Equity
Shares of face value of 10 each which shall be available for allocation to Mutual
Funds only on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids being received at or above
the Issue Price.

Proceeds of the Issue less Issue expenses.

The portion of the QIB Portion less the number of Equity Shares Allotted to the
Anchor Investors.

The portion of the Issue being not less than 15% of the Issue consisting of [®] Equity
Shares of face value of Z10/- each, available for allocation to Non-Institutional
Investors, of which one-third shall be available for allocation to Bidders with an
application size of more than two lots and up to such lots equivalent to not more than
%10 lakhs and two-thirds shall be available for allocation to Bidders with an
application size of more than X10 lakhs, provided that the unsubscribed portion in
either of such sub-categories may be allocated to applicants in the other sub-category
of Non-Institutional Investors subject to valid Bids being received at or above the
Issue Price.
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Term
“Non-Institutional
Investors” or ”NIIs” or
“Non-Institutional
Bidders” or “NIBs”

“NPCI”
“NR” or
Resident”
“Price Band”

“Non-

“Pricing Date”

“Prospectus”

“Public
Account(s)”

Issue

“Public Issue Account
Bank(s)”
“QIB Portion”

“QIBs” or “Qualified
Institutional Buyers”

“Red Herring
Prospectus” or “RHP”

“Refund Account(s)”
“Refund Bank(s)”

“Registered Brokers”

Description

All Applicants, including FPIs which are individuals, corporate bodies and family

offices, that are not QIBs or Individual Investors and to whom allocation shall be

made in the following manner:

(a) one third of the portion available to non-institutional investors shall be reserved
for applicants with application size of more than two lots and up to such lots
equivalent to not more than X10 lakhs;

(b) two third of the portion available to non-institutional investors shall be reserved
for applicants with application size of more than X10 lakhs.

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the sub-categories specified in
clauses (a) or (b), may be allocated to applicants in the other sub-category of Non-
Institutional Investors.

National Payments Corporation of India

Person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes non-resident
Indians, FVCIs and FPIs.

The price band ranging from the Floor Price of X [@] per Equity Share of face value
of 210/- each to the Cap Price of X [®] per Equity Share of face value of *10/- each,
including any revisions thereto. The Price Band and minimum Bid Lot, as decided
by our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, will be advertised in all editions of
[®] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and all editions of [e] (a
widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and all editions of [®] (a widely
circulated Gujarati daily newspaper, Gujarati being the regional language of
Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is located), at least two Working Days prior
to the Bid/Issue Opening Date with the relevant financial ratios calculated at the Floor
Price and at the Cap Price, and shall be made available to the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of uploading on their respective websites.

The date on which our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, will finalize the
Issue Price.

The prospectus to be filed with the RoC on or after the Pricing Date in accordance
with Section 26 of the Companies Act, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations containing,
inter alia, the Issue Price, the size of the Issue and certain other information, including
any addenda or corrigenda thereto.

The bank account(s) opened with the Public Issue Account Bank(s) under Section
40(3) of the Companies Act, to receive monies from the Escrow Account and from
the ASBA Accounts on the Designated Date.

Bank(s) which is a clearing member and registered with SEBI as a banker to an issue,
and with whom the Public Issue Account(s) will be opened.

The portion of the Issue being not more than 50% of the Issue or [®] Equity Shares
of face value of %10 each, available for allocation to QIBs (including Anchor
Investors) on a proportionate basis (in which allocation to Anchor Investors shall be
on a discretionary basis, as determined by our Company, in consultation with the
BRLM), subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.

A qualified institutional buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

The Red Herring Prospectus to be issued in accordance with Section 32 of the
Companies Act, and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which will not
have complete particulars of the Issue Price and the size of the Issue, including any
addenda or corrigenda thereto. The Red Herring Prospectus will be filed with the
ROC at least three Working Days before the Bid/Issue Opening Date and will become
the Prospectus upon filing with the ROC after the Pricing Date.

The account opened with the Refund Bank(s), from which refunds, if any, of the
whole or part of the Bid Amount to Anchor Investors shall be made.

The Banker to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in this
case being [e].

Stockbrokers registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
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Term

“Registrar
Agreement”

“Registrar to  the
Issue” or “Registrar”
“Revision Form”

“RTAs” or “Registrar
and Share Transfer
Agents”
“Self-Certified
Syndicate Bank(s)” or
“SCSB(s)”

“Specified Locations”

“Sponsor Bank(s)”

“Stock Exchange”
“Sub-Syndicate
Members”
“Syndicate
Agreement”

“Syndicate
Member(s)”
“Syndicate” or
“Members of the
Syndicate”
“Underwriter”
“Underwriting

Description

(Stockbrokers) Regulations, 1992 and the stock exchanges having nationwide
terminals, other than the Members of the Syndicate and eligible to procure Bids in
terms of Circular No. CIR/CFD/14/2012 dated October 4, 2012, and other applicable
circulars issued by SEBI.

The agreement dated July 30, 2025 entered into between our Company, and the
Registrar to the Issue, in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the
Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue.

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private
Limited)

Form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid
Amount in any of their Bid cum Application Forms or any previous Revision
Form(s), as applicable. QIB Bidders and Non-Institutional Investors are not allowed
to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid
Amount) at any stage. Individual Investors who apply for Minimum Application Size
can revise their Bids during the Bid/Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until the
Bid/Issue Closing Date.

The registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure
Bids at the Designated RTA Locations as per the list available on the website of NSE,
and the UPI Circulars

The banks registered with SEBI, offering services in relation to ASBA (other than
through UPI Mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34
or
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35
or such other website as updated from time to time, and (ii) The banks registered with
SEBI, enabled for UPI Mechanism, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI
at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40
or such other website as updated from time to time. Applications through UPI in the
Issue can be made only through the SCSBs mobile applications (apps) whose name
appears on the SEBI website. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which, are
live for applying in public issues using UPI Mechanism is appearing in the “list of
mobile applications for using UPI in Public Issues” displayed on SEBI website at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=43.
The said list shall be updated on SEBI website from time to time.

Bidding centers where the Syndicate shall accept ASBA Forms from Bidders, a list
of which is available on the website of SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from
time to time.

[e], being Banker(s) to the Issue, appointed by our Company to act as a conduit
between the Stock Exchange and the NPCI in order to push the mandate collect
requests and/or payment instructions of UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism and
carry out other responsibilities, in terms of the UPI Circulars.

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited

The sub-syndicate members, if any, appointed by the BRLM and the Syndicate
Members, to collect ASBA Forms and Revision Forms.

The agreement to be entered into between our Company, the Registrar to the Issue,
the BRLM and the Syndicate Members in relation to the procurement of Bids by the
Syndicate

[e].

Together, the BRLM and the Syndicate Members.

Underwriter to this Issue namely [o].
The agreement dated [®], between the Underwriter and our Company.
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Term
Agreement”
[3 ‘UPI?’

“UPI Bidders”

“UPI Circulars”

“UPI ID”

“UPI Mandate
Request”

“UPI Mechanism”
“UPI PIN”

“Wilful Defaulter”
“Working Day(s)”

Description

Unified Payments Interface, which is an instant payment mechanism, developed by
the NPCI.

Collectively, individual investors applying as individual investors who apply for
Minimum Application Size in the Individual Investors Portion, individuals applying
as Non-Institutional Investors with a Bid Amount of up to %5,00,000 in the Non-
Institutional Portion, and Bidding under the UPI Mechanism.

Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5,
2022, all individual investors applying in public issues where the application amount
is up to X 5,00,000 shall use UPI and shall provide their UPI ID in the bid-cum-
application form submitted with: (i) a syndicate member, (ii) a stock broker registered
with a recognized stock exchange (whose name is mentioned on the website of the
stock exchange as eligible for such activity), (iii) a depository participant (whose
name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for such activity),
and (iv) a registrar to an issue and share transfer agent (whose name is mentioned on
the website of the stock exchange as eligible for such activity).

SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1,
2018, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3,
2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28,
2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26,
2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated
November 8, 2019, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020 dated
March 30, 2020, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M
dated March 16, 2021, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47
dated March 31, 2021, SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570
dated June 2, 2021, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated
April 5,2022, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20,
2022, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022
(to the extent these circulars are not rescinded by the SEBI RTA Master Circular),
SEBI  master circular with  circular number  SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023, SEBI circular number
SEBI/HO/CFD/TPD1/CIR/P/2023/140 dated August 9, 2023, SEBI RTA Master
Circular (to the extent it pertains to UPI) and any subsequent circulars or notifications
issued by SEBI in this regard, along with the circulars issued by the Stock Exchange
in this regard, including the circular issued by NSE having reference number 25/2022
dated August 3, 2022 and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI
or Stock Exchange in this regard.

ID created on UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the
NPCI.

A request (intimating the UPI Bidder by way of a notification on the UPI application,
by way of a SMS directing the UPI Bidder to such UPI application) to the UPI Bidder
initiated by the Sponsor Bank(s) to authorize blocking of funds on the UPI
application equivalent to Bid Amount and subsequent debit of funds in case of
Allotment.

The bidding mechanism that shall be used by a UPI Bidder to make an ASBA Bid in
the Issue in accordance with the UPI Circulars.

Password to authenticate UPI transaction.

Wilful defaulter as defined under Regulation 2(1)(11l) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
All days on which commercial banks in Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India are open for
business; provided, however, with reference to (a) announcement of Price Band; and
(b) Bid/Issue Period, the expression “Working Day” shall mean all days on which
commercial banks in Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India are open for business, excluding all
Saturdays, Sundays or public holidays; and (c) with reference to the time period
between the Bid/Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock
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Term

Description

Exchange, the expression ‘Working Day’ shall mean all trading days of Stock
Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, in terms of the circulars issued by
SEBI.

Industry and Business-Related Terms or Abbreviations

Term
“APAC”
“APIs”
“ASEAN”
“B2B”
“BTA”
“CAEPPR Rules”
“CAGR”

“CareEdge Report”

“CCTV”
“CPI”
“CSR”
“«Ccy”
“D2C”
“DG”
“ESG”
“ETP”
“EU”
“EV»
“FDI”
“FMCG”
“FTA”
“GDP”
“GNDI”
“GOTS”
“GST”
“GVA”
“HDPE”
“HPC”
“IIP”
“IMF”
“ISO”
“T”
“kVA”
“LDPE”
“MEA”
“MHIHC Rules”
“MT”
“MTPA”
“pP/C”
“PCMX”
“PCPIRs”

Description
Asia-Pacific
Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient
Association of Southeast Asian Nations
Business to Business
Bilateral trade agreement
Chemical Accidents (Emergency Planning, Preparedness, and Response) Rules
Compound Annual Growth Rate
Industry Research Report on Chemicals Industry (“CareEdge Report”) dated
July 17, 2025 prepared by CARE Analytics and Advisory Private Limited
(formerly known as CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited)
Closed Circuit Television
Consumer Price Index
Corporate Social Responsibility
Calender Year
Direct to Consumer
Diesel generator
Enterprise Resource Planning — software used for business process management.
Environmental, Social, and Governance
Effluent Treatment Plant
European Union
Electric Vehicles
Foreign Direct Investment
Final Estimates
Fast Moving Consumer Goods
First Revised Estimates
fiberglass reinforced plastics
Free Trade Agreements
Gross Domestic Product
Gross National Disposable Income
Global Organic Textile Standard
Goods and Service Tax
Gross Value Added
High-Density Polyethylene
home & personal care
Index of Industrial Production
International Monetary Fund
International Organization for Standardization
Information Technology
Kilo Volt Amperes
Low-Density Polyethylene
Middle East & Africa
Manufacture, Storage, and Import of Hazardous Chemical
Metric Ton
metric ton per annum
Polyester-Cotton
Para-chloro-meta-xylenol
Petroleum, Chemicals, and Petrochemicals Investment Regions
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Term
“pE”
“PFCE”
“PLI”
“PMI”
“PM-MITRA”
“PPE”
“PPP”
“QA”/“QC”
“R&D”
“RBI”
“REACH”
“RPM”
“SAE”
“SDP”
«gg”
“UGVCL”
“VocC”»
“WEO”
“Y-0-Y”
“ZDHC”
“ZLD”

Description
Provisional Estimates
Private Final Consumption Expenditure
Production-Linked Incentive
Purchasing Managers’ Index
Mega Integrated Textile Region and Apparel Parks
personal protective equipment
public-private partnership
Quality Assurance / Quality Check
Research and development
Reserve Bank of India
Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
Revolutions per minute
Second Advance Estimates
State Domestic Product
Stainless Steel
Uttar Gujarat Vij Company Limited
Volatile organic compound
World Economic Outlook
Year-on-Year
Zero Discharge of Hazardous Chemicals
zero-liquid discharge

Key operational and financial performance indicators

Term
“Revenue from
Operations”

“Earnings before Interest,
Tax, Depreciation”

“EBITDA Margins”
“Profit after Tax” / “PAT”
“PAT Margins”

“Cash Profit after Tax”
“Current Ratio”

“Net Worth”
“Debt-Equity Ratio”
“Return on Equity”

“Return on Capital
Employed”

Description
Revenue from operation provides information regarding growth of the business
operations over the period.
EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax depreciation and amortisation) provides
information and operational profitability and the financial performance of the
business.
EBITDA margin provides the financial benchmarking against peers as well as to
compare against the historical performance of the business.
PAT provides information regarding the overall profitability of our business.
PAT margin is an indicator of the overall profitability of the business and
provides the financial benchmarking against peer as well as to compare against
the historical performance of the business.
Cash Profit after Tax is an indicator which denotes profit generated from the
business operations during the period before adjusting the non-cash items.
Current ratio is an indicator of short-term solvency i.e., company's ability to pay
short- term obligations or those due within one year.
Net-Worth is an indicator of total net-worth after deducting the aggregate value
of the accumulated losses, each as applicable for the Company on a restated
basis.
Debt Equity Ratio is an indicator of overall leverage of the company
RoE provides how efficiently the Company generates profits from average
shareholders' funds.
RoCE provides how efficiently the Company generates earnings from the capital
employed in the business.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, USE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND MARKET DATA AND
CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

All references to “India” contained in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are to the Republic of India and its
territories and possessions and all references herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “Gol”, “Central
Government” or the “State Government” are to the Government of India, Central or State, as applicable. All
references to the “U.S.”, “US”, “U.S.A” or “United States” are to the United States of America and its territories
and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is in Indian Standard Time
(“IST”). Unless indicated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are to
the page numbers of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”, “our Company”, “Issuer”,
“Issuer Company”, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to “Neochem Bio Solutions Limited”.

Financial Data

Unless the context otherwise requires or indicates, the financial information, financial ratios in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus has been derived from our Restated Financial Information. For further information, please see
the section titled “Restated Financial Information” on page 227 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on
March 31 of that particular calendar year; accordingly, all references to a particular financial year or fiscal, unless
stated otherwise, are to the 12-month period commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year
and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year. Reference in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus to the
terms Fiscal or Fiscal Year of Financial Year is to the 12 months ended on March 31 of such year, unless otherwise
specified.

The Restated Financial Information of our Company, which comprises the Restated Statement of assets and
liabilities, the Restated Statement of profit and loss, the Restated Statement of cash flows the as at and for the
Financial Years ended on March 31,2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 along with the summary statement
of significant accounting policies read together with the annexures and notes thereto prepared in terms of the
requirements of Section 32 of the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports
in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the ICAI, as amended from time to time.

The degree to which the financial information included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus will provide
meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies
and practices, Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not
familiar with the aforementioned policies and laws on the financial disclosures presented in this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus should be limited. There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, Ind AS, U.S. GAAP and
IFRS. Our Company does not provide reconciliation of its financial statements with Ind AS, IFRS or U.S. GAAP
requirements. Our Company has not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their impact on the
financial data included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and it is urged that you consult your own advisors
regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” on pages 31, 166
and 266 respectively, of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, and elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
have been calculated on the basis of the Restated Financial Statements of our Company, prepared in accordance
with Indian GAAP, and the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”

and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Result of Operations” on pages 31, 166
and 266 respectively, of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, and elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
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have been calculated on the basis of the Restated Financial Statements of our Company, prepared in accordance
with Indian GAAP, and the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sum of the amounts
listed are due to rounding off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the second decimal place and all
percentage figures have been rounded off to two decimal places and accordingly there may be consequential
changes in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

. “X” or “Rupees” or “INR” or “Rs” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.

. “US$”, “U.S. Dollar”, “USD” or “U.S. Dollars” or “$” are to United States Dollars, the official
currency of the United States of America.

. "Euro" or "€", are to Euro, the official currency of the Eurozone.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has presented certain numerical information. All figures have
been expressed in lakhs, except where specifically indicated. One lakh represents 1,00,000. However, where any
figures that may have been sourced from third party industry sources are expressed in denominations other than
lakhs in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus expressed in such
denominations as provided in such respective sources.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers
to another gender and the word “Lac/Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, the industry and market data and forecasts used throughout this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus have been obtained from the report on “Industry Research Report on Chemicals Industry ” dated July
17,2025 (“CareEdge Report ”’), which has been prepared and released by CARE Analytics and Advisory Private
Limited (formerly known as CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited) (“CareEdge Report”). Further, CareEdge,
vide their consent letter dated July 17, 2025 (“Letter”) has accorded their no objection and consent to use the
CareEdge Report. CareEdge, vide their Letter has also confirmed that they are an independent agency, and
confirmed that it is not related to our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, our Key Managerial Personnel, our
senior management personnel or the BRLM. The Report is also available on the website of our Company at
www.neochem.in.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is meaningful depends
on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are
no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and
methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. Such data involves risks,
uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those
disclosed in “Risk Factors — Certain sections of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus disclose information from the
industry report which has been commissioned and paid for by us exclusively in connection with the Issue and any
reliance on such information for making an investment decision in the Issue is subject to inherent risk” on page
51 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based solely on such
information.

Exchange Rates

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus may contain conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees
that have been presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be
construed as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees,

at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
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the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:

Currency® Exchange rate as on Exchange rate as on Exchange rate as on
March 31, 2025* March 31, 2024* March 31, 2023*

1 USD 85.58 83.37 82.21

1 EUR 92.32 90.22 89.61

* If the RBI reference rate is not available on a particular date due to a public holiday, the previous working day not being a public holiday

has been considered.

Source: www.fbil.org.in and www.rbi.org.in

(1) The reference rates are rounded off to two decimal places.

(2) In case of a public holiday, the previous working day not being a public holiday has been considered.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains certain “forward-looking statements”. These forward-looking

EEINNT3 CLINNT3

statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “are likely”, “believe”,

“expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely to”, “objective”, “plan”, “project’, “propose”, “will”, “seek to”, “will
continue”, “will pursue” or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our
strategies, objectives, plans or goals are also forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are
subject to risks, uncertainties, expectations and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. All statements in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus that are not statements of historical fact constitute “forward-looking statements”. All statements
regarding our expected financial conditions and results of operations, business plans and objectives, strategies and

goals and prospects are forward-looking statements.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by forward-looking statements due to risks or
uncertainties associated with expectations relating to and including, regulatory changes pertaining to the industries
in India in which we operate and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy,
our growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political
conditions in India which have an impact on its business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies
of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or
other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws,
regulations and taxes and changes in competition in the industries in which we operate.

Certain important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are
not limited to, the following:

1. We derive a substantial portion of our revenue from the textile industry. Consequently, any material
decline in the performance of the textile sector, or our failure to sustain, grow, or efficiently manage our
sales within this sector, may materially and adversely affect our business operations, financial condition
and results of operations.

2. Our Company derives revenue from diversified customers. Our inability to acquire new customers or
loss of all or a substantial portion of any of our major customers, for any reason and/or continued
reduction of the business from them, could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

3. We do not maintain long-term contractual arrangements with the majority of our customers. As a result,
the loss of one or more key customers, or any significant reduction in their demand for our products,
could materially and adversely affect our business operations, financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows.

4. Underutilization of the installed capacities at our Company may have an adverse impact on our growth
and future profitability.

5. We derive a significant portion of our revenue from operations from domestic sales which exposes us to
risks specific to Indian geographies and market.

6. We are required to adhere to quality standards in the manufacturing of our products. Our inability to
comply with such parameters may result in termination or loss of business from our customers which, in
turn, may have a material adverse effect on our business prospects and results of operations.

7. Asignificant increase in the cost of raw materials, particularly if not matched by a corresponding increase
in product pricing or revenue, could materially and adversely affect our profit margins and overall
financial performance. If we are unable to pass on these increased costs to our customers, it may result

in reduced profitability and negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.

8.  We have not made any long-term supply arrangement or agreement with our suppliers. In an eventuality
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where our suppliers are unable to deliver us the required materials, at a competitive price, in a time-
bound manner it may have a material adverse effect on our business operations and profitability.

9. Our manufacturing facility situated in Moraiya, Ahmedabad is critical for our business and any
disturbance, slowdown or shutdown of our Moraiya manufacturing facility, may have an adverse impact
on our business, results of operations and financial conditions

10. Our operations can be adversely affected in case of industrial accidents at our manufacturing units.
Further, any fire or mishap or accidents of such nature at the Company's facilities could lead to accident
claims and damage and loss of property, inventory, raw materials, etc.

For details regarding factors that could cause actual results to differ from expectations, see “Risk Factors”, “Our
Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
beginning on page 31, 166 and 266, respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. By their nature, certain
market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the
future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot ensure that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct.
Given these uncertainties, Applicants are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements and not to regard such statements to be a guarantee of our future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect current views as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and are not
a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions,
which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which
these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate,
and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our Company, our
Promoters, our Directors, the BRLM nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or
otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence
of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company, the Promoters and the BRLM will ensure that the
Bidders in India are informed of material developments until the time of the grant of listing and trading permission

by the Stock Exchange for the Equity shares pursuant to the Issue.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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SUMMARY OF THE ISSUE DOCUMENTS

The following is a general summary of the terms of the Issue and is not exhaustive, nor does it purport to contain
a summary of all the disclosures in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus or all details relevant to prospective
investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed
information appearing elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, including “Risk Factors”, “The Issue”,
“Capital Structure”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Restated Financial
Information”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”, “Issue Procedure”, and “Description of
Equity Shares Related Terms of The Articles of Association” on pages 31, 68, 87, 103, 126, 166, 227, 280, 320 and
362, respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

a)

b)

<)

d)

Summary of Business

We are a specialty performance chemical company with a legacy of over four decades, engaged in the
business of manufacturing specialty performance chemicals with a diverse portfolio of over 350
customized formulations across four primary product segments such as (i) Polymers, (ii) Surfactants,
(iii) Silicones, and (iv) Esters & bio-based sustainable solutions. Our products are essential and used in
industries such as textile & garment washing, home & personal care (HPC), institutional and industrial
cleaners, water treatment, paints and coatings, paper and pulp, construction, rubber and dyes and
pigments. Our Company is accredited with ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001 and ISO 45001. Our product
certifications include ZDHC Level 3 and GOTS 7.0.

For further details, please refer chapter titled “Our Business” on page 166 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus

Summary of Industry

The global chemicals industry was valued at approximately $5.7 trillion in 2023, contributing around
7% to global GDP. The industry is estimated to have been valued at $5.9 trillion in 2024. The industry
has grown at a CAGR of 7% from 2014 to 2024 and is projected to grow at 7%, reaching nearly $8.3
trillion by 2029. The Indian specialty chemicals market has demonstrated robust growth, expanding from
Rs 2.2 lakh crore in FY19 to an estimated Rs 5 lakh crore in FY25, and is projected to reach Rs 7.5 lakh
crore by FY29, registering a CAGR of 10-12% over the next four years.

For further details, please refer chapter titled “Industry Overview” on page 126 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Name of the Promoters
The Promoters of our Company are Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati and Hemangini Swapnil Dathia. For

detailed information on our Promoters and Promoter Group, please refer to chapter titled “Our Promoters
and Promoter Group” on page 221 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Issue Size
Issue® Issue of up to 47,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each for cash
at a price of X[e] per Equity Share (including premium of Z[e] per Equity
Share) aggregating to X [e] lakhs.
Out of which

Market Maker [e] Equity Shares of face value of 310/- each fully paid-up of our Company
Reservation Portion for cash at a price of I[®] per Equity Share (including premium of Z[e] per
Equity Share) aggregating to X[ e] lakhs.
Net Issue to the [e] Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each fully paid-up of our Company
Public for cash at a price of X[e] per Equity Share (including premium of Z[e] per
Equity Share) aggregating to X [e] lakhs.
(1) The Issue has been authorized by our Board pursuant to resolution passed at its meeting held on July 3, 2025, and the Issue
has been authorized by our Shareholders pursuant to a special resolution passed on July 4, 2025.
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e)

The price band will be decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and will be advertised
in all editions of the English national newspaper, all editions of the Hindi national newspaper and
regional language newspaper, each with wide circulation, at least 2 (two) working days prior to the
bid/issue opening date with the relevant financial ratios calculated at the floor price and the cap price
and shall be made available to the EMERGE Platform of National Stock exchange of India Limited
(“NSE EMERGE?”, referred to as the “Stock Exchange”) for the purpose of uploading on their website
for further details kindly refer to chapter titled “7erms of the Issue” on page 305 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

FIANTS

For further details, see “The Issue” “Issue Structure”, and “Issue Procedure” on page 68, 315 and 320

of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Objects of the Issue
The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarized in the table below:
(% in lakhs)
Objects Amount
Gross proceeds of the Issue Up to [e]
Less: Estimated Issue related expenses [e]
Net Proceeds of the Issue (Net Proceeds)* [e]

*To be finalised upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC.
Utilisation of Net Proceeds and Schedule of Deployment

The proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds by our Company is set forth in the following table:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Amount which Proposed schedule  Proposed schedule
will be for deployment of for deployment of
financed from the Net Proceeds the Net Proceeds
Net Proceeds Fiscal 2026 Fiscal 2027
Funding the long-term working 2,390.00 990.00 1,400.00
capital requirements of the
Company
Repayment/prepayment, in full or 1,000.00 1,000.00 -
part, of all or certain outstanding
borrowings availed by our
Company
General Corporate Purposes* [o] [®] [®]
Total Net proceeds” [®] [®] [®]

*To be finalized upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC. The amount
utilized for General Corporate Purposes will not exceed 15% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue or < 1,000.00 lakhs, whichever
is lower.

" Assuming full subscription and subject to finalization of basis of allotment.

For further details, see “Objects of the Issue” on page 103 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Aggregate Pre-Issue shareholding of our Promoters and Promoter Group
As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the aggregate Pre-Issue shareholding of our Promoters

and Promoter Group, as a percentage of the Pre-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company is
set out below:
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2)

Sr. Name of the Shareholder
No.

Promoters

I. Swapnil Rameshbhai
Makati

2. Hemangini Swapnil
Dathia

Promoter Group

1. Meenaben  Rameshbhai
Dathia

2. Dhairya Swapnil Dathia

3. Kyra Swapnil Dathia

4. Swapnil Rameshbhai
Dathia HUF

5. Arunkumar Ramanlal
Rana

6. Forum Bhavik Rana

7. Nishaben Arunkumar
Rana

8. Zarana Nitinbhai Rana

9. Neochem Specialties

10.  Altius Biochem Private
Limited

11.  Dymatic Organochem
LLP
Total

Number of Percentage of the
Equity Shares Pre-Issue Equity
Share capital
(%o)*
93,41,675 74.54%
10,80,625 8.62%
9,95,925 7.95%
175 Negligible
175 Negligible
175 Negligible
1,14,18,750 91.12%

Percentage of the
Post-Issue Equity
Share capital (%)

[e]

Shareholding of Promoters/Promoter Group and Additional Top 10 Shareholders of the Company

as at allotment:

Sr. Pre-Issue shareholding as at the date of
No. DRHP®
Shareholders Number of Share At the lower end of
Equity holding the price band (X[e])
Shares® (in Number Share
%)@ of holding
Equity (in
Shares @ %)@
A. Promoters
1. Swapn.il Rameshbhai 93.41.675 74.54% [e] [e]
Makati
2. Hem'fmgini Swapnil 10,80,625 8.62% [®] [®]
Dathia
B. Promoter Group
1. Meenaben 9,95,925 7.95% [e] [e]
Rameshbhai Dathia
2. Dhairya Swapnil Negligible [e] [e]
Dathia
3. Kyra Swapnil Dathia Negligible [o] [e]
4. Swapnil Rameshbhai Negligible [e] [e]

Dathia HUF

5. Arunkumar
Ramanlal Rana

6. Forum Bhavik Rana

7. Nishaben Arunkumar
Rana
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h)

Sr. Pre-Issue shareholding as at the date of Post-Issue shareholding as at Allotment®
No. DRHP®

Shareholders Number of Share At the lower end of At the upper end of the
Equity holding the price band (X[e]) price band (%[e])
Shares® (in Number Share Number Share
%)@ of holding of holding
Equity (in Equity (in
Shares @ %)@ Shares® %)@

8. Zarana Nitinbhai - - - - - -
Rana
. Neochem Specialties - - - - - -
10 Altius Biochem - - - - - -
Private Limited
11.  Dymatic - - - - - -
Organochem LLP

C. Additional Top 10 Shareholders

1. Invicta Continuum 3,03,821 2.42% [e] [e] [e] [o]
Fund I
2. Dinesh Chopra 2,62,500 2.09% [e] [e] [e] [o]
3. Venturex Fund I 1,21,529 0.97% [e] [e] [e] [e]
4. Seema Vora 1,21,529 0.97% [e] [e] [e] [e]
5. Alpa Dhakan 1,21,529 0.97% [e] [e] [e] [e]
6.  Pritesh Vora 60,765 0.48% [e] [e] [e] [e]
7. Suresh Gandhi 60,765 0.48% [e] [e] [e] [e]
8. Shailesh Soni 60,765 0.48% [e] [e] [e] [e]

@ To be updated at the time of filing the Red Herring Prospectus and the Price Band Advertisement.

@ Includes all options that have been exercised until date of Prospectus and any transfers of Equity Shares by existing
shareholders after the date of the pre-issue and price band advertisement until date of Prospectus.

¥ Based on the Issue price of Z[®] and subject to finalization of the basis of allotment.

Summary of Financial Statements
A summary of the financial information of our Company as per the Restated Financial Information is as

follows:
(% in lakhs, except ratios and per share data)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity share capital 667.50 667.50 542.60

Net worth” 1,975.27 1,200.21 805.14

Total revenue (including other 8.615.35 6.200.75 4.879.03

Income)

Profit/(loss) after tax(? 775.07 180.13 107.29

Basic Earnings per Share® 6.64 1.89 2.03

Diluted Earnings per Share® 6.64 1.89 2.03

Net Az)set value per Equity Shares 16.91 1027 348

(in%

Total borrowings (including current

maturities of long-term 3,562.44 3,332.35 2,623.70

borrowings)

Return on Net Worth (%) 48.82% 17.97% 18.07%

Return on Capital Employed (%)© 41.67% 21.46% 17.46%
Notes:

1) Net worth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits and securities
premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account.

2)  Profit/(loss) after tax means profit for the year afier tax carried to balance sheet after share in profit of associate and
excluding minority interest

3)  Earnings per share are computed in accordance with AS 20 — Earnings per Share (as amended).

4)  Net Asset Value per Equity Share represents net worth as at the end of the fiscal year, as divided by the number of Equity
Shares as at the end of the fiscal year, adjusted for bonus Equity Shares issued in ratio of 3:4 on July 5, 2025.

5)  Return on Net Worth is calculated as Restated profit after tax after Tax carried to balance sheet for the year divided by
average net worth, where average net worth is calculated by dividing sum of closing net worth of the current fiscal year and
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)

k)

)

closing net worth of the previous fiscal year by 2. Net worth of FY 2022 is taken from Restated Financial Statements.

6)  Return on Capital Employed is calculated as Earnings Before Interest and Tax divided by Average Capital Employed.
Average Capital Employed is calculated by dividing closing capital employed of the current fiscal year and closing capital
employed of the previous fiscal year by 2. Capital employed is calculated as total assets less total current liabilities. Capital

employed of FY 2022 is taken from restated consolidated financial statements of FY 22.

The financials statements of the Company are available on the website of Company www.neochem.in.

Qualifications of the Auditors which have not been given effect to in the Restated Financial

Statements

There are no qualifications included by the Statutory Auditors in their audit reports and hence there are
no qualifications of the Statutory Auditors which have not been given effect to in the Restated Financial

Information.

Summary of Outstanding Litigation

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, our Directors and our
Promoters, Group Companies as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is provided below:

Name of Entity

Company
By our Company
Against our Company
Directors (Other than
Promoters)
By our Director
Against our Director
Promoters
By our Promoters
Against our Promoters
Group Companies
By our Group Companies
Against our  Group
Companies

Notes:

Criminal
Proceeding Proceeding

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Tax

1%
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Statutory
or
Regulatory
Proceeding

7.34
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Material
Civil
Litigation

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

(% in Lakhs)
Aggregate

amount

involved

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

*Our Company filed an appeal dated October 30, 2024 before the Deputy commissioner of Sales Tax, Ahmedabad against the
Order dated August 25, 2024 pertaining to financial years 2019-2020 passed by State Tax Officer, Ghatak (9), Ahmedabad

For further details on the outstanding litigation proceedings, see “QOutstanding Litigation and Material
Developments” on page 280 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Risk Factors

For further details, see “Risk Factors” on page 31 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

The details of our contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are

set forth in the table below:
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Contingent liabilities & commitments

(a) Contingent Liabilities

Claims against company not acknowledged as

debt

Tax matters in dispute under appeal

Dispute in relation to payment of wages

Bank guarantees for Performance, Earnest Money
& Security Deposit
(b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on Capital Accounts and not provided for

March
31,2025

Financial Year ended

March 31,

2024

7.34

7.34

(< in lakhs)

March 31,
2023

For details on contingent liabilities, see “Restated Financial Information — Annexure IV - Contingent
Liabilities and Commitments” on page 261 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

A summary of the related party transactions for the financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023 as per AS 18 — Related Party Disclosures read with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and derived from our Restated Financial Information is set out below:

a. Transaction of during the period

Sr

No.

1
2

N

Name of the Related
Party

Anila K Parekh
Hemangini
Swapnilbhai Dathia

Kapil R Parekh
Meena Ramesh Dathia

Ramesh Chimanlal
Dathia

Swapnil Ramesh
Makati

Neochem Specialties
Altius Biochem Private

Limited

Renu Chopra
DR Enterprise

Nature of Transaction

Loan Repaid
Remuneration Paid
Rent Expense

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Equity Shares issued
(Right Shares)

Loan Repaid

Rent Expense
Remuneration Paid
Loan Repaid

Equity Shares transferred
Remuneration Paid
Rent Expense

Loan Taken

Loan Repaid

Equity Shares issued
(Right Shares)
Purchases

Sale

Purchase
Commission

Sale

Investment Redeemed
Salary

Receipt of service
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Fiscal
2025

15.00
49.25
9.00

25.00
11.40

79.63
27.60
161.00
386.65

90.51
3,605.26
53.66
10.00
168.64

5.52
16.93

Fiscal
2024

30.00
9.00

0.50

8.40

36.22
30.60
1,751.01
1,365.74

200.00

36.94
2,784.17
12.38

(8.90)
5.52
17.40

(< in lakhs)
Fiscal
2023

23.50
17.25
21.78

11.75

6.00
6.82
26.00
(98.94)
36.00
18.00
769.80
1,068.44

299.58

1.48
1,429.18
5.20

5.52
17.40



b. Balance as at the end of the year

(% in lakhs)
Sr. Name of the Nature of  March 31, March 31, March 31,
No. Related Party Transaction 2025 2024 2023
1 Dinesh R Chopra Equity ' Shares 15.00 15.00 15.00
Outstanding
2 Hemangini Loan Payable 0.23 0.23 0.73
Swapnilbhai Dathia ~ Equity ' Shares 6175 6175 6175
Outstanding
3 Anila K Parekh Equity ' Shares ) 0.03 0.03
Outstanding
Loan Payable - - 15.00
4 Kapil R Parekh Loan Taken - - 25.00
Equity Shares
Outstanding ) 0.03 0.03
5 Meena Ramesh Equity Shares
Dathia Outstanding (25.03) 81.94 81.94
6 Swapnil Ramesh Loan Taken 178.46 404.11 18.84
Makati Equity Shares 5354, 508.75 387.75
Outstanding
7 Dhairya Swapnil Equity Shares 0.01 i i
Dathia Outstanding )
8 Kyra Swapnil Equity Shares 0.01 i i
Dathia Outstanding )
9 Swapnil Ramesh Equity Shares 0.01 i i
Dathia (HUF) Outstanding )
10 Neochem Trade Payables 1.97 (38.22) -
Specialties Trade Receivables 1,750.45 986.72 517.69
11 Altius Biochem Purchase - 11.08 1.00
Private Limited Sale 98.90 - -
Investment Made - - 8.90
12 DR Enterprise Receipt of service 8.18 - 4.35

For further details of the related party transactions, see “Restated Financial Information — Annexure —
111 — Statement of Related Party & Transactions” on page 260 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Financing arrangements

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of the Promoter Group or
our Directors and their relatives (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) have financed the purchase by
any other person of securities of our Company (other than in the normal course of business of the
financing entity) during the period of six months preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Weighted average price at which the Equity Shares were acquired by our Promoters in one year
preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Sr. Name of Promoters No. of Equity Shares Weighted Average Price

No. Acquired during the last one ® per equity share)**
year

1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 42,54,175 5.71

2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 4,63,125 0.00

* As certified by M/s. Patel Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated August 01, 2025.
# Adjusted for bonus shares issued in ratio of 3:4 on July 05, 2025
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p)

q)

s)

t)

Average Cost of Acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters

Sr. Name of Promoters No. of Equity Shares Average cost of acquisition
No. held per Equity Share (in )**
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 93,41,675 6.00

2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 10,80,625 2.52

* As certified by M/s. Patel Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated August 01, 2025.

# Adjusted for bonus shares issued in ratio of 3:4 on July 05, 2025

Note: The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters has been calculated by taking into account the amount
paid by them to acquire and Shares allotted to them as reduced by amount received on sell of shares i.e. net of sale consideration
is divided by net quantity of shares acquired.

Weighted average cost of acquisition of specified securities transacted in three years, eighteen
months and one year immediately preceding this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Period Weighted Average Cap Price is ‘X’ times  Range of acquisition

Cost of Acquisition the Weighted Average price: Lowest Price —

(in®)" Cost of Acquisition” Highest Price (in 3)*
Last one year 5.71 [e] 0-5.71
Last eighteen months 8.57 [®] 0-9.14
Last three years 6.79 [®] 0-9.14

* As certified by M/s. Patel Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated August 01, 2025.
~to be updated upon finalization of the Price Band
# Adjusted for bonus shares issued in ratio of 3:4 on July 05, 2025

Pre — IPO Placement

Our Company does not contemplate any issuance or placement of Equity Shares from the date of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus until the listing of the Equity Shares.

Issuances of Equity Shares made in the last one year for consideration other than cash

Date of Nature of Issue Number of Face Nature of Benefits
Allotment  Allotment price Equity value  Consideration accrued to our
per Shares ® Company, if
Equity allotted any
Shares
®
July 5, Bonus NA 53,70,837 10 Not Applicable  Capitalisation of
2025 Shares reserves

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not availed any exemption from
complying with any provisions of securities laws granted by SEBI.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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SECTION II - RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an
investment in the Equity Shares. The risks described in this section are those that we consider to be the most
significant to our business, results of operations and financial condition as of the date of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. The risks described below are not the only ones relevant to us or the Equity Shares, the industry in
which we operate or India and other regions we operate in. In the event that any of the following risks, or other
presently unknown or currently deemed immaterial risks, materialize in the future, our business, operations,
prospects and financial results may be adversely affected. Consequently, the value of the Equity Shares could
diminish, and investors may experience partial or total loss of their investment. The financial and other related
implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk factors mentioned below.
However, the effects of certain risks may be unquantifiable, and accordingly, have not been disclosed in the
applicable risk factors.

To obtain a more detailed understanding of our business and operations, prospective investors should read this
section in conjunction with the sections, “Our Business”, “Industry Overview” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations” “Restated Financial Information” on pages 166,
126 and 266, respectively, as well as the other financial and statistical information contained in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination
of our business, operations and prospects and the terms of the Issue, including the merits and risks involved. You
should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about specific implications on you of an investment in the
Issue.

Prospective investors should pay particular attention to the fact that our Company is incorporated under the laws
of India and is subject to a legal and regulatory environment, which may differ in certain respects from that of
other countries. This Draft Red Herring Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a
result of certain factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. For further details, see “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 21 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information in this chapter is derived from our Restated
Financial Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 as included in “Restated
Financial Information” on page 227 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Unless otherwise indicated, the industry and market related information in this section is derived from the report
titled “Industry Report on Chemicals Industry” dated July 17, 2025 prepared by CARE Analytics and Advisory
Private Limited (formerly known as CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited) (“CareEdge”), who was appointed
pursuant to an engagement letter dated April 10, 2025, entered into with our Company. We commissioned and
paid for the CareEdge Report for the purposes of confirming our understanding of the industry, specifically for
the purpose of the Issue. A copy of the CareEdge Report is made available on the website of our Company at
www.neochem.in. The data included in this section includes excerpts from the CareEdge Report and may have
been re-ordered by us for the purposes of presentation. Unless otherwise indicated, financial, operational,
industry and other related information derived from the CareEdge Report and included herein with respect to any
particular year refers to such information for the relevant calendar year. See “Certain Conventions, Use of
Financial Information and Market Data and Currency of Presentation” on page 18. “Certain sections of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus disclose information from the industry report which has been commissioned and
paid for by us exclusively connection with the Issue and any reliance on such information for making an
investment decision in the Issue is subject to inherent risk.” and “Industry Overview” on pages 51 and 126
respectively.

MATERIALITY

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been
considered to determine the materiality:

. Some events may have material impact quantitatively;
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Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively;
Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenue from the textile industry. Consequently, any material
decline in the performance of the textile sector, or our failure to sustain, grow, or efficiently manage
our sales within this sector, may materially and adversely affect our business operations, financial
condition and results of operations.

We are engaged in the business of manufacturing specialty performance chemicals. Our business
operations and financial performance are substantially reliant on sale of such chemicals to domestic
textile manufacturers and textile manufacturers located in countries such as Bangladesh, Australia,
Egypt, Vietnam, Singapore, Thailand, Indonesia, Uzbekistan Canada, Turkey, Ukraine and South Korea.

The textile industry is inherently cyclical and influenced by macroeconomic factors including, but not
limited to, consumer demand, consumer confidence, inflationary pressures, employment levels,
disposable income and demographic trends. The Indian textile specialty chemical market is fragmented
and unorganized.

This fragmentation has led to intense price competition and commoditization of several textile chemical
products. Although, we emphasize the development and sale of eco-friendly and sustainable chemicals
across the textile value chain, we cannot assure you that in the event of a market downturn, customers
will not shift to lower-cost alternatives offered by competitors. These and other market dynamics may
adversely impact the pricing and demand for our products, thereby materially affecting our business,
financial performance and operational results.

The revenue generated from the sale of textile specialty performance chemical products constituted
approximately 85.92%, 85.61%, and 88.00%, respectively, of our total revenue from operations for the
Financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. Our sales volumes,
profitability and liquidity are closely correlated with the demand for textile products, both within India
and international market. Any downturn or prolonged slowdown in the textile industry may result in a
material decline in the demand for our products, which could adversely affect our business operations,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company derives revenue from diversified customers. Our inability to acquire new customers or
loss of all or a substantial portion of any of our major customers, for any reason and/or continued
reduction of the business from them, could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our Company derives revenues from diversified customers. Based on Restated Financial Statements for
the financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024, and March 31, 2023, our revenue from top
one (1), top five (5) and top ten (10) customers are as follows:

Sr. Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
No. Amount % of our Amount % of our Amount % of our
(64 in revenue R in revenue (X in lakhs) revenue
lakhs) from lakhs) from from
operations operation operation
s s
1. Revenue from 1,178.86 14.01% 484.50 7.92% 522.09 10.83%
top one (1)
customer”
2. Revenue from 2,923.58 34.73% 1,517.55 24.82% 1,193.77 24.77%
top five (5)
customers”
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Sr. Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

No. Amount % of our Amount % of our Amount % of our
R in  revenue R in revenue (X in lakhs) revenue
lakhs) from lakhs) from from

operations operation operation
s s
3. Revenue from 3,804.10 45.19% 2,174.87 35.57% 1,784.09 37.02%
top ten (10)
customers”

* considers customers of our reselling agent viz., Neochem Specialties.

Our Company has an advantage due to its diversified customer base, however, this diversification may
not fully mitigate certain business risks. Our large customers may exert pressure on pricing or may seek
alternative suppliers, which could affect our revenue from operation and profitability. As a result, even
with diversification, we are exposed to risks such as the loss of major customers, reduction in order
quantity or longer payment cycles.

We do not maintain long-term contractual arrangements with the majority of our customers. As a
result, the loss of one or more key customers, or any significant reduction in their demand for our
products, could materially and adversely affect our business operations, financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows.

We generally do not enter into firm, long-term supply agreements with the majority of our customers.
Instead, our sales are typically governed by short-term purchase orders, which specify the unit price,
delivery schedule, and quantity of products to be supplied. These purchase orders are subject to
amendment or cancellation prior to final confirmation, and any such changes may adversely affect our
revenue, production planning and operational efficiency.

We supply a wide range of customized specialty performance chemical formulations across various
industries, such as textiles, homecare, personal care, industrial & institutional cleaning, water treatment,
construction, paints & coating, paper & pulp, rubber and specialty performance chemicals for dye &
pigments. Our ability to tailor products to specific customer requirements, while being a competitive
strength, also necessitates agile production planning. In the absence of firm quantity commitments, we
may face challenges in planning batch configurations, raw material procurement and capacity allocation,
which may adversely affect margins and operational efficiency.

While we do have dedicated customers and strive to acquire additional customers, we are exposed to the
risk that customers may not place orders, may place smaller than-expected orders, or may cancel or delay
existing orders. Such actions, particularly by significant customers, could reduce our sales volumes,
disrupt production schedules, and delay payments for our inventory. In such cases, we may be unable to
find alternative buyers for the surplus inventory or unused capacity, potentially resulting in financial
losses.

We also make key operational decisions, including production planning, staffing and resource allocation
based on projected customer demand. Variability in customer requirements, including shifts in demand
for specific product types, may impair our ability to accurately forecast demand, optimize manufacturing
capacity and maintain efficient production schedules. In anticipation of customer demand, we may incur
additional costs by increasing capacity or staffing levels, which could negatively impact our margins, if
orders are subsequently delayed, modified or cancelled.

Underutilization of the installed capacities at our Company may have an adverse impact on our
growth and future profitability.

As on March 31,2025, our Company has installed capacity of 22,000 MT for manufacturing specialty
performance chemicals, which are utilised to the extent of 41.82% in Fiscal 2025.

The details of the installed and capacity utilization of our Company for Fiscal 2025, Fiscal 2024 and
Fiscal 2023 are given in the table below:
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Fiscal Year Installed Capacity Actual Production Capacity Utilisation

(MT) MT)? (“o)?
Fiscal 2025 22,000 9,200.00 41.82%
Fiscal 2024 22,000 7,694.00 34.97%
Fiscal 2023 22,000 5,414.00 24.61%

s certified by Vishal Shah, Chartered Engineer, vide his certificate dated July 30, 2025

Historically, our Company has not been able to optimally utilize its production capacity. We cannot
assure that we will be able to utilise our commercial manufacturing facilities to their full capacity or up
to an optimum capacity and non-utilization of the same may lead to loss of profits or may result in losses,
and may adversely affect our business operations, financial condition and results of operations. Even the
use of the existing installed production capacity is also subject to several variables such as availability
of raw materials, power, water, proper working of machinery, order on hand, supply/demand, manpower,
etc.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from operations from domestic sales which exposes us
to risks specific to Indian geographies and market.

Based on Restated Financial Statements, our Company derived a significant portion of our revenue from
operations from domestic sales for the Fiscals 2025, 2024 and 2023 as set out below:

Particular Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
() () (1)
s Revenue Zelof Revenue Zeiof Revenue Zol0f
. revenue . revenue . revenue
(i from (i from (i from
Lakhs) 3 Lakhs) A Lakhs) .
operation operations operations
Domestic 7,692.88 91.39% 5,423.40 90.17% 4,197.87 91.85%
Export 724.39 8.61% 591.06 9.83% 372.68 8.15%
Total 8,417.27 100.00% 6,014.46 100.00% 4,818.84 100.00%

Historically, we derived significant proportion of our revenue from operations from domestic sales, with
a limited proportion of revenue derived from exports. This dependence on domestic sales exposes us to
risks associated with regional economic fluctuations, changes in domestic regulations and market
conditions specific to our country. A downturn in the domestic economy, increased competition or shifts
in local demand could adversely impact on our financial performance. Further, a limited international
exposure may prevent us from capitalising on growth opportunities in global markets and diversifying
risks associated with reliance on a single market. As a result, our revenue growth could be constrained
by domestic market conditions, which may also limit our ability to expand and diversify our customer
base.

We are required to adhere to quality standards in the manufacturing of our products. Our inability to
comply with such parameters may result in termination or loss of business from our customers which,
in turn, may have a material adverse effect on our business prospects and results of operations.

We are primarily engaged in the manufacturing and supply of specialty performance chemicals to
customers. Our products serve as raw materials in the production of various textile and garment washing,
home and personal care solutions, institutional and industrial cleaners, water treatment, paints and
coatings, paper and pulp, construction solutions, rubber and dyes and pigments. Given the nature of our
products and the industry in which we operate, our customers require product quality and delivery
timelines. Compliance with such quality standards is integral to our manufacturing processes. Any
deviation from such standards or any occurrence of product defects may result in cancellation of
customer orders. Similarly, failure to deliver products in the required quantities or within the stipulated
timelines may lead to order cancellations or non-renewal of contracts or purchase orders and could
adversely affect our reputation in the market.
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A significant increase in the cost of raw materials, particularly if not matched by a corresponding
increase in product pricing or revenue, could materially and adversely affect our profit margins and
overall financial performance. If we are unable to pass on these increased costs to our customers, it
may result in reduced profitability and negatively impact our results of operations and financial
condition.

Our primary operating expense comprises the cost of raw materials which are sourced from crude
derivatives, organic and plant-based derivatives, fine chemicals and silica based chemicals. For the
financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the cost of materials
consumed represented approximately 66.02%, 63.67%, and 61.76%, respectively of our revenue from
operations. We procure our raw materials through purchase orders, which necessitates forecasting of
supply and demand. Any failure to forecast such requirements may adversely affect our working capital,
business operations and financial results.

The supply and pricing of raw materials are inherently volatile and subject to numerous external factors
beyond our control, including but not limited to global demand and supply dynamics, macroeconomic
and geopolitical conditions, transportation and labor costs, natural disasters, and competitive pressures.
Despite the methodologies and assumptions employed, there are inherent uncertainties in estimating
these variables. Disruptions in supply, failure to meet delivery schedules or quality standards, or
discontinuation of supply by vendors may adversely impact our production timelines and, consequently,
our business and financial performance.

We cannot assure you that our suppliers will not experience capacity constraints, demand fluctuations,
or other operational issues that may result in shortages or delays in the supply of raw materials. In the
event of a significant or prolonged shortage, and if we are unable to secure alternative sources on
commercially reasonable terms, our ability to meet production schedules and fulfill customer orders may
be compromised, adversely affecting our sales, margins and customer relationships.

We have not made any long-term supply arrangement or agreement with our suppliers. In an
eventuality where our suppliers are unable to deliver us the required materials, at a competitive price,
in a time-bound manner it may have a material adverse effect on our business operations and
profitability.

We are dependent on third party suppliers for the procurement of raw materials, however, we have not
entered into any long-term supply arrangement or agreement for the same. Based on Restated Financial
Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, our
purchases from top one (1), five (5) and top ten (10) suppliers are as follows:

Sr. Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
No Amount % of our Amo.unt % of our Amo.unt % of our
(R in lakhs) purchases L purchase §SI) purchase
lakhs) lakhs)

1. Purchase from top 1,013.16 16.79% 1,077.17 25.90% 403.46 12.38%
one (1) supplier

2. Purchase from top 2,119.32 35.12% 1,911.25 45.96% 1,113.15 34.16%
five (5) suppliers

3. Purchase from top 2,908.95 48.21% 2,370.47 57.01% 1,649.88 50.63%

ten (10) suppliers

Although we have not experienced any significant disruption or delay in the sourcing of raw materials,
which resulted in delays in our business activities, we cannot assure that such disruptions or delay will
not occur and/or we shall continue to be able to source raw materials in a cost-effective manner. In the
absence of a long-term supply arrangement or agreement with the suppliers, we cannot assure that a
particular supplier will continue supplying raw materials to us in the future. Further, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to effectively manage relationships with our existing or new suppliers or
that we will be able to enter into arrangements with new suppliers at attractive terms or at all. If we fail
to successfully leverage our existing and new relationships with suppliers, our business and financial
performance could be adversely affected.
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10.

Our manufacturing facility situated in Moraiya, Ahmedabad is critical for our business and any
disturbance, slowdown or shutdown of our Moraiya manufacturing facility, may have an adverse
impact on our business, results of operations and financial conditions

Our sole manufacturing facility located in Moraiya, Ahmedabad, is integral to our business operations.
This facility has an installed capacity of 22,000 MTPA. Our business is dependent on our ability to
effectively manage our manufacturing facility, which is subject to various operating risks such as
breakdown or failure of equipment, power supply or processes, reduction or stoppage of water supply,
performance below expected levels of efficiency, obsolescence, natural disasters, industrial accidents
and the need to comply with the directives of relevant government authorities. As a result, any local
social unrest, natural disaster or breakdown of services and utilities in these areas could have a material
adverse effect on the business, financial position and results of our operations. While no such event has
happened which materially affect our business operations, we cannot assure you that no such event will
happen in future which may have any material impact on our business operations and financial position.

In addition to the above, if our manufacturing facility suffer losses as a result of any industrial accident,
we may be forced to shut down our manufacturing unit which could result in us being unable to meet
with our commitments, which will have an adverse effect on our business, results of operation and
financial condition. Further, any contravention of or non-compliance with the terms of various regulatory
approvals applicable to our manufacturing facility may also require us to cease or limit production until
such non-compliance is remedied to the satisfaction of relevant regulatory authorities. While we have
not faced any such event in past, we cannot assure you that we will not experience work disruptions in
the future resulting from any dispute with our employees or other problems associated with our
employees and the labor involved in our manufacturing unit, which may hinder our regular operating
activities and lead to disruptions in our operations, which could adversely affect our business, prospects,
financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

Our operations also require a significant amount and continuous supply of electricity, fuel, and water and
any shortage or non-availability of such utilities may adversely affect our operations. Production of
specialty chemicals, especially textile chemicals, requires large amount of water at various stages of
processing. Further, certain chemicals used in our production process are required to be stored at specific
temperatures, supported by continuous supply of electricity. Any interruption in the continuous supply
of water and electricity may negatively impact the properties of such chemicals and adversely affect the
quality of the final product manufactured by us, which may result in delays in delivery of our products
or non-delivery, resulting in loss of revenue and damage to our reputation or customer relationship. A
prolonged interruption of water or electricity supply can also result in production slowdown or
shutdowns; increased costs associated with restarting production and the loss of production in progress.
While no such event has happened which materially affect our business operations, we cannot assure
you that no such event will happen in future which may have any material impact on our business
operations and financial position.

Our operations can be adversely affected in case of industrial accidents at our manufacturing units.
Further, any fire or mishap or accidents of such nature at the Company's facilities could lead to
accident claims and damage and loss of property, inventory, raw materials, etc.

We operate in an inherently hazardous industry involving the research, development and manufacture of
products that require the handling of volatile, flammable and hazardous chemicals, processes, and by-
products. As such, we are subject to an extensive and increasingly stringent framework of environmental,
health and safety laws, regulations and standards. Although, we have availed public liability insurance
policy, we cannot assure you that we will be able to receive a claim from these policies, failing which
we will have to provide the compensation to the employees from our own resources. Our Company has
adopted adequate safety measures, we cannot assure you that, in the future no such cases will be instituted
against our Company, alleging that we were negligent or we did not provide adequate supervision
therefore, holding us liable for injuries that were suffered during the manufacture of our products. In the
event any such accidents take place in the manufacturing unit of our Company, we may get involved in
litigation or other proceedings, or be held liable in any litigation or proceedings, incur increased costs,
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12.

be subject to penalties, have our approvals and permits revoked or suffer a disruption in our operations,
any of which could adversely affect our business and results of operations. Moreover, the discovery of
currently unknown environmental conditions or issues may further increase our liabilities.

We are exposed to competition from both domestic and international manufacturers and new entrants
and consequent pricing pressures could have a material adverse effect on our business growth and
prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

The industry in which we operate is highly competitive and we face intense competition from the existing
domestic and international manufacturers with a significant market presence and new entrants. These
competitors offer a variety of products and utilize advanced technologies, which may impact our business
growth and results of operations. There exists a risk that our competitors may develop products that are
more cost-effective, technologically advanced or better aligned with market preferences than those
offered by us, potentially rendering our offerings obsolete or less competitive. Some of our competitors
possess superior financial strength, broader distribution networks and advanced technical and marketing
capabilities, enabling them to respond more effectively to market developments. If the products are
available at cheaper prices from existing manufacturers, it may pressurize us on pricing without
compromising product quality which may put strain on our profit margin.

Some of our competitors may increase their production capacities and target the same products as us. If
we do not maintain or gain sufficient market presence or are unable to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors, we may not be able to compete effectively with our competitors. Our ability to compete
effectively may be constrained by the following factors:

. Loss of key members of our management team and experienced employees (in particular, those
that have relationships with our customers) to our competitors;

. Our competitors may be able to procure funding for their operations at more favorable terms
than us;

. Our competitors may deploy more advanced technology; and

. Certain domestic or regional as well as international competitors may have a lower cost base
than ours.

While we have historically been able to conduct our business at competitive margins and on a cost-
effective basis, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so in the future. Some of our
competitors may have larger technical and financial resources, provide better pricing, or provide shorter
delivery times, larger customer base and may have greater market reach as compared to us. Also, our
ability to compete depends on a number of factors beyond our control, including the ability of our
competitors to attract, train, motivate and retain highly skilled technical employees which may adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We appoint contract labour for carrying out our operations and we may be held responsible for
payment of wages of such workers, if the independent contractors through whom such workers are
hired default on their payment obligations. Such obligations could have an adverse impact on our
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

In order to retain flexibility and control costs, we appoint independent contractors who in turn engage
contract labourers to perform certain ancillary operations at our manufacturing facilities which, inter alia,
includes assistance in loading and unloading, material handling and housekeeping.

As on June 30, 2025, we had 53 contract labourers at our Company who are not on our payrolls. The
number of contract labourers changes periodically based on the nature and extent of work contracted to
independent contractors. Although we do not engage these labourers directly, we may be held responsible
for any wage payments to be made to such labourers in the event of default by such independent
contractors, including any incorrect disclosure by such independent contractors with respect to the
applicability of the provision of the CLRA, as amended.

All contract labourers engaged at manufacturing facility of our Company are assured minimum wages
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14.

that are fixed by the state governments from time to time. Any upward revision of wages that may be
required by the state government to be paid to such contract labourers or offer of permanent employment
or the unavailability of the required number of contract labourers, may adversely affect our business
operations and financial results. In addition, we may also be liable for or exposed to litigations, sanctions,
penalties or losses arising from accidents or damage caused by our workers or contractors.

Our distribution network constitutes a critical component of our business operations. Any failure to
effectively manage, maintain or expand this network may materially and adversely affect our ability
to efficiently deliver our products, which in turn could have a negative impact on our business
performance, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely significantly on our network of distributors, who play a critical role in promoting our products,
enhancing brand visibility and facilitating market penetration. As of March 31, 2025, our pan-India
distribution network comprised over 50 distributors. We primarily operate under a business-to-business
model for distributing our products.

We do not maintain long-term contractual arrangements with our distributors, which may limit our ability
to effectively manage or retain them. Should our competitors offer more favourable terms, our
distributors may choose to discontinue distribution of our products in favor of competing offerings.
Further, we may face challenges in appointing suitable replacement distributors in a timely manner, or
at all.

Our distribution operations are also subject to risks beyond our control, including logistical disruptions,
improper handling of products, transportation delays, labour unrest and natural calamities, any of which
could result in delayed or lost deliveries. Furthermore, failure to maintain adequate inventory levels with
our distributors may adversely affect product availability and sales.

While we aim to expand our distribution network across diverse customer segments and geographies,
there can be no assurance that we will be able to identify or engage new distributors successfully. The
presence of exclusive arrangements between competitors and certain distributors may further restrict our
ability to grow our network, as we do not enter into exclusive distribution agreements. Any inability to
effectively manage or expand our distribution network may materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

There have been some instances of delay in the past with respect to filings of certain forms and
intimations under the Companies Act, 2013 with the RoC and revision of filing the forms under the
Companies Act. We cannot assure you that regulatory proceedings or actions will not be initiated
against us, and we will not be subject to any penalty imposed by the competent regulatory authority in
this regard, which may impact our financial condition and reputation.

In the past, there have been certain instances of delays in filing statutory forms as per the reporting
requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 with the ROC such as(i) Form ADT 1 for appointment of
Auditor (i) Form DIR 12 for change in designation of director (iii) Form PAS 3 for allotment of equity
shares (iii) Form DPT 3 for return of deposits (iv) Form INC 22 change in registered office (v) Form
CHG 1 for creation of charge (vi) Form MGT 7 for filing of the Annual Return. However, our Company
has paid the additional fees and the form has been duly filed. Further, there has been instance wherein
our Company has inadvertently not disclosed one of the Board Meeting in the annual return for fiscal
2022-23 and 2023-24. In order to address, our Company has filed an application dated August 1, 2025
with RoC, Ahmedabad for defecting the annual return for fiscal 2022-23 and 2023-24 and allowing our
Company to file the revised Form MGT-7 as a corrective step as per the guidance of the RoC. We have
also obtained a search report dated August 1, 2025 from M.K. Chokshi & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries, in relation to the said discrepancies and errors.

While we have not received any notice from the ROC, we cannot assure you that the RoC will not impose
a penalty or take any other action against our Company in this regard. Any actions, including legal
proceedings initiated by regulatory or statutory authorities on our Company or our directors/officers in
relation to the same, may have an adverse effect on our business and financial condition and reputation.
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Further, we cannot assure you that such non-compliances may not occur in the future. Therefore, if the
concerned authorities impose monetary penalties on us or take certain punitive actions against our
Company or its directors/ officers in relation to the same, our business and financial condition could be
adversely affected.

Further, we cannot assure you that such non-compliances will not occur in the future. Therefore, if the
concerned authorities impose monetary penalties on us or take certain punitive actions against our
Company or its directors/ officers in relation to the same, our business and financial condition could be
adversely affected.

If we are unable to obtain, maintain or renew our statutory and regulatory licenses, permits and
approvals required to operate our business, it may materially and adversely affect our business and
operations.

Our business operations require us to obtain and renew, from time to time, certain approvals, licenses,
registrations and permits under central, state and local government rules in India, generally for carrying
out our business. A majority of these approvals are granted for a limited duration. While we are required
to obtain a number of approvals for legally conducting our business operations and we shall submit the
applications for renewal of such approvals, as and when required, during the course of our business
operations, we cannot assure that we will be able to obtain approvals in respect of such applications, or
any application made by us in the future. For instance, our Company have applied for an amended
Consent to Establish (“CTE”) under the Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 enhancing
the permission to produce finished goods at our manufacturing facility in Ahmedabad up to 66,000
metric ton per annum. Further, there are certain approvals for which name change application has been
made. If we fail to obtain such registrations and licenses or renewals, in a timely manner, we may not
then be able to carry on certain operations of our business, which may have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. For details, see “Government and Other Statutory
Approvals” on page 285 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The approvals required by us are subject to numerous conditions and we cannot assure that these would
not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged noncompliance with any terms
or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action. Any failure by us to comply with the
applicable regulations in the future, or if the regulations governing our business are amended, we may
incur increased costs, be subject to penalties, have our approvals and permits revoked or suffer a
disruption in our operations, any of which could adversely affect our business. In case we fail to comply
with these requirements, or a regulator alleges non-compliance with these requirements, we may be
subject to penalties and proceedings may be initiated against us. The introduction of additional
government control or newly implemented laws and regulations, depending on the nature and extent
thereof and our ability to make corresponding adjustments, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial conditions.

These laws and regulations and the way in which they are implemented and enforced may change from
time to time and there can be no assurance that future legislative or regulatory changes will not have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. We have
submitted certain applications to various regulatory authorities seeking approvals and licenses. There
can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue such permits or approvals to us or that they
will be issued on time. Further, these permits, licenses and approvals are subject to several conditions
and we cannot assure you we will be able to continuously fulfill the conditions, which may lead to
cancellation, revocation or suspension of relevant permits/licenses/approvals. Failure by us to maintain
or obtain the required permits or approvals, may result in the interruption of our operations or delay or
prevent our expansion plans and may have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our success in large part depends upon our KMPs, SMP and other employees with technical expertise

and if we are unable to recruit and retain such qualified and skilled employees, our business and our
ability to operate or grow our business may be adversely affected.
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We operate in an industry where the quality of our people is a critical asset. We benefit significantly from
the vision, strategic guidance, experience and skills of several key members of our management team,
which include our Promoters, supported by the skills, efforts, expertise, continued performance and
motivation of our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Managerial Personnel.

Our success depends on the continued efforts of our Promoters, KMPs, SMP and other employees with
technical expertise, and the loss of any such senior employee(s) and the inability to find an adequate
replacement may impair our relationship with key supplier(s) and customer(s) and our level of technical
expertise, which may adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects. While there has been no instance in the last three Fiscals where the resignation of any
KMPs or SMPs had an adverse impact on our business, results of operations, cash flows or financial
conditions, we cannot assure that such instance will not arise in the future.

Our future success, among other factors, will depend upon our ability to continue to attract, train and
retain qualified personnel with suitable expertise, know-how and skills that are capable of helping us
develop formulations and support key customers and suppliers. We may therefore need to increase
compensation and other benefits in order to attract and retain personnel in the future, which may
adversely affect our business, financial conditions, cash flows and results of operations. The market for
qualified professionals is competitive and we may not continue to be successful in our efforts to attract
and retain qualified personnel. The table below sets forth employee benefits expense of our Company on
consolidated basis for the periods indicated:

Particulars Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
(R in lakhs except for percentages)
Employee benefit expenses 803.66 789.12 652.66
Employee benefit expenses as a percentage of 9.55% 12.91% 13.54%

revenue from operations

Our inability to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees could impair the success
of our operations. Our success also depends, in part, on key customers relationships established by our
senior management. If we were to lose these members of the senior management, we cannot assure that
we will be able to continue to maintain key relationships, which could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our inability to protect our trademarks could harm our business and competitive position.

Our Company has 40 trademarks and brand names, including those used for our specialty performance
chemical products, which are important to our reputation and customer recognition in industries such as
textile & garment washing, home & personal care (HPC), institutional and industrial cleaners, water
treatment, paints and coatings, paper and pulp, construction, rubber and dyes and pigments. Further, one
of our applications for logo is under objection. For further details, please refer “Government and
Statutory Approvals” on page 285 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

NEOCHEM

Our Company currently uses the logo Enabling Growth as its trademark for which application to
register the trademark has been made in the name of Neochem Bio Solutions Limited under the
Trademarks Act, 1999. If we are unable to register our trademark for various reasons or if any of our
unregistered trademark are registered in favour of or used by a third party in India or abroad, we may
not be able to claim registered ownership of such trademark and consequently, we may not be able to
seek remedies for infringement of those trademarks by third parties other than relief against passing off
by other entities, causing damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill in India and abroad.
Apart from this, any failure to register or renew the registration of our registered trademark may affect
our right to use such trademark in future. Further, our efforts to protect our intellectual property in India
and abroad may not be adequate and any third-party claim on any of our unprotected intellectual property
may lead to erosion of our business value and our reputation, which could adversely affect our operations.
Third parties may also infringe or copy our registered brand name in India and abroad which has been
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registered by us in India. We may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and
timely steps to enforce or protect our trademarks in India and abroad.

Further, if we do not maintain our brand name and identity, which we believe is one of the factors that
differentiates us from our competitors, we could lose our clients, which would negatively affect our
financial performance and profitability. Moreover, our ability to protect, enforce or utilize our brand
name is subject to risks, including general litigation risks. Furthermore, we cannot assure you that such
brand name will not be adversely affected in the future by actions that are beyond our control, including
client complaints or adverse publicity from any other source in India and abroad. Any damage to our
brand name, if not immediately and sufficiently remedied, could have an adverse effect on our business
and competitive position in India and abroad.

We are dependent on credit facilities from banks to fund our business operations. Any event where we
are unable to obtain, renew or enhance credit limits from the banks, or repay such facilities obtained,
would affect our financial position and credit standing.

We rely on various credit facilities, which include cash credit and term loans from Axis Bank Limited
and Axis Finance Limited, respectively to finance our operations. Our inability to renew existing credit
facilities, obtain additional financing or enhance current credit facilities due to changes in banking
regulations, adverse economic conditions or financial performance, could adversely affect our cash flow,
operations, and overall financial condition. A failure to secure necessary financing could constrain our
ability to meet financial obligations, fund future growth initiatives and manage day-to-day operations
effectively.

As on March 31, 2025, our total indebtedness (short-term as well as long-term) stood at 33,562.44 lakhs.
We may need to avail further loans in the future and if we are unable to do so, or unable to repay the
loans, it could potentially impact on our financial stability, operational capabilities and credit standing.
For further information, please refer section titled “Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

There are no outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors, except

for one appeal filed by our Company against a GST order. If there were to arise any future litigation
against our Company, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase
our expenses and current liabilities.

Our Company has filed an appeal before the Deputy Commissioner of State Tax, Ahmedabad,
challenging an order dated August 25, 2024, passed under Section 73 of the Central Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017, in relation to the alleged excess availment and utilization of input tax credit on B2B
supplies during the financial year 2019-20. Pursuant to the said order, a demand of X7.34 lakhs,
comprising tax of 33.57 lakhs, interest of 33.21 lakhs and penalty of %0.56 lakhs, has been raised. The
appeal is currently pending, and a pre-deposit of %0.36 lakhs has been made by our Company in
accordance with applicable provisions. Our Company has disputed the demand, asserting that the credit
claimed is fully reconciled with GSTR-2A/2B and backed by documentary evidence and that the order
was passed without adequate consideration of our submissions. Any adverse outcome in this proceeding
may have an impact on our financial statements and compliance position. Except for this, there are no
other tax or regulatory proceedings involving our Company, its Promoters or Directors.

If there were to arise any future litigation against our Company, we may need to make provisions in our
financial statements that could increase our expenses and current liabilities. In this regard, we may be
subject to penalties and regulatory actions including the suspension of our business. There can be no
assurance that these litigations will be decided in favour of our Company or in the favour of our Promoter
or Directors and such proceedings may divert management time and attention and consume financial
resources in their defence or prosecution. An adverse outcome in any of these proceedings may affect
our reputation, standing and future business, and could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our Company has negative cash flows from its operating activity, investing activity and financing
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activity, details of which are given below. Sustained negative cash flow could adversely impact our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company has reported certain negative cash flows in operating, investing and financing activities
in previous years as per the Restated Financial Statements, as set out below:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
Cash flow from operating activities 259.47 196.42 (74.18)
Cash flow from investing Activities (168.67) (785.84) (335.08)
Cash flow from financing Activities (120.41) 619.91 375.71

Cash flows of our Company are a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to
meet capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance
from external resources. There can be no assurances that cash flows will be positive in the future thereby
creating an adverse impact on our ability to meet working capital expenditure, repay loans without
raising finance from external resources. If our Company is not able to generate sufficient cash flows, it
may adversely affect our business and financial operations.

For further details, please see “Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial condition and Results
of Operations” and “Restated Financial Information” on page 266 and 227 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Our commercial performance is inherently linked to the market success of our customers’ products.
A decline in consumer demand for such products may result in a corresponding reduction in demand
for our offerings, which could materially and adversely affect our business operations and financial
condition.

Our products serve as raw materials in the manufacture of various end-use applications, including
textiles, detergents, paints and coatings and other specialty products. Accordingly, our commercial
performance and future growth are significantly dependent on the performance and market acceptance
of our customers’ products. The success of such end products is, in turn, contingent upon our customers’
ability to accurately anticipate and respond to evolving consumer preferences. We cannot assure you that
our customers will be able to do so in a timely or effective manner. Any decline in consumer demand for
the products in which our materials are used may materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have entered into and may, from time to time, continue to enter into, transactions with related
parties, including our members of the Promoter Group and Group Companies. While such
transactions are conducted in compliance with applicable laws and corporate governance norms,
there can be no assurance that these transactions, whether individually or in the aggregate, will not
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We have entered into certain related party transactions with our Promoters, members of the Promoter
Group and Group Companies. These transactions include, among other matters, remuneration paid, loans
taken/repaid, issuance of Equity Shares, payment of rent, purchase and sales of goods and payment of
commission. For further details, please refer “Restated Financial Information” on page 227 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus. We confirm that the transactions with related parties entered into by our
Company in the preceding three years, have been carried out at arms’ length price and are not prejudicial
to the interest of our Company. We may continue to enter into related party transactions in the ordinary
course of business. There is no assurance that such current or future transactions, whether individually
or in the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations. Moreover, transactions with related parties may give rise to potential conflicts of interest. We
cannot assure you that any disputes that may arise in connection with such transactions will be resolved
in our favor.

Our inability to procure and/or maintain adequate insurance cover in connection with our business
may adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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Our Company’s operations are subject to various risks and hazards inherent in the manufacturing
business. We have obtained insurance policies in relation to fire, burglary, group personal accident,
marine cargo, workmen compensation and vehicle insurance.

At present, the insurance policies of our Company provide for coverage against risks such as fire, theft,
burglary, workmen compensation, vehicles and accidents. However, there can be no assurance that any
claim under the insurance policies maintained by our Company will be honoured fully, in part or in time.
While our Company maintains insurance coverage in amounts consistent with industry norms, the said
insurance policies do not cover all risks, specifically risks such as loss of profits.

As on the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there have been no instances where the claims made
by the Company have exceeded the liability insurance coverage. The insurance policies maintained by
the Company are adequate to cover the identified risks.

There can be no assurance that our Company’s insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses in
respect of which the insurance had been availed. If our Company suffers a significant uninsured loss or
if the insurance claim in respect of the subject-matter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss
suffered by our Company significantly exceeds its insurance coverage, our Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. Further, there is
no assurance that the insurance premium payable by our Company will be commercially viable or
justifiable. For further details on the insurance policies availed by us, kindly refer “Our Business -
Insurance” on page 182 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Further, our insurance coverage expires from time to time. We apply for the renewal of our insurance
coverage in the normal course of our business, but we cannot assure that such renewals will be granted
in a timely manner, on commercially acceptable terms or at all. To the extent that we suffer loss or
damage for which we did not obtain or maintain insurance and which is not covered by insurance or
exceeds our insurance coverage or where our insurance claims are rejected, the loss would have to be
borne by us and our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Our business is subject to seasonal and cyclical volatility, which may lead to fluctuations in the sales
of our products and result in higher closing inventory positions during certain periods. These
fluctuations could adversely affect our financial performance and operational efficiency.

Our products are essential and used in the textile industry, where consumer demand is significantly
influenced by seasonal trends, festivals and cyclical buying patterns. Historically, we have
experienced higher sales volumes in the second half of the financial year, particularly during the festive
and wedding seasons, starting from October onwards. This includes major events such as diwali and
regional festivals. The following table illustrates the percentage of revenue generated in the second half
of the Fiscals 2025, 2024, and 2023:

Particulars Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023
o, (1) o

Amount o Amount oW Amount o

. revenue . revenue . revenue
i from e from (i from
lakhs) . lakhs) . lakhs) .
operations operations operations
Revenue from

Operations during
second half of the
Fiscal
As certified by the statutory auditors of the Company, M/s. Patel Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, vide
their certificate dated August 01, 2025.

4,722.92 56.11% 3,469.66 56.74% 2,210.63 45.87%

As aresult, the first half of the financial year typically reflects lower business activity, which may not be
indicative of our full-year performance. Any unexpected decline in demand during the peak season could
lead to elevated inventory levels, delayed liquidation and pressure on margins. Conversely, any supply
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chain disruptions or product unavailability during the high-demand period may result in lost sales
opportunities and customer attrition, potentially benefiting competitors. Further, our business is
vulnerable to pricing dynamics, timing of production and inventory planning. If sales during the peak
season do not meet expectations, excess inventory may reduce planned margins. These factors could
adversely affect our cash flows, financial condition and overall business operations.

We have working capital requirements, and the objects of the Issue include funding long-term working
capital requirements of our Company, which are based on certain assumptions and estimates. Any
failure in arranging adequate working capital for our operations may adversely affect our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial conditions.

Our business requires a working capital primarily due to the time gap between the purchase of raw
materials and collection of receivables from customers. We are also required to maintain adequate
inventory levels to meet production requirements as well as extend the credit period to customers in
accordance with industry practice. As on March 31, 2025, we have a sanctioned limit for working capital
of %1,800.00 lakhs from existing lenders. For further details, please refer “Financial Indebtedness” on
page 277 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The actual amount of our future working capital
requirements may differ from estimates as a result of, among other factors, unanticipated expenses,
fluctuations in raw material prices, economic conditions, growth in revenue, changes in the terms of our
financing arrangements, changes in the credit terms of customers and suppliers, inventory fluctuations,
additional market developments. Our sources of additional financing, required to meet our working
capital needs, may include the incurrence of debt in the form of additional working capital limits, the
issue of equity or debt securities or a combination of both. If we decide to raise additional funds through
the incurrence of debt, our interest and debt repayment obligations will increase, which may have a
significant effect on our profitability and cash flows. Our working capital requirements may increase if
the payment terms include reduced advance payments or longer payment schedules. Continued increases
in our working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. Our inability to meet our present working capital requirements or our enhanced working
capital requirements may have an adverse impact on our results of operation, business and financial
condition.

We may face challenges in expanding or scaling certain product categories and any such limitations
could impact our business prospects, financial condition, and results of operations.

We seek to grow our presence across various product categories by leveraging customer relationships,
optimizing distribution and enhancing product application capabilities. However, scaling or expanding
specific categories may be constrained by factors such as market dynamics, customer acceptance,
production capacity and the need for technical or operational adaptability. These challenges may include
delays in achieving commercial traction, limitations in reaching target geographies or evolving
competitive pressures. Any inability to successfully expand or scale product categories in line with
business objectives may result in sub-optimal utilization of resources, impact revenue generation and
affect overall profitability. If we are unable to achieve the desired level of growth or market penetration
in certain segments, it could materially and adversely affect our business prospects, financial condition
and results of operations.

Failure to maintain required quality accreditations and certifications may adversely affect our brand
reputation, customer confidence, and market credibility, which could, in turn, have a material adverse
impact on our business operations and financial performance.

We are committed to producing eco-friendly and sustainable chemical products that assist our customers
in reducing their environmental impact in a cost-effective manner. We have developed a range of
environmentally sustainable products and have obtained various quality assurance certifications attesting
to our compliance with internationally recognized standards.

Our Company is accredited with recognized process certifications such as ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001

and ISO 45001 and product certifications include ZDHC Level 3 and GOTS 7.0. In the future, we may
be unable to maintain certain accreditations or certifications, or they may lapse upon expiry, and there

44



28.

29.

can be no assurance that we will be able to renew them in a timely manner or at all. For further details,
refer to “Government and Other Statutory Approvals” on page 285 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Failure to renew these certifications in a timely manner may adversely affect our brand reputation and
credibility. Any significant reputational damage resulting from loss or non-renewal of such accreditations
could materially impair our ability to attract and retain customers, thereby adversely impacting our
business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

Any dispute with employees or shortage of skilled or unskilled labours could affect our ability to meet
the quality standards and timely completion of orders.

The smooth functioning of our business operations is significantly dependent on the continued cordial
relationship with our employees, including both skilled and unskilled personnel, as well as contract
labourers engaged at our manufacturing and operational facilities. As of June 30, 2025, we employed 70
employees and engaged approximately 53 contract labourers across our facilities located at Moraiya,
Ahmedabad. While we have not experienced any material labour unrest or industrial disputes in the past,
there can be no assurance that such events will not occur in the future. Any deterioration in our
relationship with our employees, or failure to effectively address their grievances, may result in work
stoppages, strikes, slowdowns or other forms of industrial action. Such disruptions could adversely
impact our ability to meet production schedules, maintain quality standards and fulfil customer orders in
a timely manner, thereby affecting our reputation and customer relationships.

Further, our operations are reliant on the availability of adequately trained and skilled manpower. In the
event of shortage of skilled labour, whether due to increased competition for such resources, migration,
demographic shifts or other external factors, we may face challenges in maintaining operational
efficiency and quality standards. Additionally, any increase in labour costs or changes in applicable
labour laws and regulations may result in higher operating expenses and adversely affect our profitability.
If we are unable to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel, or if we experience significant
disruptions in our workforce, our business operations, financial condition and results of operations could
be materially and adversely affected.

There are certain instances of delays in payment of statutory dues. Any delay in payment of statutory
dues or non-payment of statutory dues in dispute may attract financial penalties from the respective
government authorities, which may have an adverse impact on our financial condition and cash flows.

Our Company is required to pay certain statutory dues including in relation to our Company’s employees
including the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and professional
taxes. The table below sets out details of the delays in statutory dues payable by our Company for the
years indicated:

The table below sets out details of statutory dues paid by the Company during the Financial Years 2025,
2024 and 2023:

(% in lakhs)
Nature of payment Financial Financial Financial
Year 2025 Year 2024 Year 2023
Provident fund 37.39 46.53 34.10
Employee state insurance Corporation (ESIC) 1.43 2.05 2.23
Professional tax employees 1.54 1.93 1.71
Goods and services tax 254.53 154.74 102.65
Taxes deducted or collected at source 153.69 120.61 66.17
Total 448.57 325.87 206.86

Further, the table below sets out the number of permanent employees for which employment-related
statutory dues were applicable during the Financial Years 2025, 2024 and 2023:
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Nature of payment Financial Financial Financial

Year 2025 Year 2024 Year 2023
Provident Fund 68 81 76
Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) 68 81 76
Professional Tax Employees 68 81 76

The table below sets out details of instances of delays in payment of statutory dues during the Financial
Years 2025, 2024 and 2023:

(% in lakhs)

Nature of Payment Financial Year Financial Year Financial Year
2025 2024 2023
Provident Fund 2.80 0.00 2.62
Employee state Insurance Corporation (ESIC) 0.09 0.18 0.00
Professional tax employees 2.80 0.00 2.62
Goods and Services Tax 202.58 29.07 4.50
Taxes deducted or collected at source 123.17 66.64 4.26
Total 331.44 95.89 13.99

There has been some delay in filing provident fund returns, professional tax, labour welfare fund charges,
goods and service tax and taxes deducted or collected at source, and it has been rectified by filing the
respective returns with late fees and applicable interest as mandated by respective law / act.

The delay in payment of the aforesaid statutory dues were on account of oversight by the accounts team
and an administrative overview, however the same has been subsequently paid. The Company is taking
steps to adhere to the timelines and to ensure that such delays do not take place in the future. The
Company has also implemented internal controls to track the compliances required, due dates and the
actual date of compliances on a regular basis to ensure such delays are prevented in future. There can be
no assurance that such delays may not arise in future. This may lead to financial penalties from respective
government authorities which may have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and cash
flows.

Any delays and/or defaults in customer payments could result in an increase in working capital
requirements and/or reduce our Company’s profits, thereby affecting our operation and financial
condition.

We are exposed to the risk of payment delays and/or defaults by our customers, which can significantly
impact on our financial position and performance. Our financial health is closely tied to the
creditworthiness of our customers, and any delays in payments may require additional working capital
investments. We cannot assure that all or any payments due from our customers will be received
immediately or in full.

If a customer defaults on payments for an order where we have invested substantial resources, or if an
order is delayed, cancelled, or does not proceed to completion, it could materially and adversely affect
our financial condition and operational results. For our Company, outstanding trade receivables were
%2,527.69 Lakhs, %1,673.79 Lakhs, and 1,416.13 Lakhs for the FY 2024-25, 2023-24 and 2022-23,
respectively and the trade receivable days were 116 days, 100 days and 107 days for the Fiscals 2025,
Fiscal 2024 and Fiscal 2023, respectively. For further information, please see “Objects of the Issue” on
page 103 of this Draft Red herring Prospectus.

There is no assurance that customers will consistently meet their payment obligations in a timely manner,
or at all, particularly if they face financial difficulties, a decline in their business performance, or adverse
changes in the global economic environment. Such circumstances could adversely affect our liquidity,
results of operations, and overall financial condition.

We are subject to risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations which may adversely impact our results
of operations and cashflows
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While our reporting currency is Indian Rupee, we also transact some of our business in other currencies,
primarily in U.S. Dollars. We rely on prevailing foreign exchange rate for the export of our products. We
are, therefore, exposed to exchange rate fluctuations due to the revenue that we receive, that are
denominated in currencies other than the Indian Rupee.

Further, we do not hedge our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and as a result, our operations,
cash flows and financial performance could be adversely affected in case these currencies fluctuate
significantly. We may periodically be required to make provisions for foreign exchange differences in
accordance with accounting standards. For further details see “Restated Financial Information” on page
227 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. In addition, the policies of the RBI may also change from time
to time, which may limit our ability to effectively hedge our foreign currency exposures and may have
an adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flows. Any such losses on account of foreign
exchange fluctuations may adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows. Certain markets in
which we sell our products may be subject to foreign exchange repatriation and exchange control risks,
which may result in either delayed recovery or even nonrealization of revenue.

In the event that any of our products are alleged or determined to have caused, or are perceived to
have caused, adverse side effects, whether substantiated or not, such occurrences may materially and
adversely affect our reputation, customer confidence, revenue generation and overall profitability.

We are engaged in the development, manufacture and marketing of a broad portfolio of specialty
performance chemicals, which are primarily utilized as raw materials in various end-use industries, such
as textile & garment washing, home & personal care (HPC), institutional and industrial cleaners, water
treatment, paints and coatings, paper and pulp, construction, rubber and dyes and pigments. In the event
that products manufactured by our customers, utilizing our specialty performance chemicals, are alleged
or perceived to cause significant adverse effects to end-users, we may be exposed to a range of adverse
consequences. These may include but are not limited to a substantial decline in demand for and sales of
the affected products, product recalls or market withdrawals, suspension or revocation of regulatory
approvals pertaining to our manufacturing facility, reputational harm, and exposure to litigation or
regulatory investigations, which may result in financial liabilities, penalties or sanctions. Such events,
whether substantiated or based on perception, could materially and adversely affect our reputation,
revenue streams and overall profitability.

We are dependent on third-party transportation providers for the supply and distribution of our
products. Any failure or delay in such transportation and logistics arrangements could materially
affect our business, our operations and financial condition.

Our business requires smooth supply and transportation of our raw materials as well as our finished
goods. We are dependent on third-party transportation and logistics providers for various forms of
transportation. Though our business has not experienced any major disruptions due to transportation
strikes in the past, any future disruption in transportation services may have an adverse effect on our
business.

We do not have formal contractual relationships with such transportation or logistic companies and
freight forwarders. Transportation strikes may also have an adverse effect on supplies and deliveries to
and from our customers and suppliers. In addition, products may be lost or damaged in transit for various
reasons including theft, occurrence of accidents or natural disasters. This may lead to a delay in delivery
of our products which may also affect our business and the results of our operations negatively. Though
such material events have not taken place in the past, any recompense received from insurers or third-
party transportation providers may be time-consuming and insufficient to cover the cost of any delays
and further may not be able to repair our relationships with our affected customers. We may also be
affected by an increase in fuel costs and an increase in freight charges that may be levied by our third -
party transportation providers. Any such adverse event or increase in costs could have an adverse effect
on our business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

In the event we are unable to effectively sustain, manage or scale our growth, such failure may
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materially and adversely impact our business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

We have experienced substantial growth over the past three fiscal years. Specifically, revenue from
operations increased at a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of 32.16%, EBITDA grew ata CAGR
of 76.10%, and profit after tax rose at a CAGR of 168.78% from Fiscal 2023 to Fiscal 2025. However,
there can be no assurance that such growth will continue at the same rate or at all. The continued success
of our business is contingent upon the effective execution of our business and growth strategies.

Our growth strategy includes, inter alia, the following key initiatives:

(a) strengthen our presence across end-user application industries;

(b) continuous development of innovative performance chemistries and sustainable solutions;
(©) continued focus on expansion of geographical presence; and

(d) leverage existing strategic collaborations and partnerships to diversify end user industries

Any failure to effectively manage growth or to execute our business strategies may materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Furthermore, as our
Company scales and diversifies its product offerings, it may encounter operational inefficiencies, delays,
and increased costs or quality issues, which could further impact performance. Any inability to support
such growth may materially and adversely impact on our long-term prospects.

Our Promoters have mortgaged personal properties, provided personal guarantees and co-borrowing
support for our secured loans. Revocation of these may adversely impact on our business, financials,
and prospects.

Our Promoters have mortgaged their personal properties and provided personal guarantees for our
borrowings to secure our loans. Further, our Promoters are acting as co-borrowers for term loans availed
by our Company. If any of these guarantees are revoked, our lenders may require alternative guarantees
or collateral or cancellation of such facilities, entailing repayment of amounts outstanding under such
facilities. If we are unable to provide alternative guarantees satisfactory to our lenders, we may need to
seek alternative sources of capital which may not be available to us on commercially reasonable terms
or at all, or to agree to more onerous terms under our financing agreements, which may limit our
operational flexibility. Accordingly, our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows
and prospects may be adversely affected by the revocation of all or any of the personal guarantees
provided by our Promoters in connection with our Company’s borrowings.

The failure to effectively expand our operations into international markets may hinder our growth
prospects and could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our Company considers expansion into international markets such as parts of Oceania, Southeast East
Asia, Central Asia, African and Middle Eastern countries, Far Western countries to be a critical
component of its long-term growth strategy. However, successful entry and operation in such markets
necessitate increased managerial oversight and allocation of resources to adapt our products to the
specific legal and regulatory requirements of each region.

In connection with the expansion of our operations into international markets, our Company may be
subject to various risks, including but not limited to:

(a) legal and regulatory restrictions, and inconsistencies across different jurisdictions;

(b) heightened competition from established market participants;

() foreign exchange controls that may limit repatriation of profits;

(d) political and economic instability in target markets;

(e) operational challenges arising from geographical distance, language barriers and cultural
differences;

® fluctuations in currency exchange rates; and

(2) increased costs associated with international operations.
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These risks may adversely impact our ability to execute our expansion plan in international market which
in turn could materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

We currently avail benefits under certain schemes, which are subject to the fulfilment of specified
obligations and criteria. Any failure on our part to meet such obligations or fulfil the criteria may
result in the withdrawal or denial of these benefits, which could materially and adversely affect our
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

We avail benefits under incentives to industries scheme under District Industrial Center, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat. The benefits under this scheme are subject to certain eligibility criteria enumerated in the
provisions under the said scheme. Failure to fulfill such obligations or fulfil such criteria may result in a
liability to repay the Government an amount equivalent to the benefits availed by us under the schemes,
along with applicable interest. Any reduction, withdrawal, or our inability to comply with the conditions
prescribed under these schemes may materially and adversely affect our business operations, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have certain contingent liabilities which may adversely affect our financial condition.

Our Company had the following contingent liabilities for the last three Fiscals:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars As at March As at March As at March
31, 2025 31,2024 31,2023

(a) Contingent Liabilities

Claims  against company  not - - -
acknowledged as debt

Tax matters in dispute under appeal 7.34 7.34 -
Dispute in relation to payment of wages - - -
Bank guarantees for Performance, - - -
Earnest Money & Security Deposit

(b) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts - - -
remaining to be executed on Capital

Accounts and not provided for

In the event that any of these contingent liabilities materialize, our financial condition may be adversely
affected. For further information, please refer chapter titled “Restated Financial Information — Annexure
1V - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments” on page 261 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

If we are unable to raise additional capital, our business, operations, prospects or financial results
may be materially and adversely affected.

We will continue to incur significant expenditure in maintaining and growing our existing business. We
cannot assure that we will have sufficient capital resources for our current operations or any future
expansion plans that we may have. While we expect our cash flow from operations to be adequate to
fund our existing commitments, our ability to incur any future borrowings is dependent upon the success
of our operations. Our ability to arrange financing and the costs of capital of such financing are dependent
on numerous factors which, inter alia, includes general economic and capital market conditions, credit
availability from banks, investor confidence, the continued success of our operations and other laws that
are conducive to our raising capital in this manner. Any unfavorable change to terms of borrowing may
materially and adversely affect our cash flows, operations, prospects or financial results. If we decide to
meet our capital requirements through debt financing, we may be subject to certain restrictive covenants.
If we are unable to raise adequate capital in a timely manner and on acceptable terms, or at all, our
business, operations, prospects or financial results could be materially and adversely affected.

Any failure or disruption in our information technology systems, or our inability to effectively adapt
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to evolving technological advancements, may materially and adversely affect our business operations.

We use information technology systems to enhance our performance and efficiency. We use third party
software, Microsoft Office suite, Tally ERP accounting software for maintaining accounting records and
other reporting purposes. We believe that this system allows us to streamline our processes while
enhancing our monitoring and control functions.

These systems are susceptible to disruptions arising from events such as fire, power outages,
telecommunications failures, natural disasters, unauthorized access and other unforeseen incidents.
Effective mitigation of such disruptions depends on the responsiveness and diligence of our personnel
and third-party service providers. Further, our systems and electronically stored proprietary data are
vulnerable to risks such as cyberattacks, malware, hacking and other forms of unauthorized access or
tampering. Such failures may result in operational delays, data loss, security breaches or interruptions in
service delivery, which could impair our ability to conduct business efficiently and impact our financial
condition and results of operations. Any such breach could compromise sensitive information, including
product formulations and development data, potentially resulting in operational interruptions, increased
costs, reputational harm and exposure to legal liabilities.

Failure to adapt to technological advancements or to maintain the integrity and functionality of our
information systems may adversely affect our competitiveness, increase operational costs and materially
impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Upon completion of the Issue, our Promoters will continue to exercise significant control over our
Company, including the ability to influence or determine the outcome of matters requiring
shareholders’ approval.

Upon completion of the Issue, our Promoters shall continue to retain approximately [®]% of the issued
and paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company on a post-Issue basis. Consequently, the Promoters
shall continue to exercise substantial influence over matters requiring shareholders’ approval. This
includes, but is not limited to, the appointment of directors to the Board, approval of significant corporate
actions at both Board and shareholder meetings, issuance of Equity Shares, declaration of dividends,
approval of business strategies, mergers and acquisitions, formation of joint ventures or strategic
alliances, amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of Association and the assignment or transfer
of our interests in any of its licenses. There can be no assurance that the interests of the Promoters will
always align with those of the other shareholders or our Company. Any divergence in interests may result
in conflicts that could materially and adversely affect our ability to implement its business strategies or
conduct its operations effectively.

If we are unable to establish and maintain an effective internal controls and compliance system, our
business and reputation could be adversely affected.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal measures commensurate with the
size and complexity of operations. There have been no material instances of failure to maintain effective
internal controls and compliance systems in the three preceding Fiscals but we are exposed to operational
risks arising from the potential inadequacy or failure of internal processes or systems, and our actions
may not be sufficient to ensure effective internal checks and balances in all circumstances.

We take reasonable steps to maintain appropriate procedures for compliance and disclosure and to
maintain effective internal controls over our financial reporting so that we produce reliable financial
reports and prevent financial fraud. Any lapses in judgment or failures that result from human error can
affect the accuracy of our financial reporting, resulting in a loss of investor confidence.

As we continue to grow, there can be no assurance that there will be no instances of non-compliances
with statutory requirements and no potential inadequacy or failure of internal processes or systems which
may subject us to regulatory action, including monetary penalties, which may adversely affect our
business and reputation.
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We are subject to the risk of fraud, theft, embezzlement by our employees and customers, employee
negligence or similar incidents may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Our business operations may be subject to incidents of theft or damage to inventory in transit, prior to
or during stocking in warehouse. Our manufacturing facility is equipped with comprehensive CCTV
surveillance, covering all areas to ensure thorough monitoring and enhanced security. While we have
not experienced any instance of theft, fraud, employee negligence and resultant loss in the past, the
business may encounter some inventory loss on account of employee theft and general administrative
error, in the future. While we have obtained the anti — burglary insurance policy, there can be no
assurance that we will not experience any fraud, theft, employee negligence, security lapse, loss in transit
or similar incidents in the future, which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition. In addition, losses due to theft, fire, breakage or damage caused by other casualties, theft of
confidential information such as manufacturing processes, customers and product formulations, could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Certain immovable properties are held by us are on leasehold basis. Failure to renew leases or find
alternatives could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operational
performance.

Our registered office, certain branch offices and warehousing facility, are held on a leasehold basis from
our Promoters and Promoter Group or third parties. These lease agreements are subject to periodic
renewal.

In the event we are unable to renew one or more of these leases on commercially reasonable terms, we
may face operational disruptions or may be compelled to vacate such premises, which could result in
significant relocation or expansion costs. Furthermore, the terms of these lease agreements may impose
certain operational restrictions, including but not limited to, the requirement to obtain the lessor’s prior
consent for structural modifications, subletting, assignment, transfer or encumbrance of the leased
premises. Such conditions may limit our operational flexibility and adversely affect our business
operations.

For further details related to our properties, please see “Our Business - Properties” on page 186 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The declaration and payment of dividends in the future is subject to the discretion of our Board and
will depend upon a number of factors, including but not limited to, our earnings, financial position,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure plans and the terms and conditions of any
restrictive covenants contained in our financing agreements.

Our ability to declare and distribute dividends in the future shall be contingent upon a number of factors,
including but not limited to, our profitability, financial position, liquidity, working capital requirements,
capital expenditure plans and any restrictive covenants stipulated under existing or future financing
agreements. Any decision regarding the declaration and payment of dividends shall be subject to the
discretion of the Board and shall require subsequent approval of the shareholders, in accordance with
applicable laws. Such decisions will be based on various considerations deemed relevant by the Board
and the shareholders at the time, which may include, inter alia, our projected earnings, financial health,
operational needs, strategic objectives and any contractual obligations. We may, at our discretion, elect
to retain all or a portion of our earnings to support business growth and expansion initiatives, and
consequently, may not declare dividends on the Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that dividends
will be declared or paid in any future period.

Certain sections of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus disclose information from the industry report
which has been commissioned and paid for by us exclusively connection with the Issue and any
reliance on such information for making an investment decision in the Issue is subject to inherent
risk.
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This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains information from an industry report titled “Industry
Research Report on Chemicals Industry” (“CareEdge Report™) dated July 17, 2025 prepared by CARE
Analytics and Advisory Private Limited (formerly known as CARE Risk Solutions Private Limited), an
independent third-party research agency, commissioned and paid for by us, exclusively for the purpose
of inclusion in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The Industry Report is available on the website of our
Company at www.neochem.in Our Company, our Promoters and our Directors are not related to CARE.
Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates and may
no longer be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications may also base their
information on estimates, projections, forecasts and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect. The data
used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation and may also not
be comparable. While we have assumed responsibility for the contents of the report and have taken
reasonable care in reproduction of the information, we make no representation or warranty, express or
implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of such facts and statistics. Further, the Industry Report is
not a recommendation to invest/disinvest in any company covered in the Industry Report. Accordingly,
prospective investors should not place undue reliance on or base their investment decision solely on this
information.

In view of the foregoing, prospective investors may not be able to seek legal recourse for any losses
resulting from undertaking any investment in the Issue pursuant to reliance on the information in this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus based on, or derived from, the Industry Report. Prospective investors
should consult their own advisors and undertake an independent assessment of information in this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus based on, or derived from, the Industry Report before making any investment
decision regarding the Issue. For further details, kindly refer “Industry Overview” on page 126 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objects
of the Issue. Further we have not identified any alternate source of financing the Objects of the Issue.
Any shortfall in raising/meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans, business operations
and financial condition.

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, we have not made any alternate arrangements for
meeting our capital requirements for the set out in the Objects of the Issue. We generally meet our capital
requirements through owned funds, debt and internal accruals. Any shortfall in our net owned funds,
internal accruals and our inability to raise debt in future would result in us being unable to meet our
capital requirements, which in turn will negatively affect our financial condition and results of
operations. Further, we have not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay
on our part to raise money from this issue or any shortfall in the net issue proceeds may delay the
implementation schedule and could adversely affect our growth plans. For further details, please refer to
the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 103 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company has availed unsecured loans which are repayable on demand. Any demand from
lenders for repayment of such unsecured loans, may affect our cash flows

As on March 31, 2025, our Company has unsecured loans amounting to ¥328.69 lakhs from related
parties and others that are repayable on demand to them. Such loans are not repayable in accordance
with any agreed repayment schedule and may be recalled by the relevant lenders at any time. Any such
unexpected demand or accelerated repayment may have a material adverse effect on the business, cash
flows and financial condition. For further details of unsecured loans of our Company, see chapter titled
“Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The average cost of acquisition of Equity shares by our Promoters may be lower than the Issue price.
The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares for our Promoters may be lower than the Issue Price.

The details of the average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares held by our Promoters as on the date of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is set out below:
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Sr. Name of Promoters No. of Equity Average Cost of

No. Shares held Acquisition per equity
share (in 3)™*
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 93,41,675 6.00
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 10,80,625 2.52

s certified by Patel Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated August 01,
2025.
# Adjusted for bonus shares issued in ratio of 3:4 on July 05, 2025.

For more details regarding weighted average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters, see
“Summary of the Issue Document” on page 23 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

We have presented certain supplemental information of our performance and liquidity which is not
prepared under or required under Indian GAAP

We have included certain financial and operational measures in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, which
we believe to be non-GAAP financial measures (“Non-GAAP Measures™) and KPIs, in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. We compute and disclose such KPIs relating to our operations and
financial performance as we consider such information to be useful measures of our business and
financial performance, and because such measures are frequently used by securities analysts, investors
and others to evaluate the operational performance of companies such as us. These KPIs may not be
computed on the basis of any standard methodology that is applicable across industry and therefore may
not be comparable to financial and operational measures, and industry-related statistical information of
similar nomenclature that may be computed and presented by other companies pursuing similar business.

Further, while after listing of the Equity Shares, we will continue to disclose the KPIs in accordance with
the applicable laws, however, as the industry in which we operate continues to evolve, the measures by
which we evaluate our business may change. Our internal systems and tools have a number of limitations,
and our methodologies or assumptions that we rely on for tracking these metrics may also change over
time, which could result in unexpected changes to our metrics, including the metrics we publicly
disclose, or our estimates of our category position. In addition, if the internal tools we use to track these
measures under-count or overcount performance or contain algorithmic or other technical errors, the data
and/or reports we generate may not be accurate. We calculate measures using internal tools, which are
not independently verified by a third party. Any real or perceived inaccuracies in such metrics may harm
our reputation and adversely affect our stock price, business, results of operations, and financial
condition. Further, Non-GAAP measures presented in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is a
supplemental measure of our performance and liquidity that is not required by, or presented in
accordance with, Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS, U.S. GAAP or any other GAAP. Further, these Non-
GAAP Measures are not a measurement of our financial performance or liquidity and should not be
considered in isolation or construed as an alternative to cash flows, profit for the years or any other
measure of financial performance or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability
or cash flows generated by operating, investing or financing activities derived in accordance with Ind
AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS, U.S. GAAP or any other GAAP. In addition, these Non-GAAP Measures are
not standardized terms, hence a direct comparison of these Non-GAAP Measures between companies
may not be possible. Other companies may calculate these Non-GAAP Measures differently from us,
limiting its usefulness as a comparative measure. Although such Non-GAAP Measures are not a measure
of performance calculated in accordance with applicable accounting standards, our Company’s
management believes that they are useful to an investor in evaluating us as they are widely used measures
to evaluate a company’s operating performance.

ISSUE RELATED RISK FACTORS
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The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and the Issue Price,
price to earnings ratio and market capitalization to revenue multiple based on the Issue Price of our
Company, may not be indicative of the market price of our Company on listing or thereafter.
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The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and will be determined
by our Company in consultation with the BRLMs. The relevant financial parameters based on which the
Price Band was determined were disclosed in the advertisement that was issued for the publication of
the Price Band. Further, the Issue Price of the Equity Shares is proposed to be determined on the basis
of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares offered through the book-building process
prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and certain quantitative and qualitative factors as set out
in the section “Basis for the Issue Price” on page 114 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and the Issue
Price, multiples and ratios may not be indicative of the market price of our Company on listing or
thereafter.

Prior to the Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares, and an active trading market
on the Stock Exchanges may not develop or be sustained after the Issue. Listing does not guarantee that
a market for the Equity Shares will develop, or if developed, the liquidity of such market for the Equity
Shares.

The market price of the Equity Shares may be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among
other factors, variations in our operating results, market conditions specific to the industry we operate
in, developments relating to India, announcements by third parties or governmental entities of significant
claims or proceedings against us, volatility in the securities markets in India and other jurisdictions,
variations in the growth rate of financial indicators, variations in revenue or earnings estimates by
research publications, and changes in economic, legal and other regulatory factors. As a result, we cannot
assure you that an active market will develop, or sustained trading will take place in the Equity Shares
or provide any assurance regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.
Further, the market price of the Equity Shares may decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you
that you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price.

Our funding requirements and the proposed deployment of Net Proceeds have not been appraised by
a financial institution or a bank or any other independent agency and deployment of funds raised
through this Issue shall not be subject to monitoring by any monitoring agency.

We propose to use the Net Proceeds for the purposes described in “Objects of the Issue” on page 103 of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Our funding requirements are based on management estimates and
our current business plans and have not been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other
independent agency. The deployment of the Net Proceeds will be at the discretion of our management of
our Company and will not be subject to monitoring by any independent agency but subject to the
provisions of applicable laws. Our funding requirements are based on our current business plan and may
vary based on various factors some of which are beyond our control, such as interest rate fluctuations,
changes in input cost, changes in terms of purchase orders and other financial and operational factors
and consequently, the funding requirement and the utilisation of proceeds from the Issue may also
change. Accordingly, prospective investors in the Issue will need to rely upon our management’s
judgment with respect to the use of proceeds. If we are unable to deploy the proceeds of the Issue in a
timely or an efficient manner, it may affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In the event of any variation in actual utilisation of the Net Proceeds, any increased fund deployment for
a particular activity may be met from funds earmarked from any other activity and/or from our internal
accruals. Further, any such revision in the estimates may require us to revise our projected expenditure,
which may have a bearing on our profitability.

Since the size of the Issue is less than 35,000 lakhs, we need not to appoint a monitoring agency to
oversee the deployment of funds raised through this Issue. The deployment of funds raised through this
Issue is hence, at the discretion of the management and will not be subject to monitoring by any
independent agency. The Board of Directors or Board of Directors of our Company through the Audit
Committee will monitor the utilization of the Issue proceeds. Any inability on our part to effectively
utilize the Issue proceeds could adversely affect our financials.

Any variation in the utilisation of our Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
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shall be subject to certain compliance requirements, including prior Shareholders’ approval.

We propose to utilise the Net Proceeds from the Issue towards (i) Funding the long-term working capital
requirements of our Company; (ii) Repayment, in full or in part, of certain borrowings availed by our
Company; and iii) General Corporate Purposes. For further details of the proposed objects of the Issue,
please see “Objects of the Issue” on page 103 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. We cannot determine
with any certainty if we would require the Net Proceeds to meet any other expenditure or fund any
exigencies arising out of the competitive environment, business conditions, economic conditions or other
factors beyond our control. We have not entered into any definitive agreements and do not have any
definite and specific commitments towards the aforementioned purposes for which our Company intends
to use the Net Proceeds. The planned use of the Net Proceeds is based on current conditions and is subject
to changes in external circumstances, costs, other financial conditions or business strategies. In
accordance with Section 13(8) and 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, any variation in the planned use of
the Net Proceeds would require shareholders’ approval by passing a special resolution and our Promoters
will be required to provide an exit opportunity to the Shareholders who do not agree to such proposal to
vary the objects, at a price and manner in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations and may involve
considerable time or cost overrun and in such an eventuality it may adversely affect our operations or
business. In the event of any such circumstances that require us to undertake variation in the disclosed
utilization of the Net Proceeds, we may not be able to obtain the shareholders’ approval in a timely
manner, or at all. Any delay or inability in obtaining such shareholders’ approval may adversely affect
our business or operations.

In light of these factors, we may not be able to undertake variation of objects of the Issue to use any
unutilized proceeds of the Issue, if any, or vary the terms of any contract referred to in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, even if such variation is in the interest of our Company. This may restrict our
Company’s ability to respond to any change in our business or financial condition by re-deploying the
unutilized portion of Net Proceeds, if any, or varying the terms of contract, which may adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares within 12 months in
an Indian company are classified as short-term capital gains and generally taxable. Any gain realized on
the sale of listed equity shares on a stock exchange that are held for more than 12 months is considered
as long-term capital gains and is taxable at 12.5%, in excess of %1,25,000. Any long-term gain realized
on the sale of equity shares, which are sold other than on a recognized stock exchange and on which no
STT has been paid, is also subject to tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares are
exempt from taxation in India where an exemption from taxation in India is provided under a treaty
between India and the country of which the seller is resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit
India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable to
pay tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on a gain on the sale of equity shares.

The requirements of being a publicly listed company may strain our resources.

We are currently a publicly held unlisted entity, and none of our securities are listed on any recognized
stock exchange. As such, we have not been subject to the enhanced regulatory oversight, shareholder
scrutiny, or public disclosure obligations. Upon listing, we will become subject to the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), and other applicable laws and regulations. Compliance with
these requirements will result in significant additional legal, accounting, corporate governance, and
investor relations expenses that we have not previously incurred.

We will be required to prepare and file audited annual financial statements and limited review unaudited
quarterly financial results, and to establish and maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures, as
well as internal control over financial reporting. Any delay or failure in meeting these obligations may
result in non-compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and may hinder our ability to promptly
and accurately report our financial and operational performance. Moreover, maintaining and enhancing
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these controls will require substantial management attention and allocation of resources, which may
divert focus from our core business operations and could adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations, and future prospects.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares or convertible securities or other equity linked securities by our
Company may dilute your shareholding and sales of the Equity Shares by our major shareholders
may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by our Company, including issuance of Equity Shares to employees or former employees upon exercise
of vested options held by them under the ESOP Schemes, may dilute your shareholding. Any such future
issuance of Equity Shares or future sales of the Equity Shares by any of our significant shareholders may
also adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and impact our ability to raise funds through
an offering of our securities or by incurring debt. Any perception by investors that such issuances or
sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. Additionally, the disposal,
pledge or encumbrance of the Equity Shares by any of our significant shareholders, or the perception
that such transactions may occur, may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. There can be no
assurance that we will not issue further Equity Shares or that our existing Shareholders will not dispose
of further Equity Shares after the completion of the Issue (subject to compliance with the lock-in
provisions under applicable law) or pledge or encumber their Equity Shares. Any future issuances could
also dilute the value of shareholder’s investment in the Equity Shares and adversely affect the trading
price of our Equity Shares. Such securities may also be issued at prices below the Issue Price. We may
also issue convertible debt securities to finance our future growth or fund our business activities. In
addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur may also affect the market
price of our Equity Shares.

Subsequent to the listing of the Equity Shares, we may be subject to pre-emptive surveillance measures
like Additional Surveillance Measures and Graded Surveillance Measures by the Stock Exchanges in
order to enhance market integrity and safeguard the interest of investors.

SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, in the past, have introduced various pre-emptive surveillance measures
with respect to the shares of listed companies in India (the “Listed Securities”) in order to enhance
market integrity, safeguard the interests of investors and potential market abuses. In addition to various
surveillance measures already implemented, and in order to further safeguard the interest of investors,
the SEBI and the Stock Exchanges have introduced additional surveillance measures (“ASM”) and
graded surveillance measures (“GSM”).

ASM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on Listed Securities with surveillance concerns based on
certain objective parameters such as price-to-earnings ratio, percentage of delivery, client concentration,
variation in volume of shares and volatility of shares, among other things. GSM is conducted by the
Stock Exchanges on Listed Securities where their price quoted on the Stock Exchanges is not
commensurate with, among other things, the financial performance and financial condition measures
such as earnings, book value, fixed assets, net worth, other measures such as priceto-earnings multiple
and market capitalization.

Upon listing, the trading of our Equity Shares would be subject to differing market conditions as well as
other factors which may result in high volatility in price, and low trading volumes as a percentage of the
combined trading volume of our Equity Shares. The occurrence of any of the abovementioned factors or
other circumstances may trigger any of the parameters prescribed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges for
placing our securities under the GSM and/or ASM framework or any other surveillance measures, which
could result in significant restrictions on trading of our Equity Shares being imposed by SEBI and the
Stock Exchanges. These restrictions may include requiring higher margin requirements, limiting trading
frequency or freezing of price on the upper side of trading, as well as mentioning of our Equity Shares
on the surveillance dashboards of the Stock Exchanges. The imposition of these restrictions and curbs
on trading may have an adverse effect on the market price, trading and liquidity of our Equity Shares
and on the reputation and conditions of our Company. Any such instance may result in a loss of our
reputation and diversion of our management’s attention and may also decrease the market price of our
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Equity Shares which could cause you to lose some or all of your investment.

There are restrictions on daily movements in the trading price of the Equity Shares, which may
adversely affect a shareholder’s ability to sell Equity Shares or the price at which Equity Shares can
be sold at a particular point in time.

Following the Issue, our listed Equity Shares will be subject to a daily “circuit breaker” imposed on listed
companies by the Stock Exchanges, which does not allow transactions beyond certain volatility in the
trading price of the Equity Shares. This circuit breaker operates independently of the index-based market
wide circuit breakers generally imposed by SEBI on Indian Stock Exchanges. The percentage limit on
the Equity Shares’ circuit breaker will be set by the Stock Exchanges based on historical volatility in the
price and trading volume of the Equity Shares. The Stock Exchanges are not required to inform our
Company of the percentage limit of the circuit breaker, and they may change the limit without our
knowledge. This circuit breaker would effectively limit the upward and downward movements in the
trading price of the Equity Shares beyond the circuit breaker limit set by the Stock Exchanges. As a result
of this circuit breaker, we cannot give you any assurance regarding the ability of shareholders to sell
Equity Shares or the price at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed on the NSE in a timely manner or at all.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed on the NSE Emerge platform in a timely
manner or at all. In accordance with Indian law, permission for listing and trading of our Equity Shares
will not be granted until after certain actions have been completed in relation to this Issue and until
Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue. In accordance with current regulations and circulars
issued by SEBI, our Equity Shares are required to be listed on the NSE within such time as mandated
under UPI Circulars, subject to any change in the prescribed timeline in this regard. However, we cannot
assure you that the trading in our Equity Shares will commence in a timely manner or at all. Any failure
or delay in obtaining final listing and trading approvals may restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity
Shares.

You may not be able to immediately sell any of the Equity Shares you subscribe to in this Issue on an
Indian Stock Exchange.

The Equity Shares are proposed to be listed on Emerge Platform of the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited. Pursuant to Indian regulations, certain actions must be completed before the Equity Shares can
be listed and commence trading, including crediting of the investor’s demat accounts within the timeline
specified under applicable law. Further, in accordance with Indian law, permission for listing and trading
of our Equity Shares will not be granted until after certain actions have been completed in relation to this
Issue and until Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue. The Allotment of Equity Shares in the
Issue and the credit of Equity Shares to the investor’s demat account with the relevant depository
participant and listing is expected to be completed within the period as may be prescribed under
applicable law. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approvals or otherwise commencement of trading
in the Equity Shares would restrict investors’ ability to dispose of their Equity Shares. We cannot assure
you that the Equity Shares will be credited to investors’ demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity
Shares will commence within the prescribed time periods or at all which could restrict your ability to
dispose of the Equity Shares.

Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other
Jjurisdictions.

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and
shareholders’ rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction.
Shareholders’ rights including in relation to class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as
shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more difficulty
in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder of a corporation in
another jurisdiction.
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Financial difficulty and other problems in certain financial institutions in India could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, future cash flows and financial condition.

Indian financial system may be affected by financial difficulties faced by all or some of the Indian
financial institutions whose commercial soundness may be closely related as a result of credit, trading,
clearing or other relationships. This risk, which is sometimes referred to as ‘systemic risk’, may adversely
affect financial intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, banks, securities firms and exchanges. Any
such difficulties or instability of the Indian financial system in general could create an adverse market
perception about Indian financial institutions and banks and adversely affect our business

Financial instability, economic developments and volatility in securities markets in other countries
may also cause the price of the Equity Shares to decline.

The Indian economy and its securities markets are influenced by economic developments and volatility
in securities markets in other countries. Investors’ reactions to developments in one country may have
adverse effects on the market price of securities of companies located in other countries, including India.
For instance, the economic downturn in the U.S. and several European countries during a part of Fiscals
2008 and 2009 adversely affected market prices in the global securities markets, including India. In
addition, China is one of India’s major trading partners and a possible slowdown in the Chinese economy
as well as a strained relationship with India, could have an adverse impact on the trade relations between
the two countries. Further, events like the collapse of the Silicon Valley Bank could also cause an
economic downturn. Negative economic developments, such as rising fiscal or trade deficits, or a default
on national debt, in other emerging market countries may also affect investor confidence and cause
increased volatility in Indian securities markets and indirectly affect the Indian economy in general. A
loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased
volatility in Indian financial markets and the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial
instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy, including the movement of
exchange rates and interest rates in India. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our
business, future financial performance, shareholders’ equity and the price of the Equity Shares.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely
affect the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchange. Any dividends in
respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the
relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates
during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign
investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating
outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory
approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity
shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated
substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of
our operating results.

The Equity Shares have never been publicly traded and the Issue may not result in an active or liquid
market for the Equity Shares. Further, the price of the Equity Shares may be volatile, and the investors
may be unable to resell the Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price, or at all.

Prior to the Issue, there has been no public market for the Equity Shares, and an active trading market
on the stock exchanges may not develop or be sustained after the Issue. Listing and quotation does not
guarantee that a market for the Equity Shares will develop, or if developed, the liquidity of such market
for the Equity Shares. Our Equity Shares are expected to trade on NSE after the Issue, but there can be
no assurance that active trading in our Equity Shares will develop after the Issue, or if such trading
develops that it will continue. Investors may not be able to sell our Equity Shares at the quoted price if
there is no active trading in our Equity Shares. There has been significant volatility in the Indian stock
markets in the recent past, and the trading price of our Equity Share after the Issue could fluctuate
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significantly as a result of market volatility or due to various internal or external risks, including but not
limited to those described in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The market price of our Equity Shares
may be influenced by many factors, some of which are beyond our control, including, among others:

. the failure of security analysts to cover the Equity Shares after the Issue, or changes in the
estimates of our performance by analysts;

the activities of competitors and suppliers;

future sales of the Equity Shares by us or our Shareholders;

investor perception of us and the industry in which we operate;

changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations of principles;

our quarterly or annual earnings or those of our competitors;

developments affecting fiscal, industrial or environmental regulations; and

the public’s reaction to our press releases and adverse media reports.

A decrease in the market price of our Equity Shares could cause you to lose some or all of your
investment.

Investors will not be able to sell immediately on an Indian stock exchange any of the Equity Shares
they purchase in the Issue, and there could be a failure or delay in listing of Equity Shares on the
Indian stock exchanges, all of which could adversely impact investors ability to participate in the
Issue.

The Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to applicable Indian laws, certain
actions must be completed before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading in the Equity Shares may
commence. Investors’ book entry, or ‘demat’ accounts with depository participants in India, are expected
to be credited within one working day of the date on which the Basis of Allotment is approved by the
Stock Exchanges. The Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares to
the applicant’s demat account with depository participant could take approximately two Working Days
from the Bid Closing Date and trading in the Equity Shares upon receipt of final listing and trading
approvals from the Stock Exchanges is expected to commence within three Working Days of the Bid
Closing Date. There could be a failure or delay in listing of the Equity Shares on the Indian Stock
Exchanges. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval or otherwise commence trading in the Equity
Shares would restrict investors’ ability to dispose of their Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that
the Equity Shares will be credited to investors’ demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity Shares will
commence, within the time periods as specified by SEBI. We could also be required to pay interest at
the applicable rates if allotment is not made, refund orders are not dispatched or demat credits are not
made to investors within the prescribed time periods.

Under Indian law, foreign investors are subject to investment restrictions that limit our ability to
attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Under foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfer of shares between non-residents
and residents are freely permitted, subject to certain exceptions, if they comply with the valuation and
reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If a transfer of shares is not in compliance with such
requirements and does not fall under any of the exceptions specified by the RBI, then the RBI’s prior
approval is required. In addition, shareholders who seek to convert Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares
in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India require a no-objection or a
tax clearance certificate from the Indian income tax authorities. We cannot assure you that any required
approval from the RBI or any other Government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at
all. For further details, see ‘Restrictions on Foreign Ownership of Indian Securities’ on page 360 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Further, in accordance with Press Note No. 3 (2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020, issued by the DPIIT
and the FEMA Rules, any investment, subscription, purchase or sale of equity instruments by entities,
investments under the foreign direct investment route by entities of a country which shares land border
with India or where the beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any
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such country will require prior approval of the Government of India. Further, in the event of transfer of
ownership of any existing or future foreign direct investment in an entity in India, directly or indirectly,
resulting in the beneficial ownership falling within the aforesaid restriction/ purview, such subsequent
change in the beneficial ownership will also require approval of the Government of India. We cannot
assure you that any required approval from the RBI or any other governmental agency can be obtained
on any particular terms, in a timely manner or at all.

Our Company'’s revenues and profits are difficult to predict and can vary significantly from quarter
to quarter. This could cause our share price to fluctuate.

Our Company’s quarterly operating results may fluctuate from quarter to quarter depending upon various
internal and external factors. Therefore, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of
operations are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of our
Company’s future performance. It is possible that in the future some of our Company’s quarterly results
of operations may be below the expectations of market analysts and our investors, which could lead to a
significant decline of the share price of the Equity Shares.

Our ability to raise foreign capital or borrowings may be constrained by Indian law.

As an Indian company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies.
Such regulatory restrictions could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and
refinance existing indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that any required regulatory approvals
for borrowing in foreign currencies will be granted to us without onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations
on foreign debt may have an adverse effect on our business growth, financial condition and results of
operations.

If security or industry analysts do not publish research or publish unfavourable or inaccurate
research about the business of our Company, the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares may
decline.

The trading market for the Equity Shares may depend, in part, on the research and reports that securities
or industry analysts publish about us or our business. We may be unable to sustain coverage by
established and, or, prominent securities and industry analysts. If either none or only a limited number
of securities or industry analysts maintain coverage of our Company, or if these securities or industry
analysts are not widely respected within the general investment community, the trading price for our
Equity Shares could be negatively impacted. In the event we obtain securities or industry analyst
coverage, if one or more of the analysts downgrade our Equity Shares or publish inaccurate or
unfavourable research about our business, our Equity Shares price may decline. If one or more of these
analysts cease coverage of our Company or fail to publish reports on us regularly, demand for our Equity
Shares could decrease, which might cause the price and trading volume of our Equity Shares to decline.

Holders of Equity Shares may be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian
law and thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, a company incorporated in India must offer its equity shareholders pre-
emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of equity shares to maintain their existing
ownership percentages prior to issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have
been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the equity shares voting
on such resolution. However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of
such pre-emptive rights without our filing an offering document or registration statement with the
applicable authority in such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights, unless
we make such a filing. If we elect not to file a registration statement, the new securities may be issued
to a custodian, who may sell the securities for your benefit. The value such custodian receives on the sale
of any such securities and the related transaction costs cannot be predicted. To the extent that you are
unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, your proportional interest
in our Company may be reduced.
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QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of
quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a Bid and Retail Individual
Bidders and are not permitted to withdraw their bids after bid/offer closing date.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to
withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after
submitting a Bid. Retail Individual Investors can revise their Bids during the Bid/Issue Period and
withdraw their Bids until Bid/Issue Closing Date. While our Company is required to complete Allotment
pursuant to the Issue within 3 Working Days from the Bid/Issue Closing Date, events affecting the
Bidders’ decision to invest in the Equity Shares, including material adverse changes in international or
national monetary policy, financial, political or economic conditions, our business, results of operation
or financial condition may arise between the date of submission of the Bid and Allotment. Our Company
may complete the Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events occur, and such events limit the
Bidders’ ability to sell the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to the Issue or cause the trading price of the
Equity Shares to decline on listing.

A third party could be prevented from acquiring control of our Company because of anti-takeover
provisions under Indian law.

There are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover or change in control
of our Company, even if a change in control would result in the purchase of your Equity Shares at a
premium to the market price or would otherwise be beneficial to you. Such provisions may discourage
or prevent certain types of transactions involving an actual or threatened change in control of our
Company. Under the SEBI Takeover Regulations, an acquirer has been defined as any person who,
directly or indirectly, acquires or agrees to acquire shares or voting rights or control over a company,
whether individually or acting in concert with others. Although these provisions have been formulated
to ensure that interests of investors or shareholders are protected, these provisions may also discourage
a third party from attempting to take control of our Company. Consequently, even if a potential takeover
of our Company would result in the purchase of the Equity Shares at a premium to their market price or
would otherwise be beneficial to its stakeholders, it is possible that such a takeover would not be
attempted.

Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters and Promoter Group in future may adversely affect the market
price of the Equity Shares.

After the completion of the Issue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will own a significant percentage
of our Company’s issued Equity Shares. The sale of a large number of the Equity Shares by the Promoters
could adversely affect the market price of the Equity Shares. Similarly, the perception that any such
primary or secondary sale may occur, could adversely affect the market price of the Equity Shares. No
assurance may be given that the Promoters will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares
in the future.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

75.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax
laws, may adversely affect our business and financial performance.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such
changes, including the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any
such changes in applicable law and policy.

The Government of India has implemented a major reform in Indian tax laws, namely the GST. The
indirect tax regime in India has undergone a complete overhaul. The indirect taxes on goods and services,
such as central excise duty, service tax, central sales tax, state value added tax, surcharge and excise
have been replaced by GST, with effect from July 1, 2017. The GST regime continues to be subject to
amendments and its interpretation by the relevant regulatory authorities is constantly evolving. We
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cannot assure you that the relevant regulatory authorities will not make any material tax demands under
GST on us in the future which could adversely impact our business, results of operations, financial
condition, cash flows, and the price of the Equity Shares. Earlier, distribution of dividends by a domestic
company was subject to Dividend Distribution Tax (“DDT”), in the hands of our. However, the
Government has amended the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Income Tax Act”) to abolish the DDT regime.
Accordingly, any dividend distribution by a domestic company is subject to tax in the hands of the
investor at the applicable rate. Additionally, the domestic company is required to withhold tax on such
dividends distributed at the applicable rate. However, non-resident shareholders may claim benefit of an
applicable tax treaty, read with the Multilateral Convention to Implement Tax Treaty Related Measures
to Prevent Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (Multilateral Instrument), if and to the extent applicable,
subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. We may or may not grant the benefit of a tax treaty (where
applicable) to a non-resident shareholder for the purposes of withholding tax pursuant to any corporate
action including dividends. Further, the Government of India has recently announced the union budget
for the financial year 2025-2026 (“Budget”), which is still to be passed by the Parliament. In the Budget,
the Government has proposed a reduction in tax rates for individuals and companies and provided few
benefits to investments by non-resident Indians and foreign companies. Once the Bill is enacted, we
cannot assure you that there will not be any modification to these proposals. There is also no certainty
on the impact of the Budget on tax laws or other regulations, which may adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations or on the industry in which we operate. Investors are advised
to consult their own tax advisors and to carefully consider the potential tax consequences of owning,
investing or trading in our Equity Shares. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or
implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by
reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming
as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our current business or restrict our
ability to grow our business in the future.

Additionally, the Government of India has introduced (a) the Code on Wages, 2019 (“Wages Code”);
(b) the Code on Social Security, 2020 (“Social Security Code”); (c) the Occupational Safety, Health
and Working Conditions Code, 2020; and (d) the Industrial Relations Code, 2020 (collectively, the
“Labour Codes”) which consolidate, subsume and replace numerous existing central labour legislations.
The Government of India has deferred the effective date of implementation of the respective Labour
Codes, and they shall come into force from such dates as may be notified. Different dates may also be
appointed for the coming into force of different provisions of the Labour Codes. While the rules for
implementation under these codes have not been notified in its entirety, as an immediate consequence,
the coming into force of these codes could increase the financial burden on our Company, which may
adversely impact our profitability. We are yet to determine the impact of all or some such laws on our
business and operations which may restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For example,
the Social Security Code aims to provide uniformity in providing social security benefits to the
employees which was earlier segregated under different acts and had different applicability and
coverage. Furthermore, the Wages Code limits the amounts that may be excluded from being accounted
toward employment benefits (such as gratuity and maternity benefits) to a maximum of 50% of the wages
payable to employees. The implementation of such laws has the ability to increase our employee and
labour costs, thereby adversely impacting our results of operations, cash flows, business and financial
performance.

The Parliament of India has passed the Bharatiya Nyaya Sanhita, 2023, the Bharatiya Nagarik Suraksha
Sanhita, 2023 and the Bharatiya Sakshya, 2023, which have replaced the Indian Penal Code, 1860, the
Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 and the Indian Evidence Act, 1872, respectively, with effect from
July 1, 2024. The effect of the provisions of these on us and the litigations involving us cannot be
predicted with certainty at this stage.

The Government proposes to replace the Income Tax Act with a new income tax act and, on February
13, 2025, introduced the Income Tax Bill, 2025. The Income Tax Bill, 2025 retains most of the
provisions of the Income Tax Act but aims to simplify the language and remove redundant provisions.
Till such time, the Income Tax Bill, 2025 is codified into an act, the Income Tax Act will continue to
prevail.
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A slowdown in economic growth in India could adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance,
growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health
of the economy in which we operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic,
regional and global economies. Economic growth in the countries in which we operate is affected by
various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, namely
export demand and movements in key imports of materials, global economic uncertainty and liquidity
crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates. Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy
could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Also, a change in the
government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could adversely affect economic
conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in particular and high
rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and
as such decrease our operating margin.

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis,
tornadoes, fires, explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and
military actions, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.
Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may adversely affect the Indian securities markets. In
addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring
countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the
price of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years, and
it is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India
could have an adverse effect on our business. Such incidents could also create a greater perception that
investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our
business and the market price of the Equity Shares.

We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond
our control.

Our business operations, as well as the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be materially
and adversely impacted by fluctuations in interest rates, changes in governmental policies, amendments
to tax regulations, and occurrences of social or civil unrest, along with other political, economic, or
regulatory developments within or affecting India. Any withdrawal, modification, or substantial
alteration of existing policies, or the introduction of new policies that are unfavourable to our business,
may adversely affect our financial performance. Furthermore, any significant shift in the economic
framework or policy direction of the Government of India could disrupt the broader business
environment and economic stability, thereby having a material adverse effect on our operations and
financial condition.

Financial difficulty and other problems in certain long term lending institutions and investment
institutions in India could have a negative impact on our business.

We are exposed to the risks of the Indian financial system which may be affected by the financial
difficulties faced by certain Indian financial institutions because the commercial soundness of many
financial institutions may be closely related as a result of credit, trading, clearing or other relationships.
This risk, which is referred to as “systemic risk,” may adversely affect financial intermediaries, such as
clearing agencies, banks, securities firms and exchanges with whom we interact on a daily basis. Our
transactions with these financial institutions expose us to credit risk in the event of default by the counter
party, which can be exacerbated during periods of market illiquidity. As the Indian financial system
operates within an emerging market, we face risks of a nature and extent not typically faced in more
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developed economies, including the risk of deposit runs notwithstanding the existence of a national
deposit insurance scheme. The problems faced by individual Indian financial institutions and any
instability in or difficulties faced by the Indian financial system generally could create adverse market
perception about Indian financial institutions and banks. This in turn could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Political instability or changes in the Government could adversely affect economic conditions in India
generally and our business in particular.

Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be affected by interest rates,
changes in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other
developments in or affecting India. Elimination or substantial change of policies or the introduction of
policies that negatively affect the Company’s business could cause its results of operations to suffer.
Any significant change in India’s economic policies could disrupt business and economic conditions in
India generally and the Company’s business in particular.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries
could adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our
Equity Shares.

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events
that are beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business.
Incidents such as the Mumbai terrorist attacks, and other acts of violence may adversely affect the Indian
stock markets where our Equity Shares will trade the global equity markets as well generally. Such acts
could negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade between countries, which could adversely
affect our Company’s business and profitability. Additionally, such events could have a material adverse
effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including the Equity Shares.

Negative publicity against us, our Promoters, Directors, our suppliers, our customers or any of our or
their affiliates could cause us reputational harm and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

We, our Promoters, our Directors, our suppliers, our customers or any of our or their affiliates may be
subject to negative publicity in relation to our or their business or staff, including publicity covering
issues such as anti-corruption, safety. Such negative publicity, however, even if later proven to be false
or misleading, and even where the entities or individuals implicated are members or employees of our
suppliers, customers or their affiliates and not of us, could lead to a temporary or prolonged negative
perception against us by virtue of our affiliation with such joint venture partners, suppliers, customers or
affiliates. Our reputation in the marketplace is important to our ability to generate and retain business.
In particular, damage to our reputation could be difficult and time-consuming to repair, and our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

A downgrade in ratings of India, may affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or
international rating agencies may adversely affect our ability to raise additional financing and the interest
rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an
adverse effect on our capital expenditure plans, business and financial performance and the price of our
Equity Shares.

Adverse geopolitical conditions such as an increased tension between India and its neighbouring
countries, the Russia-Ukraine conflict, the conflict between Israel and Iran and other countries in
West Asia and the recent increased tariffs proposed by the US, could adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Adverse geopolitical conditions such as increased tensions between India and its neighbouring countries,
resulting in any military conflict in the region could adversely affect our business and operations. Such
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events may lead to countries including the Government of India imposing restrictions which could have
an adverse effect on the Indian economy. Further, any restriction on commodities or other factors cause
global supply chain disruptions could have an impact on global prices and could have an adverse effect
on the commodities markets in India could be affected. For instance, the government of India has
imposed additional tariffs in the nature of countervailing duty and anti-dumping duty on a number of
items imported from China. Any such measure or reciprocal duties imposed on Indian products by China
or other countries may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition and could affect
the trade and commerce between the nations which could lead to uncertainty in the securities and
commodities markets, inflate costs, etc. Further, prolonged Russia-Ukraine conflict and the armed
hostilities between Israel and Iran and other countries in West Asia, including the increased tariffs by the
US, impacting, inter alia, global trade, prices of oil and gas could have an inflationary impact on the
Indian economy, result in higher interest rates and adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as Ind AS,
U.S. GAAP and IFRS, which may be material to the Restated Financial Information prepared and
presented in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations contained in this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

We have not attempted to quantify the impact of U.S. GAAP or any other system of accounting principles
on the financial data, prepared and presented in accordance with Indian GAAP (“I-GAAP”) for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, included in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial statements to those of U.S. GAAP
or any other accounting principles. U.S. GAAP differs in significant respects from I-GAAP. Accordingly,
the degree to which the Restated Financial Information included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader's level of familiarity with I-
GAAP and SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting
practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Draft Red Prospectus should accordingly be
limited. Additionally, I-GAAP differs in certain respects from Ind AS and IFRS and therefore financial
statements prepared under [-GAAP may be substantially different from financial statements prepared
under Ind AS and IFRS.

Investors may have difficulty enforcing foreign judgments against us or our management.

We are incorporated under the laws of India and all our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel reside
in India. A majority of our assets, and the assets of our Directors and officers, are also located in India.
Where investors wish to enforce foreign judgments in India, they may face difficulties in enforcing such
judgments. India is not a party to any international treaty in relation to the recognition or enforcement of
foreign judgments. India exercises reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and
commercial matters with a limited number of jurisdictions. In order to be enforceable, a judgment
obtained in a jurisdiction which India recognises as a reciprocating territory must meet certain
requirements of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, of India (Civil Code). Further, the Civil Code only
permits enforcement of monetary decrees not being in the nature of any amounts payable in respect of
taxes or, other charges of a like nature or in respect of a fine or other penalty and does not provide for
the enforcement of arbitration awards. Judgments or decrees from jurisdictions not recognised as a
reciprocating territory by India cannot be enforced or executed in India. Even if a party were to obtain a
judgment in such a jurisdiction, it would be required to institute a fresh suit upon the judgment and would
not be able to enforce such judgment by proceedings in execution. Further, the party which has obtained
such judgment must institute the new proceedings within three years of obtaining the judgement.

As a result, you may be unable to: (i) effect service of process outside of India upon us and such other
persons or entities; or (ii) enforce in courts outside of India judgments obtained in such courts against us
and such other persons or entities. It is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same
basis as a foreign court if an action were brought in India. Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court
would enforce foreign judgments if it viewed the amount of damages awarded as excessive or
inconsistent with Indian practice. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to
obtain prior approval from the RBI to repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to the execution of such
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foreign judgment, and any such amount may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable
laws.

We may be affected by competition laws in India, the adverse application or interpretation of which
could adversely affect our business.

The Competition Act, 2002, of India, as amended (“Competition Act”), regulates practices having an
appreciable adverse effect on competition in the relevant market in India (“AAEC”). Under the
Competition Act, any formal or informal arrangement, understanding or action in concert, which causes
or is likely to cause an AAEC is considered void and may result in the imposition of substantial penalties.
Further, any agreement among competitors which directly or indirectly involves the determination of
purchase or sale prices, limits or controls production, supply, markets, technical development, investment
or the provision of services or shares the market or source of production or provision of services in any
manner, including by way of allocation of geographical area or number of consumers in the relevant
market or directly or indirectly results in bid-rigging or collusive bidding is presumed to have an AAEC
and is considered void. The Competition Act also prohibits abuse of a dominant position by any
enterprise. If it is proved that the contravention committed by a company took place with the consent or
connivance or is attributable to any neglect on the part of, any director, manager, secretary or other officer
of such company, that person shall be also guilty of the contravention and may be punished. On March
4, 2011, the Government notified and brought into force the combination regulation (merger control)
provisions under the Competition Act with effect from June 1, 2011. These provisions require
acquisitions of shares, voting rights, assets or control or mergers or amalgamations that cross the
prescribed asset and turnover based thresholds to be mandatorily notified to and pre-approved by the
Competition Commission of India (the “CCI”). Additionally, on May 11, 2011, the CCI issued
Competition Commission of India (Procedure for Transaction of Business Relating to Combinations)
Regulations, 2011, as amended, which sets out the mechanism for implementation of the merger control
regime in India.

Further, the CCI has extra-territorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct or
combination occurring outside India if such agreement, conduct or combination has an AAEC in India.
However, the impact of the provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements entered into by us
cannot be predicted with certainty at this stage. In the event we pursue an acquisition in the future, we
may be affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or interpretation of any provision of the
Competition Act, or any enforcement proceedings initiated by the CCI, or any adverse publicity that may
be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition or substantial penalties are
levied under the Competition Act, it would adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows
and prospects. The manner in which the Competition Act and the CCI affect the business environment
in India may also adversely affect our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

The Competition (Amendment) Act, 2023 (“Competition Amendment Act”) was recently notified. The
Competition Amendment Act amends the Competition Act and give the CCI additional powers to prevent
practices that harm competition and the interests of consumers. The Competition Amendment Act, inter
alia, modifies the scope of certain factors used to determine AAEC, reduces the overall time limit for the
assessment of combinations by the CCI from 210 days to 150 days and empowers the CCI to impose
penalties based on the global turnover of entities, for anti-competitive agreements and abuse of dominant
position. The Competition Amendment Act also proposed amendments such as introduction of deal value
thresholds for assessing whether a merger or acquisition qualifies as a “combination,” expedited merger
review timelines, codification of the lowest standard of “control” and enhanced penalties for failing to
provide material information.

If we pursue acquisition transactions in the future, we may be affected, directly or indirectly, by the
application or interpretation of any provision of the Competition Act, any enforcement proceedings
initiated by the CCI, any adverse publicity that may be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the
CCI, any adverse publicity that may be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI, or any
prohibition or substantial penalties levied under the Competition Act, which would adversely affect our
business, results of our operations, cash flows and prospects.

We are subject to anti-bribery and anti-corruption laws, violation of which may subject our Company
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and/or our Corporate Promoter to governmental inquiries and/or investigations, which if material and
adverse in nature, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition
in future periods and our reputation.

We have operations and projects, in India. Those operations and projects often involve interactions with
governmental authorities and officials at the Indian federal, state and local level. We are subject to anti-
corruption and anti-bribery laws in India that prohibit improper payments or offers of improper payments
to governments and their officials and political parties for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business
or securing an improper advantage and require the maintenance of internal controls to prevent such
payments. Although, we maintain an anti-bribery compliance program and train our employees in respect
of such matters, our employees might take actions that could expose us to liability under anti-bribery
laws. In certain circumstances, we may be held liable for actions taken by our partners and agents, even
though they are not always subject to our control. Any violation of anti-corruption laws against us or our
Corporate Promoter could result in penalties, both financial and nonfinancial, that could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition in future periods and
reputation.

If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our products at a
proportional rate in order to pass costs on to our consumers thereby reducing our margins.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase
in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of wages and other
expenses. High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or
control our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able
to adequately pass on to our consumers, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to
reduce our costs or increase the price of our products to pass the increase in costs on to our consumers.
In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely
affected. Further, the Government of India has previously initiated economic measures to combat high
inflation rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance
that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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SECTION III - INTRODUCTION

The following is the summary of the Issue

Par

ticulars

Equity Shares Issued through Public
Issue: *(®

Present Issue of Equity Shares by our
Company

Of which:

Issue Reserved for the Market Maker

Net

Issue to Public

Of which:

A. Allocation to Qualified Institutional
Buyers ®®

Of which:

(i) Anchor Investor Portion

(i1) Net QIB portion (assuming Anchor
Investor Portion is fully subscribed)
Of which:

a) Available for allocation to Mutual
Funds only (5% of the Net QIB
Portion)

b) Balance of QIB Portion for all
QIBs including Mutual Funds)

B. Allocation to Non- Institutional Investors

Of which:

a)

b)

One third of the portion available to Non-
Institutional Investors reserved for
Applicants with Application size of more
than two lots and up to such lots
equivalent to not more than 210 lakhs
Two-third of the Non-Institutional
Portion available for allocation to
Bidders with an application size of more
than % 10 lakhs

C. Allocation to Individual Investors who
apply for Minimum Application Size ®
Pre-Issue and Post Issue Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue

Use

of Proceeds

THE ISSUE

Details
Issue of upto 47,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of X10/-
each at a price of X [e] per Equity Share

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each at a price of X
[@]/- per Equity Share reserved as Market Maker Portion

Net Issue to Public of [®] Equity Shares of face value of 310/-
each at a price of X [®]/- per Equity Share to the Public

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs
[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [@]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [@]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [@] Lakhs
[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs
[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs
[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each at an Issue Price
of X [e]/- per Equity Share each aggregating to X [e] Lakhs

1,25,31,953 Equity Shares having face value of ¥10/- each
[e] Equity Shares having face value of 310/- each

For details, see ‘Objects of the Issue’ on page 103 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

*Subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment number of shares may need to be adjusted for lot size upon determination of issue price.

Notes:

)

The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time. This Issue is being
made by our Company in terms of Regulation of 229 (2) and Regulation 253 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with Rule
192)(b)(i) of the SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post — issue paid up equity share capital of our Company are being

issued to the public for subscription.
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3)

)

)

(©)

0

The present Issue has been authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board Resolution dated July 3, 2025 and by Special
Resolution passed under Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at an Annual General Meeting of our shareholders held on
July 4, 2025.

Our Company may, in consultation with the BRLM, allocate up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary
basis. The QIB Portion will accordingly be reduced for the Equity Shares allocated to Anchor Investors. One-third of the Anchor
Investor Portion shall be reserved for Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from Mutual Funds at or above the
Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the remaining Equity Shares
shall be added to the Net QIB Portion. 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to
Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB
Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. In the event the aggregate
demand from Mutual Funds is less than as specified above, the balance Equity Shares available for Allotment in the Mutual Fund
Portion will be added to the Net QIB Portion and allocated proportionately to the QIB Bidders in proportion to their Bids. For
further details, see “Issue Procedure” on page 320 this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, undersubscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB
Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of Bidders at the
discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and the Designated Stock Exchange, subject to
applicable laws.

not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Investors wherein
(a) one third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Investors shall be reserved for Applicants with Application size of more
than two lots and up to such lots equivalent to not more than Z10 lakhs, (b) two third of the portion available to Non-Institutional
Investors shall be reserved for Applicants with Application size of more than 310 lakhs; and (c) any unsubscribed portion in either
of the sub-categories specified in clauses (a) or (b), may be allocated to Applicants in the other sub-category of Non-Institutional
Investors; and not less than 35% of the Issue will be available for allocation to Individual Investors, who applies for minimum
application size in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.
All potential Bidders (except Anchor Investors) are required to mandatorily utilize the Application Supported by Blocked Amount
(“ASBA”) process providing details of their respective ASBA accounts, in which the corresponding Bid Amounts will be blocked
by the SCSBs or by the Sponsor Bank under the UPI Mechanism, as the case may be, to the extent of respective Bid Amounts.
Anchor Investors are not permitted to participate in the Issue through the ASBA process. For further details, please see “Issue
Procedure” on page 320 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

In the event of over-subscription, allotment shall be made on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids received at or above the
Issue Price. Allocation to investors in all categories, except the Individual Investors and the Non-Institutional Investors, shall be
made on a proportionate basis subject to valid bids received at or above the Issue Price. The allocation to each individual investors
who apply for Minimum Application Size shall not be less than the minimum Bid Lot, and subject to the availability of Equity
Shares in the Individual Investor Portion, the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be allocated on a proportionate
basis. The allocation to the Non-Institutional Investors shall be based on the draw-of-lots system.

In the event of an under-subscription in the issue and compliance with Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR, our Company and the BRLM
shall first ensure Allotment of Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Fresh Issue by the Issuer.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]

69



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables provide the summary of financial information of our Company derived from the Restated
Financial Information as at and for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023. The Restated Financial Information referred to above are presented under “Restated Financial Information”
on page 227 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The summary of financial information presented below should
be read in conjunction with the “Restated Financial Information” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Result of Operations” on pages 227 and 266, respectively.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Previously known as Neochem Bio Solutions Private Limited)

CIN : U24304GJ2017PTC097754
303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Off. Iscon Amboli Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380058

ANNEXURE - |
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED ASSETS & LIABILITIES, AS RESTATED
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at March 31st, 2025 As at March 31st, 2024 As at March 31st, 2023
| || EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share Capital 1.1 667.50 667.50 542.60
(b) Reserves and surplus 1.2 1,307.77 532.71 262.54
(c) Money received against share warrants - - -
Total Shareholders Equity 1,975.27 1,200.21 805.14
2. Share application money pending allotment - - - -
3. Non current liabilities
(a) Long term borrowings 1.3 1,427.91 1,811.81 1,240.65
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 1.4 60.16 73.69 73.61
(c) Other Non current liabilities - - - -
(d) Long term provisions 1.5 31.04 26.46 17.96
Total Non Current Liabilities 1,519.11 1,911.96 1,332.22
4. Current liabilities
(a) Short term borrowings 1.6 2,134.53 1,520.53 1,383.05
(b) Trade payables 1.7
i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises
and Small enterprises; and 995.24 1,184.58 706.68
i) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other
thanMicro enterprises and Small enterprises 634.37 225.37 634.01
(c) Other current liabilities 1.8 352.21 268.15 149.09
(d) Short term provisions 1.9 278.40 94.73 50.13
Total Current Liabilities 4,394.75 3,293.36 2,922.97
TOTAL 7,889.13 6,405.53 5,060.33
1. | ASSETS
1. Non current assets
(a) Property, plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) Property Plant & Equipments - - -
(i) Capital work in progress - - -
1) Property, plant and Equipment 1.10 1,865.33 1,878.93 1,465.39
2) Intangible Assets .10 1.49 1.65 1.82
3) Capital Work In Progress 1.10 5.84 3.30 4.11
4) Intangible assets under development - - -
(b) Non Current Investments 1.11 - 0.04 -
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - - - -
(d) Long term Loans and Advances 1.12 - - -
(e) Other Non Current Assets 1.13 708.69 652.79 390.44
Total Non Current Assets 2,581.36 2,536.71 1,861.76
2. Current assets
(a) Current Investments .14 - - -
(b) Inventories 1.15 2,375.55 1,820.99 1,493.08
(c) Trade receivables .16 2,527.69 1,724.05 1,441.53
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 1.17(A) 5.50 35.11 4.83
(e) Bank Balances other than above 1.17(B) - - -
(f) Short term loans and advances 1.18 122.54 167.32 220.36
(g) Other Current Assets 1.19 276.51 121.36 38.77
Total Current Assets 5,307.77 3,868.82 3,198.57
TOTAL 7,889.13 6,405.53 5,060.33

Note: The above statement should be read with the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements appearing in Annexure | to Il & NOA

respectively.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached

Patel Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

CA Malhar Mehta
Partner
UDIN: 25112226BMOKOQ4050

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 30, 2025

Swapnil R Makati
Managing Director
DIN: 00188382

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors
Neochem Bio Solutions Limited

Hemangini S Dathia
Whole Time Director
DIN: 08639755

Pradip Solanki
Chief Financial Officer

Ahmedabad
July 30, 2025

Place:
Date:
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NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Previously known as Neochem Bio Solutions Private Limited)
CIN : U24304GJ2017PTC097754

303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Off. Iscon Amboli Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380058
ANNEXURE - 1l
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS, AS RESTATED

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 31, 2023
| Revenue from operations 1.1 8,417.27 6,114.63 4,818.84
1} Other Income 11.2 198.09 86.12 60.19
1 Total Income (I+1) 8,615.35 6,200.75 4,879.03
Expenses:
(a) Cost of materials consumed 1.3 5,556.68 3,893.33] 2,976.06|
(b) Other Manufacturing Expenses 1.7 178.13 160.17| 167.98
(c) Purchases of stock in trade g - -
(d) Changes in inventories of finished goods L4 (33.78) (34.29) 141.80
and work in progress
(e) Employee benefits expense 11.5 803.66) 789.12 652.66
(f) Finance costs 1.6 350.50, 295.95 209.51
(g) Depreciation and amortisation expense 1.10 132.75] 121.96 121.69
(h) Other Expenses 11.8 601.28, 707.30 457.50
[\ Total expenses 7,589.22 5,933.53 4,727.20
v Profit /(Loss) before tax and Exceptional Items
(1-1v) 1,026.13 267.22 151.83
\'ll Exceptional Items - - -
Vil Profit /(Loss) before tax (V-VI) 1,026.13 267.22 151.83
Vil Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense 264.60 87.00 43.00
(b) (Short)/Excess Provision - Earlier years - - 0.41
(c) Deferred tax charge/(credit) (13.53) 0.09 1.14
251.07 87.09 44.55
IX Profit after tax for the year (VII-VIII) 775.07 180.13 107.29
X Earnings per share (face value of X 10/- each): 1.9
(a) Basic/Diluted EPS before Bonus Issue (in ) 11.61 3.32 3.55
(b) Basic/Diluted EPS after Bonus Issue (in X) 6.64 1.90 2.03

Note: The above statement should be read with the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements appearing in Annexure | to Il
& NOA respectively.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial
Statements

Patel Mehta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

CA Malhar Mehta
Partner
UDIN: 25112226BMOKOQ4050

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 30, 2025

Swapnil R Makati
Managing Director
DIN: 00188382

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors
Neochem Bio Solutions Limited

Hemangini S Dathia Pradip Solanki
Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08639755 -

Ahmedabad
July 30, 2025

Place:
Date:
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NEOCHEM BIO SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(Previously known as Neochem Bio Solutions Private Limited)
CIN : U24304GJ2017PTC097754
303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony, Off. Iscon Amboli Road, Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380058

ANNEXURE - Il
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW, AS RESTATED
(X in Lakhs)
particulars For the year ended | For the year ended March || For the year ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024 31, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax & Extraordinary items 1,026.13 267.22 151.83
Adjustment For:
(a) Depreciation and Amortization 132.75 121.96) 121.69
(b) (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Assets (7.43) (1.81) 0.00]
(c) Interest Income (1.29) (0.36) (0.55)
(e) Other Non Operating Income - Rent - 0.00 0.00]
(f) Interest/Finance Costs 350.50 295.95 209.51
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,500.66 682.96) 482.49
Adjustment For :
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (554.56) (327.91) (163.66)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (803.64) (283.52) 95.65
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & advances - - 1.77
(Increase)/Decrease in short term Loans and advances 44.79 51.62 (52.94)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (155.14) (82.59) (23.60)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables 219.66 69.29 (494.58)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions 10.65 9.10 13.29
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 84.06 120.46) 95.30
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 346.47 239.42] (46.27)
Less : Direct Taxes paid (87.00) (43.00) (27.91)
CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 259.47 196.42] (74.18)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 259.47 196.42 (74.18)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(a) Purchase of Property plant and Equipment and Intangible assets (114.10) (532.71) (333.00)
(Net of sales)
(b) Purchase or Sales of Non current Investment 0.04 8.86 0.00]
(c) (Increase ) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets (55.90) (262.35) (2.63)
(d) Interest and other income 1.29 0.36 0.55
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (168.67) (785.84)J (335.08)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(a) Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings 613.99 137.49] 566.27
(b) Proceeds from the issue of share capital - - -
(c) Interest Paid (350.50) (295.95) (209.95)
(d) Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (158.25) 193.61] 52.70
(e) Loan from Directors taken/ repaid (225.65) 584.77| (33.32)
NET CASH FLOW IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (120.41) 619.91 375.71
1. NET CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C ) (29.61) 30.49 (33.56)
11.CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING BALANCE) 35.11 4.62 38.39
11I.CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING BALANCE) (1+1) 5.50 35.11 4.83
IV.BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE
Fixed Deposits with the banks with maturity more than 3 months and
less than 12 Months - - -
V.CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CLOSING BALANCES) 5.50 35.11 4.83

Note: The above statement should be read with the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements appearing in Annexure | to lll &
NOA respectively.

As per our report of even date attached
Patel Mehta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA Malhar Mehta
Partner
UDIN: 25112226BMOKO0Q4050

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 30, 2025

Swapnil R Makati
Managing Director
DIN: 00188382

For and on the behalf of the Board of Directors
Neochem Bio Solutions Limited

Hemangini S Dathia
Whole Time Director
DIN: 08639755

Pradip Solanki
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: July 30, 2025
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally formed as a partnership firm under the Indian Partnership Act, 1932 (“Partnership
Act”) in the name and style of “M/s Vinayak Dyes & Chemical Industries”, pursuant to Deed of Partnership dated
March 6, 1978. Vinayak Dyes & Chemical Industries was changed to “Neochem Technologies” with effect from
January 6, 2006 and further the firm was converted from Partnership Firm to Private Limited company under Part
I chapter XXI of the Companies Act, 2013 and received a Certificate of Incorporation from Registrar of
Companies, Ahmedabad at Gujarat (“RoC”) on June 6, 2017 as “Neochem Technologies Private Limited”.
Furthermore, the name of our Company was changed from Neochem Technologies Private Limited to Neochem
Bio Solutions Private Limited and Certificate of Name change dated March 18, 2025 was received by the
Company. Subsequently, our Company was converted into a public limited company pursuant to a special
resolution passed by our shareholders resolution dated March 26, 2025, and the name of our Company was
changed to “Neochem Bio Solutions Limited”. A fresh certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion
from a Private Limited company to Public Limited company dated April 15, 2025 was issued by the Registrar of
Companies, Central Processing Centre. The Corporate Identification Number of our company is
U24304GJ2017PLC097754. For change in registered office and other details please, see “History and Certain
Corporate Matters” on page 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Registered Office

303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar

Colony, Off. Iscon-Ambli Road, Ahmedabad - 380058, Ambli
Daskroi, Gujarat

Telephone: +91 079 35217792

Website: www.neochem.in

Company Registration Number: 097754

Corporate Identification Number: U24304GJ2017PLC097754

For details of change in registered office and other details please see “History and Certain Corporate Matters”
on page 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Registrar of Companies
Our Company is registered with the RoC located at the following address:

Registrar of Companies

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, ROC Bhavan, Opp. Rupal Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat, India.

Telephone: + 91 079-27438531

Email: roc.ahmedabad@mca.go.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

Board of Directors

Details regarding our Board as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are set forth below:

Name and Designation DIN Address

Dinesh Chopra 07357688 House No. 20, Road No. 29, Punjabi Bagh
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Extension, West Delhi - 110026, Delhi,

Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 00188382 123, Manekbaug Society, Nr Shreyas Tekro,
Managing Director Ambawadi, Ahmedabad - 380015, Gujarat
Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 08639755 123, Manekbaug Society, Nr Shreyas Tekro,
Whole-Time Director Ambawadi, Ahmedabad - 380015, Gujarat.
Rajasekaran Guha 00160830 A 144 Commanders Court Ethiraj Salai, Egmore,
Non Executive Director Chennai — 600008, Tamil Nadu, India.

Falgunbhai Prajapati 11151765 6, Sunflower Bungalows, Prajapati Park Society,
Non-Executive- Independent Director Thaltej Shilaj Road, Near Bagban Cross Road,
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Name and Designation DIN Address
Thaltej, Ahmedabad 380059, Gujarat

Shail Jayesh Shah 07543594  B-603 Aman, Ornet Park-3 Lane, B/h Maple County-
Non-Executive- Independent Director 2, Shilaj, Ahmedabad 380059, Gujarat

For further details of our Directors, see “Our Management” on page 205 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Shradha Sarthak Agarwal is our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. Her Contact details are as
follows:

Shradha Sarthak Agarwal

303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony,

Off. Iscon-Ambli Road, Ahmedabad - 380058,
Daskroi, Gujarat, India

Telephone: +91 079 35217792

E-mail: compliance@neochem.in

Chief Financial Officer
Pradip Ramniklal Solanki is our Chief Financial Officer. His contact details are as follows:

Pradip Ramniklal Solanki

303, W1, Opp. Vikramnagar Colony,

Off. Iscon-Ambli Road, Ahmedabad - 380058,
Daskroi, Gujarat, India

Telephone: +91 079 35217792

E-mail: pradip.solanki@neochem.in

Investor Grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, the BRLM or the Registrar to the
Issue in case of any pre- Issue or post- Issue related grievances including non-receipt of letters of Allotment,
non-credit of Allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non-receipt of refund orders or
non-receipt of funds by electronic mode etc.

All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a copy to the relevant
Designated Intermediary with whom the ASBA Form was submitted, giving full details such as name of the sole
or First Bidder, ASBA Form number, Bidder’s DP ID, Client ID, PAN, address of Bidder, number of Equity Shares
applied for, ASBA Account number in which the amount equivalent to the Application Amount was blocked or
the UPI ID (for UPI Investors who make the payment of Application Amount through the UPI Mechanism), date
of Application Form and the name and address of the relevant Designated Intermediary where the Application
was submitted. Further, the Applicant shall enclose the Acknowledgment Slip or the application number from the
Designated Intermediary in addition to the documents or information mentioned hereinabove.

All grievances relating to applications submitted through the Registered Broker and/or a stockbroker may be
addressed to the Stock Exchange with a copy to the Registrar to the Issue.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue and our Company
Book Running Lead Manager

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited
Vivro House, 11 Shashi Colony,

Opp Suvidha Shopping Center,

Paldi, Ahmedabad — 380007

Gujarat, India.
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Telephone: +91-79- 4040 4242

Email id: investors@vivro.net

Investor Grievance id: investors@vivro.net
Website: www.vivro.net

Contact Person: Kruti Saraiya/Jay Dodiya
SEBI Registration No.: INM000010122
CIN: U67120GJ1996PTC029182

Statement of responsibilities of the Book Running Lead Manager

Vivro Financial Services Private Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue and all the
responsibilities relating to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the Issue shall be performed by them
and hence a statement of inter-se allocation of responsibilities is not required.

Syndicate Members
[e]
Legal Counsel to the Issue

Rajani Associates, Advocates & Solicitors

204 — 207, Krishna Chambers 59, New Marine Lines,
Mumbai, 400 020, Maharashtra, India.

Telephone: +91-22 4096 1000

Email Id: sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net

Contact Person: Sangeeta Lakhi

Statutory & Peer Review Auditor of the Company

M/s Patel Mehta & Associates
404,W1, Near PSP Projects House,
Opposite Vikram Nagar Colony,

Off. Iscon-Ambli Road

Ahmedabad - 380058

Telephone: +91-9712946240

Website: www.capatelmehta.com
Email Id: patelmehta.ca@gmail.com
Contact Person: Malhar Rashmikant Mehta
Membership Number: 112226

Peer Review Number: 018316

Firm Registration Number: 107773W

Change in Auditors during the last three years

BPA & Company was appointed as first auditors of our Company on June 8, 2017 pursuant to incorporation of our
Company. The tenure of such an appointment was till the conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting of the
Company. However, due to preoccupation, BPA & Company resigned from the Company on March 28, 2022.
Except as stated below, there has been no change in the statutory auditors of our Company during the three years
immediately preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Name of the Auditor Date of Reason
Appointment/Resignation

M/s Patel Mehta & Associates December 14, 2022 Appointment for the period

Chartered Accountants from April 1, 2022 to March

404,W1, Near PSP Projects House, 31,2027

Opposite Vikram Nagar Colony,

Off. Iscon-Ambli Road

Ahmedabad — 380058

Contact Person: Malhar Rashmikant Mehta

76


mailto:investors@vivro.net
mailto:investors@vivro.net
http://www.vivro.net/
mailto:sangeeta@rajaniassociates.net
http://www.capatelmehta.com/
mailto:patelmehta.ca@gmail.com

Name of the Auditor Date of Reason
Appointment/Resignation

Membership Number: 112226

Peer Review Number: 018316

Firm Registration Number: 107773W
Registrar to the Issue

MUPFG Intime India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai 400083, (Maharashtra), India.

Telephone: +91 810 811 4949

Email Id: neochem.smeipo@in.mpms.mufg.com
Investor Grievance Id: neochem.smeipo@in.mpms.mufg.com
Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com

Contact Person: Shanti Gopalkrishnan

SEBI Registration: INR000004058

CIN: U67190MH1999PTC118368

Bankers to the Issue, Refund Baker and Sponsor Bank
[e]
Banker to our Company

Name of Bank: Axis Bank Limited

Address: 2™ Floor, 3" Eye One Building, Panchvati Circle, C G Road, Ahmedabad - 380009
Telephone No: 079 66147159

E-Mail Id: cbbahmedabad.operationshead@axisbank.com

Website: www.axisbank.com

Contact Person: Keyur Rathod

Designated Intermediaries
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35 or at such other
website as may be prescribed by SEBI and updated from time to time.

A list of the Designated Branches of the SCSBs with which an ASBA Bidder (other than UPI Bidders using the
UPI Mechanism), not bidding through Syndicate/ Sub Syndicate or through a Registered Broker, RTA or CDP
may submit the Bid cum Application Forms, is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34 or at such other
websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks eligible as issuer banks for UPI Mechanism and eligible mobile applications

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated September 28, 2019, SEBI
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 and SEBI ICDR Master Circular, UPI
Bidders using the UPI Mechanism may only apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names
appears on the website of the SEBI, which may be updated from time to time. A list of SCSBs and mobile
applications, which are live for applying in public issues using UPI Mechanism is provided as ‘Annexure A’ for
the SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 and is also available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40 for SCSBs and
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=43 for mobile
applications or at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.
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Registered Brokers

The list of the Registered Brokers, including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address,
is provided on the website of the Stock Exchange, at the National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.nseindia.com as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the Collecting Depository Participants (CDPs) eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated
CDP Locations, including details such as name and contact details, are provided at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=19 for NSDL CDPs and
at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=18 for CDSL CDPs, as
updated from time to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits
of the Bid cum Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the
SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided on the websites of Stock Exchange at
www.nseindia.com as  updated from time to time and on  SEBI  website @ at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10.

Brokers to the Issue

All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Issue.
IPO Grading

No credit agency registered with SEBI has been appointed for grading for the Issue.

Experts

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

1. Our Company has received written consent dated August 01, 2025 from our Statutory Auditor, Patel
Mehta and Associates, Chartered Accountants, to include their name as required under Section 26(1) of
the Companies Act 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations, in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, and
as an “expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent and in their
capacity as our Statutory Auditors, and in respect of their (i) examination report, dated July 30, 2025 on
our Restated Financial Statements; (ii) their report dated August 01, 2025 on the Statement of Special
Tax Benefits included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus; and (iii) various certificates issued by them
in relation to this Issue, and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the
U.S. Securities Act.

2. Our Company has received written consent dated July 17, 2025 from M.K. Chokshi & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, to include their name as required under Section 26(1) of the Companies
Act 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations, in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, and as an “expert”
as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013 to the extent and in their capacity as our
Practicing Company Secretary; and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus. However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as
defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

3. Our Company has received a written consent dated July 30, 2025 from Vishal Shah, Chartered Engineer,
to include his name as an “expert” as defined under section 2(38) and 26(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
to the extent and in his capacity as the independent chartered engineer and in respect of the certificate
issued by him and included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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Monitoring Agency

As the Net Proceeds of the Issue will be less than X5,000 lakhs, under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it is not
required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Appraising Entity

No appraising entity has been appointed in respect of any objects of this Issue.
Credit Rating

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Trustees

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of trustees is not required
Debenture trustees

As the Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustees is not required.
Green Shoe Option

No green shoe option is applicable for the Issue.

Filing of Issue Document

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus shall be filed with EMERGE Platform
of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (the “NSE EMERGE”) in terms of Regulation 246 (2) of SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be filed with SEBI nor SEBI will issue any observation on the draft offer
document in term of Regulation 246(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Pursuant to Regulation 246(5) of SEBI
ICDR Regulations and SEBI Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a
copy of Prospectus will be filed online through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in.

A copy of Draft Red Herring Prospectus will be available on website of the Company https://www.neochem.in/
Book Running Lead Manager www.vivro.net and stock exchange www.nseindia.com.

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus of the Company filed with the Stock Exchange will be made available for 21
days to public providing comments on the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, by publishing the public announcement
in in all edition of [e] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and all edition of [e] (a widely
circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and all edition of [e] (a widely circulated Gujarati daily newspaper,
Gujarati being the regional language of Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is located) along with QR code.

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus, along with the material contracts and documents referred
elsewhere in the Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus, will be delivered to the office of Registrar of Companies,
Ahmedabad situated at Registrar of Companies, Bhavan, Opp. Rupal Park Society, Behind Ankur Bus Stop, Naranpura
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat, India. and the same will also be available on the website of the Company
https://www.neochem.in/, for inspection.

Type of Issue
The present Issue is 100% Book Building Issue.
Book Building Process

Book Building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red
Herring Prospectus within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be determined by our Company in consultation
with the Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process, and advertised in all edition
of [e] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper) and all edition of [e] (a widely circulated Hindi
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national daily newspaper) and all edition of [e] (a widely circulated Gujarati daily newspaper, Gujarati being the
regional language of Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is located) at least two working days prior to the
Bid/ Issue Opening date. The Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book
Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Principal
parties involved in the Book Building Process are:

. Our Company

. The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Vivro Financial Services Private Limited,

. The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with NSE
and eligible to act as Underwriter. The Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed by the Book Running
Lead Manager;

The Market Maker

The Registrar to the Issue

The Escrow Collection Banks/ Bankers to the Issue and

The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank

The SEBI ICDR Regulations have permitted the Issue of securities to the public through the Book Building
Process, wherein allocation to the public shall be made as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Issue is being made through the Book Building Process wherein not more than 50 % of the Net Issue shall be
available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”, the “QIB Portion”),
provided that our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, allocate up to 60% of the QIB
Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (“Anchor
Investor Portion”), of which one-third shall be reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being
received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-
subscription, or non-allocation in the Anchor Investor Portion, the balance Equity Shares shall be added to the Net
QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis only to
Mutual Funds, and the remainder of the Net QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis
to all QIBs, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. However, if
the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% of the Net QIB Portion, the balance Equity Shares
available for allocation in the Mutual Fund Portion will be added to the remaining Net QIB Portion for
proportionate allocation to QIBs. Further, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a
proportionate basis to Non-Institutional Investors wherein (a) one third of the portion available to Non-Institutional
Investors shall be reserved for Applicants with Application size of more than two lots and up to such lots equivalent
to not more than %10 lakhs; (b) two third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Investors shall be reserved for
Applicants with Application size of more than %10 lakhs; and (c) any unsubscribed portion in either of the sub-
categories specified in clauses (a) or (b), may be allocated to Applicants in the other sub-category of Non-
Institutional Investors; and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to Individual Investors,
in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.

All potential Bidders may participate in the Issue through an ASBA process by providing details of their respective
bank account which will be blocked by the SCSBs. All Bidders are mandatorily required to utilize the ASBA
process to participate in the Issue. Under-subscription if any, in any category, except in the QIB Category, would
be allowed to be met with spill over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of
our Company in consultation with the BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange.

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process for participating in the
Issue. In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs bidding in the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional
Bidders bidding in the Non- Institutional Portion are not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their Bids (in
terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Individual Investors can revise their
Bids during the Bid/ Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Further, Anchor
Investors cannot withdraw their Bids after the Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue Period. Allocation to the Anchor
Investors will be on a discretionary basis.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, allocation to all categories in the Net Issue, shall
be made on a proportionate basis, except for individual investor portion where allotment to each Individual
Investors shall not be less than the minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in Individual Investor
Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, shall be allotted on a proportionate basis. Under —
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subscription, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be met with spill — over from any other category or a
combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager
and the Stock Exchange. However, under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Portion will not be allowed to be met
with spill over from other categories or a combination of categories.

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, all the investors (except Anchor Investors) applying
in a public Issue shall use only Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) process for application
providing details of the bank account which will be blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for
the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01,
2018, Individual Investors applying in public Issue may use either Application Supported by Blocked Amount
(ASBA) facility for making application or also can use UPI as a payment mechanism with Application Supported
by Blocked Amount for making application. For details in this regards, specific attention are invited to the chapter
titled “Issue Procedure” on page 320 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the
investors are advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or
application in the Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Book Building, please refer to the chapter titled “Issue
Procedure” on page 320 of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Ilustration of the Book Building and Price Discovery Process:

Bidders should note that this example is solely for illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue; it also
excludes Bidding by Anchor Investors. Bidders can bid at any price within the Price Band. For instance, assume
a Price Band of %20 to 324 per share, Issue size of 3,000 Equity Shares and receipt of five Bids from Bidders,
details of which are shown in the table below. The illustrative book given below shows the demand for the Equity
Shares of the Issuer at various prices and is collated from Bids received from various investors.

Bid Quantity Bid Amount %) Cumulative Quantity Subscription
500 24 500 16.67%
1,000 23 1,500 50.00%
1,500 22 3,000 100.00%
2,000 21 5,000 166.67%
2,500 20 7,500 250.00%

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the Issuer is able to Issue
the desired number of Equity Shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., ¥ 22.00 in the above example.
The Issuer, in consultation with the BRLM, may finalise the Issue Price at or below such Cut-Off Price, i.e., at or
below X 22.00. All Bids at or above this Issue Price and cut-off Bids are valid Bids and are considered for allocation
in the respective categories.

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding:

. Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Issue Procedure” on page 320 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus);

. Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid
cum Application Form;

. Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form.

Based on these parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders
from the Depositories.

. Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the
officials appointed by the courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the
securities market, for Bids of all values ensure that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the
Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The exemption for Central or State Governments
and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is subject to the Depositary
Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting sufficient
documentary evidence in support of their claims.
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. Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus and in the Bid cum Application Form;

Bid/Issue Program

Event Indicative Dates
Bid/ Issue Opening Date [e]

Bid/ Issue Closing Date [e]

Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange [e]

Initiation of Allotment / Refunds / Unblocking of Funds from ASBA Accountor UPI  [e]

ID linked bank account

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees [e]
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange [e]

Note:
1. Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, may consider participation by Anchor Investors in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Anchor Investor Bid / Issue Period shall be one Working Day prior to the Bid / Issue Opening
Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
2. Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, consider closing the Bid / Issue Period for QIBs one Working Day
prior to the Bid / Issue Closing Date in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book Running
Lead Manager. Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for
the listing and the commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange are taken within 3
Working Days of the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, the timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension
of the Bid/ Issue Period by our Company, revision of the Price Band or any delays in receiving the final listing
and trading approval from the Stock Exchange. The commencement of trading of the Equity Shares will be
entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange and in accordance with the applicable laws.

Bid/Issue Period (except the Bid/Issue Closing Date)

Submission and revision of Bids Only between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time (“IST”)

Bid/Issue Closing Date*

Submission of Electronic Applications (Online ASBA Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 4.00 p.m. IST

through 3-in-1 accounts) — For RlIIs, other than QIBs and

Non-Institutional Investors

Submission of Electronic Applications (Bank ASBA Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 5.00 p.m. IST

through Online channels like Internet Banking, Mobile

Banking and Syndicate UPI ASBA applications)

Submission of Electronic Applications (Syndicate Non- Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 3.00 p.m. IST

Retail, Non-Individual Applications)

Submission of Physical Applications (Bank ASBA) Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 1.00 p.m. IST

Submission of Physical Applications (Syndicate Non- Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 12.00 p.m. IST

Retail, Non-Individual Applications of QIBs and Non-

Institutional Investors

Modification/ Revision/ Cancellation of Bids

Upward Revision of Bids by QIBs and Non-Institutional ~ Only between 10.00 a.m. on the Bid/Issue Opening

Investors categories” Date and up to 4.00 p.m. IST on Bid/Issue Closing
Date

Upward or downward revision of Bids or cancellation of ~ Only between 10.00 a.m. and up to 5.00 p.m. IST

Bids by Individual Investors on Bid/ Issue Closing Date

* UPI mandate end time was at 5:00 p.m. on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date.
* QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders could neither revise their bids downwards nor cancel/withdraw their Bids.

On the Bid/Issue Closing Date, the Bids shall be uploaded until:

1) 4:00 p.m. IST in case of Bids by QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders, and
(i1) until 5.00 p.m. IST or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchange, in case of Bids by
Individual Investors
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The time for applying for Individual Investors on Bid/ Issue Closing Date maybe extended in consultation with
the BRLM, RTA and NSE taking into account the total number of applications received up to the closure of
timings.

Due to the limitation of time available for uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/ Issue Closing
Date, Bidders are advised to submit their applications one (1) day prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and, in any
case, not later than 12.00 P.M. (IST) on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus is IST. Bidders are cautioned that, in the event a large number of Bid Cum Application Forms are
received on the Bid/Issue Closing Date, as is typically experienced in public Issue, some Bid Cum Application
Forms may not get uploaded due to the lack of sufficient time. Such Bid Cum Application Forms that cannot be
uploaded will not be considered for allocation under this Issue. Applications will be accepted only on Working
Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public holidays). Neither our Company nor the BRLM is liable for
any failure in uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms due to faults in any software/hardware system or
otherwise.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical Bid
Cum Application Form, for a particular Bidder, the details as per the file received from Stock Exchange may be
taken as the final data for the purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic
book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical or electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA
Bidder, the Registrar to the Issue shall ask the relevant SCSBs/ RTAs / DPs / stockbrokers, as the case may be, for
the rectified data.

Underwriter

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue hereby confirm that the Issue shall be 100%
underwritten by the underwriter [®]. The underwriting agreement is dated [®] and pursuant to the terms of the
underwriting agreement, obligations of the underwriter are subject to certain conditions specified therein. The
underwriter has indicated their intention to underwrite following number of specified securities being offered
through this Issue.

Details of the Underwriter No. of Shares Amount % of the total Issue
Underwritten” Underwritten Size Underwritten
[e] [e] [e] [e]
*Includes [*] Equity shares of face value of % 10/- each of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the Market
Maker vide their agreement dated [*] in order to comply with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, the resources of the above-mentioned Underwriter are
sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective underwriting obligations in full.

Details of Market Making Arrangement

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager have entered into Market Making Agreement dated [®] with
the following Market Maker to fulfil the obligations of market making for this Issue:

Name Address Telephone E-mail

Contact Person [o]
SEBI Registration No.

Market Maker Registration No.

[e], registered with [e], will act as the market maker and has agreed to receive or deliver the specified securities in
the market making process for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period
as may be notified in SEBI ICDR Regulations as amended from time to time.

The Market Maker shall fulfil the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, as amended from time to time and the circulars issued by NSE EMERGE and SEBI in this matter
from time to time.

In terms of Regulation 261(1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the market making arrangement through the Market
Maker will be in place for a period of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares and shall be carried
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out in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations and the circulars issued by NSE EMERGE and SEBI regarding
this matter from time to time.

In terms of Regulation 261(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Market Maker or Issuer, in consultation with the
Book Running Lead Manager may enter into agreements with the nominated investors for receiving or delivering
the specified securities in market making, subject to the prior approval of NSE EMERGE.

In terms of regulation 261(3) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, following is a summary of the key details pertaining to
the Market Making arrangement:

The Market Maker "[®]", shall be required to provide a two-way quote for 75% of the time in a day. The same
shall be monitored by the Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the Stock Exchange in
advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker(s).

The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the market maker spread requirements and other
particulars as specified or as per the requirements of NSE EMERGE and SEBI from time to time.

The minimum depth of the quote shall be %1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only). However, the investors with
holdings of value less than %1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) shall be allowed to offer their holding to the
Market Maker in that scrip provided that he sells his entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration
to the effect to the selling broker.

There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his
inventory through market making process, NSE EMERGE may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification.
The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on NSE EMERGE
(in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is [®] Equity Shares; however, the same may be changed by
NSE from time to time).

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the Market Maker would be exempted to
provide quote if the Shares of Market Maker in our company reaches to 25% of Issue Size. Any Equity Shares
allotted to Market Maker under this Issue over and above 25% of Issue Size would not be taken in to consideration
of computing the threshold of 25% of Issue Size. As soon as the Shares of Market Maker in our Company reduces
to 24% of Issue Size, the Market Maker will resume providing 2-way quotes.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the quotes
given by him.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makers may
compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will
happen as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered
price during the pre-open call auction.

The Market maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully
from the market-for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior
approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of
the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving six months’ notice or on
mutually acceptable terms to the BRLM, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market Maker(s)
and execute a fresh arrangement.

In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the
compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the BRLM to arrange for another Market
Maker in replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date
of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of
regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended. Further our Company and the BRLM reserve the right
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to appoint other Market Makers either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market
Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the
relevant laws and regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is
available for inspection at our office from 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.

Price Band and Spreads: The SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20,
2012, has laid down that for Issue size up to X250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be:

i In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session
shall be 5% of the equilibrium price.
il. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading

session shall be 5% of the Issue price.

Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of trading. The
following spread will be applicable on the SME platform:

Sr. Market Price Slab (in ¥) Proposed Spread Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed Spread (in %
No. (in % to sale price) to sale price)

1. Up to 50 9

2. 50to 75 8

3. 75 to 100 6

4. Above 100 5

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Maker:

EMERGE Platform of NSE will have all margins which are applicable on NSE viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-
Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE may impose
other margins as deemed necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Maker:

EMERGE Platform of NSE will monitor the obligations on a real time basis and punitive action will be initiated
for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties / fines may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market
Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a particular security as per the specified guidelines.
These penalties / fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the
Market Maker in case they are not present in the market (offering two-way quotes) for at least 75% of the time.
The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities / trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties / fines
/suspension for any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to time.

The Market Maker shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving 3 (three) months’ notice or on
mutually acceptable terms to the Book Running Lead Manager, who shall then be responsible to appoint a
replacement Market Maker.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side
for market makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Issue size and as follows:

Issue Size Buy quote exemption threshold (Including Re-entry threshold for buy quote
mandatory initial inventory (Including mandatory initial
of 5% of the Issue size) inventory of 5% of the Issue size)
Up to %20 Crore 25% 24%
%20 to ¥50 Crore 20% 19%
%50 to 280 Crore 15% 14%
Above 280 Crore 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be
subject to the applicable provisions of law and / or norms issued by SEBI / NSE from time to time.

85



All the above-mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change
based on changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time.

Withdrawal of the Issue

Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, reserve the right not to proceed with the
Issue at any time before the Bid/ Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraws the Issue any time after the Bid/ Issue Opening Date but before the allotment of Equity
Shares, a public notice within 2 (two) working days of the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, providing reasons for not
proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same
newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisements have appeared, and the Stock Exchange will also be informed
promptly. The BRLM, through the Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts
within 1 (one) working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction.

If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with
an Issue of the Equity Shares, our Company will have to file a fresh Draft Red Herring Prospectus with the stock
exchange where the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is subject to obtaining (i) the final listing and trading approvals of the
Stock Exchange with respect to the Equity Shares issued through the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, which our
Company will apply for only after Allotment; and (ii) the registration of Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus with
RoC.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The share capital of the Company as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is set forth below:

(% in lakhs, expect share data)

Sr  Particulars Aggregate Aggregate value
No nominal value at Issue Price*
A AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each 2,500.00 -

B ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE
CAPITAL BEFORE THE ISSUE
1,25,31,953 Equity Shares of face value of *10/- each 1,253.20 -

C  PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS DRAFT RED
HERRING PROSPECTUS*

Issue of up to 47,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of X10/-

each at an Issue Price of X[®] per Equity Share [e] [e]
Of which?

Reservation for Market Maker:

[e] Equity Shares of face value of ¥10/- each at an Issue Price [e] [e]

of X [e] per Equity Share reserved as Market Maker Portion
Net Issue to Public:

[e] Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each at an Issue Price [e] [®]
of X [e] per Equity Share to the Public

The Net Public Issue consists of:

Allocation of Qualified Institutional Buyers

Not more than [e] Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each

at an Issue Price of X [@] per Equity Share will be available [e] Le]
for allocation to Qualified Institutional Buyers
Allocation to Non-Institutional Investors:
At least [®] Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each at an o] [o]
Issue Price of X [e] per Equity Share will be available for
allocation to Non-Institutional Investors
Allocation to Individual Investors:
At least [®] Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each at an o] [o]
Issue Price of X [e] per Equity Share will be available for
allocation to Retail Individual Investors
D  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP EQUITY
CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE
Up to [@] Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each [@]** [®]
E SECURITIES PREMIUM
Before the Issue (as on the date of this Draft Red Herring i 799 15
Prospectus) )
After the Issue - [o]

*To be updated upon finalization of the Issue Price.

" The Issue has been authorised by our Board of Directors at their meeting held on July 3, 2025 and our Shareholders pursuant to the resolutions passed at their
meeting held on July 4, 2025.

** Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment.

#The allocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Applications received at or above the Issue Price. Under subscription, if
any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any of the other categories or a combination of categories at the discretion of our
Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and Designated Stock Exchange. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines

Classes of Shares
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Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e. Equity Shares of face value of 10 each only. All the issued
Equity Shares are fully paid-up. There are no outstanding convertible securities or any warrant, option or right to
convert a debenture, loan or other instrument which would entitle any person any option to receive Equity Shares,
as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Notes to Capital Structure
1. Change in Authorised Share Capital of our Company:
The initial authorized capital of our Company was %1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore only) consisting

of 10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Equity Shares of face value of 210 (Rupees Ten only) each. Further, the
authorised share capital of our Company has been altered in the manner set forth below:

Date of Change Whether Particulars of change in Authorized Share Capital
AGM/EGM
March 17,2022 EGM Increase of the authorized share capital of our Company from

%1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore only) consisting of
10,00,000 (Ten Lakh) Equity Shares of 10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each to %5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crore only) consisting of
50,00,000 (Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of 210/- (Rupees Ten

only) each.
September 28, - Increase of the authorized share capital of our Company from
2022%* %50,000,000/- (Rupees Five Crore only) consisting of

50,00,000 (Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of X10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each to X7,40,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Crore Forty Lakhs
only) consisting of 74,00,000 (Seventy-four Lakhs) Equity
Shares of 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

June 21, 2025 EGM Increase of the authorized share capital of our Company from
%7,40,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Crore Forty Lakhs only)
consisting of 74,00,000 (Seventy-four Lakhs) Equity Shares of
210/~ (Rupees Ten only) each to 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Five Crores only) consisting of 2,50,00,000 (Two
Crores Fifty Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of X10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each.

* As integral part of the scheme of merger, Protek Korchem Private Limited (“PKPL ") was merged into our Company, accordingly,
pursuant to order of office of Regional Director dated September 28, 2022, the authorised share capital of the PKPL i.e.
2,40,00,000 has been added to our Company and 24,00,000 equity shares of %10 each aggregating to 32,40,00,000 paid up capital

(i.e. 100%) of the PKPL held by our Company stands cancelled and extinguished and in lieu thereof, there have been no allotment
of Equity Shares in our Company.

2. Equity Share Capital History of our Company:
(a) Our existing paid-up Equity Share Capital has been subscribed and allotted in the manner set forth below:
Sr. Date of Nature of No. of Face  Issue Nature of Cumulative  Cumulative
No. Allotment Allotment Equity Value Price Consideration Number of Paid-Up
Shares ® (€3] Equity Share
Allotted Shares Capital
1. On Subscription  10,00,000 10 - Other Than 10,00,000 1,00,00,000
Incorporation  to MOA(M Cash*
2. March 30, Bonus Issue  20,00,000 10 NA NA 30,00,000 3,00,00,000
2022 @
3. March 30, Right 24,25,000 10 13 Other than 54,25,000 5,42,50,000
2023 Issue® Cash
4. March 30, Right Issue 12,50,000 10 16 Other than 66,75,000 6,67,50,000
2024 @ Cash
5. June 27, Private 4,86,116 10 144 Cash 71,61,116 7,16,11,160
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Sr. Date of Nature of No. of Face  Issue Nature of Cumulative = Cumulative
No. Allotment Allotment Equity Value Price Consideration Number of Paid-Up

Shares ® ® Equity Share
Allotted Shares Capital
2025 Placement
5)
6. July 5,2025 Bonus 5,37,0837 10 NA NA 1,25,31,953  12,53,19,530
Issue®
Additional Notes

1. *Pursuant to conversion of partnership firm Neochem Technologies into Company under Part I chapter XXI of the
Companies Act, 2013, vide Certificate of Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies, Central Registration Centre dated
June 6, 2017.The Partners Capital as on date of conversion is Z1,00,00,000/- was converted to 10,00,000 Equity Shares of
face value of Z10/- each fully paid up as the Initial Subscribers to Memorandum of Association.

2. As integral part of the scheme of merger, Protek Korchem Private Limited (“PKPL”) was merged into our Company,
accordingly, pursuant to order of office of Regional Director dated September 28, 2022, the authorised share capital of the
PKPL ie. % 2,40,00,000 has been added to our Company and 24,00,000 equity shares of Z10 each aggregating to
32,40,00,000 paid up capital (i.e. 100%) of the PKPL held by our Company stands cancelled and extinguished and in lieu
thereof, there have been no allotment of Equity Shares in our Company.

Other Notes:

1. Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of our Company — 10,00,000 Equity Shares
of face value of T10/- each issued to the following persons:

Sr. No Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 3,50,000
2. Ramesh Chimanlal Dathia 3,29,970
3. Meena Rameshbhai Dathia 2,00,000
4. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 1,20,000
5. Purnima G Dathia 10
6. Keyur K Shah 10
7. Paresh P Yadav 10
Total 10,00,000
2. Allotment of 20,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each by way of Bonus Issue to the
following persons:
Sr. No  Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Ramesh Chimanlal Dathia 6,59,600
2. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 7,00,000
3. Meena Rameshbhai Dathia 4,00,000
4. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 2,40,000
5. Anil Parekh 200
6. Kapil Parekh 200
Total 20,00,000
3. Allotment of 24,25,000 Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each by way of Rights Issue to the
following persons:
Sr. No. Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 23,07,500
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 1,17,500
Total 24,25,000

4. Allotment of 12,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of J10/- each by way of Rights Issue to the
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following persons:

Sr. No.  Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 12,50,000
Total 12,50,000

5. Allotment of 4,86, 116 Equity Shares of face value of T10/- each by way of Private Placement to the
following persons:

Sr. No.  Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Pritesh Vora 34,723
2. Suresh Amritlal Gandhi 34,723
3. VentureX Fund I 69,445
4. Seema Dilip Vora 69,445
5. Alpa Dhakan 69,445
6. Shailesh Soni 34,723
7. Invicta Continuum Fund I 1,73,612

Total 4,86,116

6. Allotment of 53,70,837 Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each by way of Bonus Issue to the
following persons:

Sr. No Name Number of Equity Shares
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 40,03,575
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 4,63,125
3. Meena Rameshbhai Dathia 4,26,825
4. Dinesh Chopra 1,12,500
5. Swapnil Rameshbhai Dathia HUF 75
6. Dhairya Swapnil Dathia 75
7. Kyra Swapnil Dathia 75
8. Pritesh Vora 26,042
9. Suresh Amritlal Gandhi 26,042
10. VentureX Fund I 52,084
11. Seema Dilip Vora 52,084
12. Alpa Dhakan 52,084
13. Shailesh Soni 26,042
14. Invicta Continuum Fund 1 1,30,209

Total 53,70,837

The securities issued by the Company from inception till the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
have been issued in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, more particularly, Section 62(1)(a) for
the Rights Issue and Section 63 for Bonus issue.

Convertible Warrants

Our Company does not have any outstanding convertible warrants on the date of filing this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Preference Share Capital

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any preference share
capital.
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Our Company has one class of share capital, i.e., Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each only. All Equity

shares issued are fully paid up.

Issue of shares for consideration other than cash or by way of bonus issue or out of revaluation of

reserves

Except as mentioned below, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than
cash or by way of bonus issue or out of revaluation of reserves at any time since incorporation

Date of  Nature of Issue price
allotment allotment per equity
shares ()
March 30, Bonus -
2022 Issue (V
March 30, Right 13
2023 Issue @
March 30, Right 16
2024 Issue &
July 5, Bonus -
2025 Issue @

Number of
equity
shares

allotted
20,00,000

24,25,000
12,50,000

5,37,0837

Face
value (%)

10
10
10

10

Nature of
considera
tion

Other than
Cash
Other than
Cash

Benefits accrued
to our Company,
if any

Capitalization of
reserves
Reduction in debt

Reduction in debt

Capitalization of
reserves

1. Allotment of 20,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each by way of Bonus Issue to the

following persons:

Sr. No Name

Anil Parekh
Kapil Parekh
Total

A A~

Ramesh Chimanlal Dathia
Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati
Meena Rameshbhai Dathia
Hemangini Swapnil Dathia

Number of Equity Shares

6,59,600
7,00,000
4,00,000
2,40,000
200

200
20,00,000

2. Allotment of 24,25,000 Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each by way of Rights Issue to the

following persons:

Sr. No. Name

1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia
Total

Number of Equity Shares

23,07,500
1,17,500
24,25,000

3. Allotment of 12,50,000 Equity Shares of face value of Z10/- each by way of Rights Issue to the

following persons:

Sr. No.  Name
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati
Total

Number of Equity Shares

12,50,000
12,50,000

4. Allotment of 53,70,837 Equity Shares of face value of T10/- each by way of Bonus Issue to the

following person:

Sr. No Name
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia
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Sr. No Name Number of Equity Shares
3. Meena Rameshbhai Dathia 4,26,825
4. Dinesh Chopra 1,12,500
5. Swapnil Rameshbhai Dathia HUF 75
6. Dhairya Swapnil Dathia 75
7. Kyra Swapnil Dathia 75
8. Pritesh Vora 26,042
9. Suresh Amritlal Gandhi 26,042
10. Venturex Fund 1 52,084
11. Seema Dilip Vora 52,084
12. Alpa Dhakan 52,084
13. Shailesh Soni 26,042
14. Invicta Continuum Fund | 1,30,209
Total 53,70,837

Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to schemes of arrangement

Except as disclosed below, our Company has not allotted any Equity Shares in terms of any scheme
approved under Section 391-392 of the Companies Act, 1956 or Section 230-232 of the Companies Act,
2013:

As integral part of the scheme of merger, Protek Korchem Private Limited (“PKPL”) was merged into
our Company, accordingly, pursuant to order of office of Regional Director dated September 28, 2022,
the authorised share capital of the PKPL i.e. ¥ 2,40,00,000 has been added to our Company and
24,00,000 equity shares ( i.e. 100%) of the PKPL held by our Company stands cancelled and
extinguished and in lieu thereof, there have been no allotment of Equity Shares in our Company.

Issue or transfer of Equity Shares under employee stock option schemes

Our Company does not have any employee stock option schemes under which any Equity Shares of the
Company are granted. Accordingly, no Equity Shares have been issued or transferred by our Company
pursuant to the exercise of any employee stock options.

Issue of shares at a price lower than the Issue Price in the last year

The Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLM after the BID/Issue
Closing Date. Our Company has issued Equity Shares during a period of 1 (one) year preceding the date
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus which may be lower than the Issue Price.

Sub- Division/consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not undertaken any sub-division or consolidation of its equity shares in the one year
preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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10. Shareholding Pattern of our Company

The table below presents the equity shareholding pattern of our Company as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Categor Category of Number of Number of Numbe Number of Total Shareholding Number of Voting Rights held in  Number of Shareholding, Number of Number of Number of

y (I) shareholde shareholder fully paid- r of shares number of asa % of each class of securities (IX) shares asa % locked in  Shares pledged Equity Shares
r (IT) s (IIT) up Equity Partly underlyin shares held total number Underlying assuming full shares (XII) or otherwise held in
Shares paid-up g (VID) of shares Outstanding conversion of encumbered dematerialized
held IV) Equity Depositor =(IV)+(V)+ (calculated convertible convertible (XIID) form (XIV)
Shares y Receipts (\%)) as per securities securities
held (4%)) SCRR, (asa
(\%) 1957) (VIII) Number of Voting Rights  Total (including percentage of Number Asa Number Asa
As a % of Class: Class: Total asa Warrants) diluted share (a) % of (a) % of
(A+B+C2) Equity Others % of X) capital) (XI)= total total
Shares (A+B+ (VID+(X) As Equity Equity
C) a % of Shares Shares
(A+B+C2) held held
(b) (b)
(A) Promoters 6 1,14,18,75 - - 1,14,18,750 91.12 1,14,18,750 - 1,14,18,750 91.12 - 91.12 - - - - 1,14,18,750
and 0
Promoter
Group
(B) Public 8 11,13,203 - - 11,13,203 8.88 11,13,203 - 11,13,203  8.88 - 8.88 - - - - 11,13,203
©) Non - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Promoter-
Non Public
(C1) Shares - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
underlying
depository
receipts
(C2) Shares held - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
by
employee
trusts
Total 14 1,25,31,95 - - 1,25,31,953 100.00 1,25,31,953 - 1,25,31,953 100.00 - 100.00 - - - - 1,25,31,953
(A+B+C) 3
Notes

e As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 1 Equity Share holds 1 vote.

. We have only one class of Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each.

. We have entered into tripartite agreement dated June 5, 2025 and June 11, 2025 with NSDL and CDSL respectively.
L]

Our Company will file the shareholding pattern in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, one day prior to the listing of the
Equity shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the Website of NSE/BSE before commencement of trading of such Equity Shares.
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11.

Other details of shareholding of Our Company

As on the date of the filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has 14 Shareholders.

Set forth below are the details of the build — up of our Promoters’ shareholding in our Company since

incorporation:

Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati

Date of
Allotment /
Acquisition
On
Incorporatio
n

March 30,
2022
August 18,
2022
March 30,
2023
March 30,
2024
August 1,
2024
August 1,
2024
August 1,
2024
August 1,
2024

September 1,
2024

September 1,
2024

July 5, 2025
Total

Number of
Equity
Shares

Allotted /

Transferre

d

3,50,000

7,00,000

4,80,000

23,07,500
12,50,000
100
200
100
200

2,00,000

50,000

40,03,575
93,41,675

Hemangini Swapnil Dathia

Date of
Allotment /
Acquisition

On

Number of
Equity
Shares

Allotted /

Transferred

1,20,000

Face
value
per
Equit

Yy
Share

)
10
10

10

10
10
10
10
10
10

10

10

10

Face
value
per
Equity
Share
®

10

Issue / Nature of Nature of
Transfe Consideratio Allotment /
r Price n Transfer
per
Equity
Share
®
10 Other than  Subscription to
Cash MOA
0 NA Bonus
0 NA Transmission of
shares due to
death of
Ramesh Dathia
13 Other than  Rights Issue
Cash
16 Other than  Rights Issue
Cash
10 Cash Transfer from
Anila Parekh
10 Cash Transfer from
Anila Parekh
10 Cash Transfer from
Kapil Parekh
10 Cash Transfer from
Kapil Parekh
10 Cash Transfer from
Meena
Rameshbhai
Dathia
10 Cash Transfer from
Meena
Rameshbhai
Dathia
0 NA Bonus
Issue / Nature of Nature of
Transfer Consideration Allotment /
Price per Transfer
Equity
Share )
10 Other than Cash ~ Subscription

94

% of Pre-
Issue
capital

2.79

5.59

3.83

18.41

9.97
Negligible
Negligible
Negligible
Negligible

1.60

0.40

31.95
74.54

% of

Pre-

Issue
capital

0.96

% of

Post-

Issue
capital

[e]
[e]

% of

Post-

Issue
capital

[e]



Date of Number of Face Issue /
Allotment / Equity value Transfer
Acquisition Shares per Price per

Allotted / Equity Equity
Transferred Share  Share (})
®
Incorporation
March 30, 2,40,000 10 -
2022
August 18, 1,40,000 10 -
2022
March 30, 1,17,500 10 13
2023
July 5, 2025 4,63,125 10 0
Total 10,80,625 - -

Nature of Nature of % of % of
Consideration Allotment / Pre- Post-
Transfer Issue Issue
capital  capital
to MOA
NA Bonus 1.92 [o]
NA Transmission 1.12 [®]
of shares due
to death of
Ramesh
Dathia
Other than Cash ~ Rights Issue 0.94 [e]
NA Bonus 3.70 [o]
- - 8.62 [o]

12. List of Shareholders of the Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the

Company
(a) As on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares held (Face % of Equity Share
No. Value of 10 each) Capital
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 93,41,675 74.54%
2.  Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 10,80,625 8.62%
3. Meenaben Rameshbhai Dathia 9,95,925 7.95%
4, Invicta Continuum Fund 1 3,03,821 2.42%
5. Dinesh Chopra 2,62,500 2.09%
Total 1,19,84,546 95.63%
(b) 10 days prior to date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus i.e., July 23, 2025
Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares held (Face % of Equity Share
No. Value of X10 each) Capital
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 93,41,675 74.54%
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 10,80,625 8.62%
3. Meenaben Rameshbhai Dathia 9,95,925 7.95%
4. Invicta Continuum Fund 1 3,03,821 2.42%
5. Dinesh Chopra 2,62,500 2.09%
Total 1,19,84,546 95.63%
(c) One year prior to date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus i.e. August 1, 2024
Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held % of Equity Share
No. (Face Value of %10 each) Capital
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 50,88,100 76.23%
2. Meenaben Rameshbhai Dathia 8,19,400 12.28%
3. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 6,17,500 9.25%
4. Dinesh Chopra 1,50,000 2.25%
Total 66,75,000 100.00%
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(d) Two years prior to date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus i.e. August 1, 2023

Sr. Name of Shareholder Equity Shares Held % of Equity Share
No. (Face Value of 10 Capital
each)
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 38,37,500 70.75%
2. Meenaben Rameshbhai Dathia a 8,19,400 15.11%
3. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 6,17,500 11.38%
4. Dinesh Chopra 1,50,000 2.77%
Total 54,24,400 100.00%
(e) The aggregate shareholding of the Promoters and Promoter Group:
Sr. Name of the Shareholder Number of Percentage of the Pre- Percentage of the
No. Equity Issue Equity Share  Post-Issue Equity
Shares capital (%) Share capital (%)
Promoters
1. Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati 93,41,675 74.54% [e]
2. Hemangini Swapnil Dathia 10,80,625 8.62% [e]
Promoters Group
1. Meenaben Rameshbhai Dathia 9,95,925 7.95% [e]
2. Dhairya Swapnil Dathia 175 Negligible [o]
3. Kyra Swapnil Dathia 175 Negligible [o]
4. Swapnil Rameshbhai Dathia HUF 175 Negligible [o]
5. Arunkumar Ramanlal Rana - - -
6. Forum Bhavik Rana - - -
7. Nishaben Arunkumar Rana - - -
8. Zarana Nitinbhai Rana - - -
9. Neochem Specialties - - -
10. Altius Biochem Private Limited - - -
11. Dymatic Organochem LLP - - -
Total 1,14,18,750 91.12 [e]
® Except as provided below no Equity Shares were acquired/ purchased/ sold by the Promoters,

Promoter Group, Directors and their immediate relatives within six months immediately preceding
the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. Date of Name of the Category Number of  Percentage of Purchase/Sold
No. Allotment/ Shareholder of Allottees Equity the Pre-Issue
Transfer Shares Equity Share
capital (%)
Promoters
1. July §, Swapnil Promoter 40,03,575 31.95% Bonus Allotment
2025 Rameshbhai
Makati
2. July 5, Hemangini Promoter 4,63,125 3.70% Bonus Allotment
2025 Swapnil Dathia
Promoters Group
1. March 26, Swapnil Promoter 100 Negligible Transfer from Meena
2025 Rameshbhai Group Rameshbhai Dathia
Dathia HUF
2. March 26,  Dhairya Swapnil Promoter 100 Negligible Transfer from Meena
2025 Dathia Group Rameshbhai Dathia
3. March 26, Kyra Swapnil Promoter 100 Negligible Transfer from Meena
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(h)

Sr. Date of Name of the Category Number of  Percentage of Purchase/Sold

No. Allotment/ Shareholder of Allottees Equity the Pre-Issue
Transfer Shares Equity Share
capital (%)
2025 Dathia Group Rameshbhai Dathia
4. March 26, Meena Promoter (100) Negligible Transfer to Swapnil
2025 Rameshbhai Group Rameshbhai HUF
Dathia
5. March 26, Meena Promoter (100) Negligible Transfer to Dhairya
2025 Rameshbhai Group Swapnil Dathia
Dathia
6. March 26, Meena Promoter (100) Negligible Transfer to Kyra Swapnil
2025 Rameshbhai Group Dathia
Dathia
7. July 5, Meena Promoter 4,26,825 3.41% Bonus Allotment
2025 Rameshbhai Group
Dathia
8. July 5, Swapnil Promoter 75 Negligible Bonus Allotment
2025 Rameshbhai Group
Dathia HUF
9. July 5, Dhairya Swapnil Promoter 75 Negligible Bonus Allotment
2025 Dathia Group
10. July 5, Kyra Swapnil Promoter 75 Negligible Bonus Allotment
2025 Dathia Group
Directors
1. July 5, Dinesh Chopra Non- 1,12,500 0.90% Bonus Allotment
2025 Executive
Director

The members of the Promoters’ Group, our directors and the relatives of our directors have not financed the
purchase by any other person of securities of our Company, other than in the normal course of the business
of the financing entity, during the six months immediately preceding the date of filing the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Details of Promoters’ Contribution locked for Three Years

Pursuant to the Regulation 236 and 238 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of 20.00% of the Post-
Issue Equity Share Capital held by our Promoters shall be considered as promoters’ contribution
(“Promoters’ Contribution”) and locked-in for a period of 3 (three) years from the date of Allotment of the
Equity Shares. The lock-in of the Promoters’ Contribution would be created as per applicable law and
procedure and details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the Equity
Shares.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters hold 1,04,22,300 Equity Shares of face
value of X10/- each constituting 83.16% of the pre-issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital of
our Company, which are eligible for the Promoters’ contribution.

Our Promoters, Swapnil Rameshbhai Makati and Hemangini Swapnil Dathia have given written consent to
include 1,04,22,300 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each held by them and subscribed by them as part
of Promoters Contribution constituting [®]% of the post Issue Equity Shares of our Company. Further, they
have agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoters
contribution, for a period of three years from the date of allotment in the Issue.
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13.

14.

Name of Num Date of Nature of Face Value Issue / Percentage Percentage Date up

Promoters  ber of allotment of transaction per Equity Acquisition of the pre- of the Post- to
Equit Equity Share X) price per Issue paid- Issue paid- which
y Shares and Equity up capital up capital Equity
Share when made Share <]) (%) (%) Shares
s fully paid-up are
locke subject
d-in to lock-
in
[e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e]
[e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e] [e]
Total [e] [e] [e] [e]

The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified
minimum lot and from persons defined as “Promoters” under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. All Equity
Shares, which are being locked in are not ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters Contribution as
per Regulation 237 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and are being locked in for 3 (three) years as per
Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations i.e. for a period of three years from the date of allotment
of Equity Shares in this Issue.

Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked in for One Year and Two Years

Pursuant to Regulation 238(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, read with the additional eligibility criteria for
obtaining in-principle approval for listing on the EMERGE Platform of NSE/ SME Platform of BSE, as well
as notification released pertaining to the amendment of SEBI ICDR Regulations vide dated March 3, 2025,
the following lock-in requirements apply:

In addition to the Minimum Promoter’s Contribution, which is locked in for 3 (three) years as mentioned
above, 50% of Promoter holding in excess of Minimum Promoter’s Contribution, comprising [e] Equity
Shares, will be locked in for a period of two (2) years, while the remaining 50% of Promoter’ holding in
excess of Minimum Promoter’s Contribution, comprising [®] Equity Shares, will be locked in as follows:

(1) fifty percent. of promoter’s holding in excess of minimum promoter’s contribution shall be locked
in for a period of two years from the date of allotment in the initial public offer; and
(i1) remaining fifty percent. of promoter holding in excess of minimum promoter’s contribution shall

be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment in the initial public offer.
Details of pre-issue Equity Shares held by persons other than the Promoters locked in for One Year
The Equity Shares held by shareholders other than Promoters shall be locked-in for a period of 1 (one) year
from the date of allotment in the Issue, the same may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity
Shares which are locked-in, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of transferees for the remaining
period (and such transferees shall not be eligible to transfer until the expiry of the lock-in period) and
compliance with the SEBI Takeover Regulations.

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and promoter group are in dematerialized form.

Compliance with regulation 237 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the minimum Promoter’s contribution of
20% as shown above which is subject to lock-in for three years, we confirm the following:
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15.

16.

Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions  Eligibility Status of Equity Shares
Forming part of the Promoters
Contribution
237(1) (a) (i) Specified securities acquired during the preceding Eligible
three years, if they are acquired for consideration other
than cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of
intangible assets is involved in such transaction
237(1) (a) (ii) Specified securities acquired during the preceding Eligible
three years, resulting from a bonus issue by utilization
of revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the
issuer or from bonus issue against Equity Shares which
are ineligible for minimum promoters’ contribution.
237 (1) (b)  Specified securities acquired by the promoters’ and Eligible
alternative investment funds or foreign venture capital
investors or scheduled commercial banks or public
financial institutions or insurance companies registered
with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
of India, or any non-individual public shareholder
holding at least five per cent. of the post-issue capital
or any entity (individual or non-individual) forming
part of promoter group other than the promoter(s)
during the preceding one year at a price lower than the
price at which specified securities are being offered to
the public in the initial public offer.
237 (1) (c) Specified securities allotted to the promoters and Eligible
alternative investment funds during the preceding one
year at a price less than the issue price, against funds
brought in by them during that period, in case of an
issuer formed by conversion of one or more partnership
firms or limited liability partnerships, where the
partners of the erstwhile partnership firms or limited
liability partnerships are the promoters of the issuer
and there is no change in the management.
237 (1) (d) Specified securities pledged with any creditor Eligible

Inscription or recording of non-transferability

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company confirms that certificates of Equity
Shares which are subject to lock in shall contain the inscription “Non-Transferable” and specify the lock-in
period and in case such equity shares are dematerialized, the Company shall ensure that the lock-in is
recorded by the Depository.

Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares

In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the locked in Equity Shares held by the
Promoters, as specified above, can be pledged with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial
institution or a systemically important non-banking finance company or a housing finance company as
collateral security for loan granted by such bank or institution provided that the pledge of Equity Shares is
one of the terms of the sanction of the loan. Provided that securities locked in as Minimum Promoter’s
Contribution may be pledged only if, in addition to fulfilling the above requirements, the loan has been
granted by such bank or institution, for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects of the Issue.
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17.

18.

In case of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, the loan has been granted to the issuer company or its
subsidiary(ies) for the purpose of financing one or more of the Objects of the Issue and pledge of equity
shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

In case of Equity Shares held by Promoters in excess of Minimum Promoters’ contribution, the pledge of
equity shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan. However, lock in shall continue pursuant to the
invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer the equity shares till the lock in
period stipulated has expired.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and subject to provisions of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as applicable:

The Equity Shares held by our Promoters and locked in as per Regulation 238 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
may be transferred to any person of the Promoters’ Group or to a new promoter(s) or persons in control of
our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in for the remaining period with transferee and such transferee
shall not be eligible to transfer them till the lock-in period stipulated has expired.

The equity shares held by persons other than Promoters and locked in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations may be transferred to any other person (including Promoters’ Group) holding the equity
shares which are locked-in along with the equity shares proposed to be transferred, subject to continuation
of lock-in for the remaining period with transferee and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer them
till the lock in period stipulated has expired.

Lock-in of Equity Shares Allotted to Anchor Investors
50% of the Equity Shares Allotted to Anchor Investors in the Anchor Investors Portion shall be locked-in for

a period of 90 days from the date of Allotment and the remaining 50% of the Equity Shares shall be locked-
in for a period of 30 days from the date of Allotment.

Other Confirmations

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Our Company, our Directors and the Book Running Lead Manager have not entered into any buy-back
arrangements for the purchase of Equity Shares being issued through this Draft Red Herring Prospectus from
any person.

We have 14 shareholders as on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. As on the date of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the entire Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of our
Company is fully paid up. Since the entire issue price in respect of the Issue is payable on application, all the
successful applicants will be allotted fully paid-up Equity Shares.

The Book Running Lead Manager and their associates do not hold any Equity Shares of our Company as on
the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The BRLM and its affiliates may engage in the transactions
with and perform services for our Company in the ordinary course of business or may, in the future, engage
in investment banking transactions with our Company for which they may receive customary compensation.
Prior to this Initial Public Offer, our Company has not made any public issue or right issue to public at large.

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of the Issue.

As on the date of filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or
rights to convert debentures, loans or other financial instruments into our Equity Shares.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this Issue.

As on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of
securities issued by our Company.

Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity Shares,
unless otherwise permitted by law.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, none of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters/
Promoter Group are subject to any pledge.

As on the date of filing this Draft Red Herring Prospectus document, our Company does not have any such
plan for altering the capital structure by way of split or consolidation of the denomination of the shares, or
issue of specified securities on a preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of
specified securities or qualified institutions placement. Further, our Company may alter its capital structure
by way of split / consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or issue of equity shares on a preferential
basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of equity shares or qualified institutions placement,
within a period of six months from the date of opening of the present issue to finance an acquisition, merger
or joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement or for any other purpose,
as the Board of Directors may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by the Board of
Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by BSE/NSE,
SEBI and other regulatory authorities from time to time.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.

There are no safety net arrangements for this public Issue.

Our Promoters and Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue.

This Issue is being made through Book Building Process.

In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended, (the SCRR)
the Issue is being made for at least 25% of the post-Issue paid-up Equity Shares Share capital of our
Company. Further, this Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, from time
to time.

No person connected with the Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in the nature of
discount, commission, and allowance, or otherwise, whether in cash, kind, services or otherwise, to any
Applicant.

Our Company shall ensure that any transactions in Equity Shares by our Promoters and the Promoter Group
during the period between the date of filing this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and the date of closure of the

Issue shall be reported to the Stock Exchange within 24 hours of the transactions.

Except as stated below, none of our other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Managerial
Personnel holds Equity Shares in our Company:
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Sr.
No.

Name of Individual Designation
Swapnil Rameshbhai Managing Director
Makati
Hemangini Swapnil Dathia Whole-time Director
Dinesh Chopra Chairman and Non-

Executive Director

Number of
Equity
Shares

93,41,675

10,80,625
2,62,500

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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SECTION 1V - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE

OBJECT OF THE ISSUE

Our Company intends to utilize the proceeds raised through the issue (“Gross Proceeds™), after deducting the issue
related expenses (“Net Proceeds”), for the following objects:

1. Funding the long-term working capital requirements of the Company;
Repayment/prepayment, in full or part, of all or certain outstanding borrowings availed by our Company;
and

3. General Corporate Purposes.

(collectively, referred to “Objects”)

In addition, our Company expects to receive the benefits of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange and
enhancement of our Company’s visibility and brand image and creation of a public market for our Equity Shares in
India.

The main objects clause and objects incidental and ancillary to the Main Objects as set out in the Memorandum of
Association of our Company enables us to undertake the existing activities and the activities for which the funds are
being raised through the Issue.

Issue Proceeds

The details of the Issue Proceeds are set forth in the table below:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds from this Issue”® Up to [e]
Less: Estimated Issue related expenses* [e]
Net Proceeds from the Issue [e]

~ assuming full subscription and allotment.
*to be finalized upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus at the time of filing with the RoC.

Utilisation of Net Proceeds and Schedule of Deployment

The proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds by our Company is set forth in the following table:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars Amount which Proposed schedule for Proposed schedule for
will be financed  deployment of the Net deployment of the Net
from Net Proceeds Proceeds
Proceeds Fiscal 2026 Fiscal 2027
Funding the long-term working 2,390.00 990.00 1,400.00
capital requirements of the Company
Repayment/prepayment, in full or 1,000.00 1,000.00 -
part, of all or certain outstanding
borrowings availed by our Company
General Corporate Purposes* [®] [e] [o]
Total Net proceeds” [o] [o] [o]

*To be finalized upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Prospectus prior to filing with the RoC. The amount utilized for General
Corporate Purposes will not exceed 15% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue or  1,000.00 lakhs, whichever is lower.
N Assuming full subscription and subject to finalization of basis of allotment.
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The funding requirements mentioned above are based on management estimates and current business plans. However,
such fund requirements and deployment of funds have not been appraised by any bank, financial institution or any
other external agency. For further details, see ‘Risk Factors — Our funding requirements and the proposed deployment
of Net Proceeds are based on management estimates and have not appraised by any independent agency and
deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not subject to monitoring by any monitoring agency’ on page 54
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment on account
of various factors, such as our financial and market condition, business and strategy, competition, negotiation with
customers and vendors, production schedule, overall condition of industry in which our products are used, variation
in cost estimates on account of various factors and other external factors, which may not be within the control of our
management. This may entail rescheduling or revising the planned utilisation of net and funding proceeds at the
discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable laws. For details, see ‘Risk Factors - Any
variation in the utilisation of our Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus shall be subject to
certain compliance requirements, including prior Shareholders’ approval.’ on page 54 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

If the estimated utilization of the Net Proceeds in scheduled financial years are not completely met, due to reasons
stated above, the same shall be utilised in the next financial year i.e., FY 2027-28, as may be determined by our
Company, in accordance with applicable laws. Subject to applicable laws, in the event of any increase in the actual
utilization of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth above, such additional funds for a particular activity will be
met by way of means available to us, including from internal accruals and any additional equity and/or debt
arrangements. Our management expects that such alternate means would be available to fund any such shortfall.
Further, if the actual utilisation towards the Object is lower than the proposed deployment, such balance will be used
for future growth opportunities and towards general corporate purposes to the extent that the total amount to be utilised
towards general corporate purposes will not exceed 15% of the Gross Proceeds from the Issue or X 1,000.00 lakhs,
whichever is lower, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Means of Finance

The fund requirements set out above is proposed to be entirely funded from the Net Proceeds, working capital facilities
from bank and internal accruals. Accordingly, we confirm that there are no requirements to make firm arrangements
of finance under Regulation 230(1)(e) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In case of shortfall in the Net Proceeds or any
increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the Objects, our Company may explore a range of options
including utilizing our internal accruals, any additional equity and/or debt arrangements.

Details of the Objects of this Issue
1. Funding the long-term working capital requirements of the Company

Our business and industry in which we operate is working capital intensive. We fund a majority of our
working capital requirements in the ordinary course of business from the working capital facilities from
banks and financial institutions and through internal accruals. The requirement is proportionate and variable
in nature with the growth of our Company. Our Company requires additional working capital for funding its
present and future growth requirements. As on March 31,2025, total indebtedness of our Company was
3,562.44 lakhs. For details, please see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

In light of existing and prospective growth opportunities, including expanding our geographies reach,
diversification across end-use application industries and optimizing our production capacities, we intend to
utilise ¥990.00 lakhs and 1,400.00 lakhs from Net Proceeds to fund working capital requirements of our
Company in fiscal 2026 and fiscal 2027, respectively. For details, please see “Our Business — Our
Strategies” on page 171 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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Basis of estimation of working capital requirement

The details of our Company’s working capital requirements as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2024 and March
31,2025 and their source of funding, derived on the basis of audited financial statements, on standalone basis,
are as set forth below:

(% in lakhs)
Sr. Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2025
No. (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
I Current Assets
1 Inventories:
i. Inventories — Raw Materials 1,183.15 1,473.06 1,988.79
ii. Inventories — Work-in-process 25.00 25.00 25.00
iii. Inventories — Finished Goods 22991 264.20 297.97
iv. Inventories — Packing & stores 55.01 58.72 63.78
2 Trade receivables 1,41613 1,67379 2,52769
Short-term loans & advances 240.90 180.85 307.79
4 Other current assets 16.81 48.03 39.51
Total (A) 3,166.92 3,723.65 5,250.54
I Current Liabilities
1 Trade Payables 1,340.66 1,409.95 1,629.61
2 Short term provisions 49.62 90.15 278.40
Other Current Liabilities (including
3 current maturity of long-term debt) 396.20 340.18 446.49
Total (B) 1,786.49 1,840.28 2,354.50
III  Net working capital gap (A-B) 1,380.43 1,883.38 2,896.04
v Funding pattern
a) Short Term Borrowings 1,134.53 1,388.70 1,988.51
b)  Internal accruals / Networth” 245.90 494.67 907.53
Total 1,380.43 1,883.38 2,896.04

*Internal Accruals = Total working capital requirement less short-term borrowings.

Assumptions for our estimated working capital requirements

The table below contains details of the holding levels (days) considered for Fiscal 2023, 2024 and 2025:

> Particulars Basis Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2024  Fiscal 2025
1 Trade Receivables Days 107 100 116

2 Inventories of Raw Materials Days 144 138 131

3 Inventories of work in progress Materials  Days 2 2 1

4 Inventories of Finished Goods Days 23 20 17
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o Lemttar b Basis Fiscal 2023  Fiscal 2024  Fiscal 2025

No
5 Inventories of Packing material & stores Days 7 6 4
6 Trade Payables Days 150 124 99

Based on our existing working capital requirements and business plan, our Board of Directors, pursuant to
its resolution dated July 30, 2025, has approved the projected working capital requirements for Fiscal 2026
and 2027, details of which are as set forth below:

Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2026 March 31, 2027
(Projected) (Projected)

I Current Assets

1 Inventories:

i. Inventories — Raw Materials 2,392.86 3,300.44
ii. Inventories — Work-in-process 76.72 104.14
iii. Inventories — Finished Goods 508.63 692.75
iv. Inventories — Packing & stores 108.77 150.02
2 Trade receivables 3,316.71 4,312.67

Short-term loans & advances 453.98 629.65
4 Other current assets 56.82 78.81
Total (A) 6,914.48 9,268.49
I Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 2,641.78 3,410.02
2 Short term provisions 89.76 140.94
3 Other ’Current Liabilities (including current 300.47 300.47
maturity of long-term debt)
Total (B) 3,032.01 3,851.43
I Net working capital Gap [A-B] 3,882.47 5,417.06

v Funding pattern

a) Short Term Borrowings 920.00 1,800.00
b) Internal accruals / Networth” 1,972.47 1,227.06
0 Amount proposed to be utilized from Net 990.00 2,390.00
Proceeds
Total 3,882.47 5,417.06

Assumptions for our estimated working capital requirements

The table below contains details of the estimated holding levels (days) for financial year Fiscal 2026 and
2027:

Sr Particulars Basis Fiscal 2026 Fiscal
No 2027
1 Trade Receivables Days 100 94

106



Sr Particulars Basis Fiscal 2026 Fiscal
No 2027
2 Inventories - Raw Materials Days 110 110

3 Inventories - Work in process Days 3 3
4 Inventories - Finished Goods Days 20 20
5 Inventories - Packing material & stores Days 5 5
6 Trade Payables Days 116 105

Justification for holding period levels:

Inventories

Trade
Receivables

We are a specialty performance chemical company engaged in the business of
manufacturing specialty performance chemicals with a diverse portfolio of over 350
customized formulations across four primary product segments such as (i) Polymers, (ii)
Surfactants, (iii) Silicones, and (iv) Esters & bio-based sustainable solutions. In order to
efficiently operate our manufacturing process and fulfill delivery schedules, we need to
maintain efficient inventory levels. The average inventory holding level of raw materials
in fiscal 2023, 2024 and 2025 were 144, 138 and 131 days, respectively whereas average
inventory holding level of work-in-process in fiscal 2023, 2024 and 2025 were 2, 2, and
1 days, respectively, average inventory holding level of finished goods in fiscal 2023,
2024 and 2025 were 23, 20 and 17 days, respectively, and average inventory holding level
of packing material & stores in fiscal 2023, 2024 and 2025 were 7, 6 and 4 days,
respectively.

The Company is operating at a capacity utilization level of 40.68% as on March 31,2025
and intends to increase its capacity utilization to improve operational efficiency and
support anticipated growth in demand. Considering the existing and prospective growth
opportunities, overall economic conditions and various internal and external factors
involved in our business operations, the raw material holding level is expected to be at
110 days, work-in process holding level is expected at 3 days, finished goods holding level
is expected to be at 20 days, and packing material & stores holding level is expected to be
at 5 days for fiscal 2026 and fiscal 2027.

The holding period for raw material is estimated at 110 days for Fiscal 2026 and Fiscal
2027. The projected reduction reflects improved procurement planning and strategic
sourcing arrangements that enable the Company to optimise inventory levels while
maintaining production continuity.

The holding period for finished goods is estimated at 20 days for Fiscal 2026 and Fiscal
2027. These levels are consistent with expected sales volumes, lead times to dispatch and
logistics planning.

The holding period for work-in-process inventory is estimated at 3 days each for Fiscal
2026 and 2027 which is higher than past levels of 1 to 2 days, due to the anticipated
increase in production volumes. The holding period for packing material and stores is
estimated at 5 days for Fiscal 2026 and 2027 which are consistent with operational
requirements and historical trends.

As a part of our growth strategy, we intend to expand our presence across end-user
industries, diversify our customer base and geographical reach while continuing to place
strong emphasis on working capital discipline and delivering quality products. We intend
to do so by continuing to expand our product portfolio, optimizing utilisation of the
installed capacity at our existing facilities, leveraging our marketing skills and
relationships with existing customers and effective working capital management.
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The Company intends to focus on increasing sales to customers with optimizing the
payment cycles, alongside continuous monitoring and management of outstanding
receivables. These measures are expected to result in a more efficient receivables cycle
and improved working capital efficiency.

The debtors’ realization for Fiscal 2023, 2024 and 2025 were 107, 100 and 116 days,
respectively. Based on our expected increase in business activities, we believe average
collection period of 100 days and 94 days for fiscal 2026 and fiscal 2027, respectively
seems realistic and achievable, given the current business developments.

Trade During Fiscal 2023, 2024 and 2025, our trades payables days were 150, 124 and 99 days

Payables respectively.
The primary raw materials used in our manufacturing process are sourced from crude
derivatives, plant derivatives, silica derivatives and other commodity fine chemicals. The
average holding period for trade payables is projected at 116 days and 105 days for the
Fiscal 2026 and Fiscal 2027, respectively. The Company anticipates an expansion in
business operations of the Company in the forthcoming financial years supported by the
fresh infusion of funds from the proceeds of the Issue. To support this expansion in
business operation, the Company expects an increase in procurement of raw materials.

The Company has in the past, been constrained in availing early payment or bulk purchase
discounts due to limited availability of working capital. The inability to make advance
payments or settle dues within shortened timelines restricted ability of the Company to
benefit from favourable supplier incentives. With improved access to working capital, the
Company also expects to negotiate cash discount on account of early payment to creditors
where suppliers offer incentives on bulk purchases or advance payment. This strategy is
expected to reduce procurement cost and improve supplier relationships.

Hence, owing to above mentioned factor, the Company envisages a reduction in trades
payable days. For fiscal 2026 and Fiscal 2027, we expect the creditors’ payment period to
be 116 days and 105 days, respectively.

For further details on our working capital facilities, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

Repayment/prepayment, in full or part, of all or certain outstanding borrowings availed by our
Company

Our Company has entered into various financing arrangements with banks and financial institutions. The
loan facilities entered into by our Company include borrowings in the form of, inter alia, term loans and
working capital facilities. For further details, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus .

Our Company proposes to utilize 31,000.00 lakhs from the Net Proceeds towards repayment/prepayment, in
part or full of all or a portion of certain borrowings availed by our Company, the details of which are listed
out in the table below. Pursuant to the terms of the borrowing arrangements, commitment or foreclosure
charges as prescribed by the lenders may be imposed on us. Such commitment or foreclosure charges, as
applicable, along with interest, will also be funded out of Net Proceeds. In the event the Net Proceeds are
insufficient for payment of commitment or foreclosure charges, or interest, as applicable, such payment shall
be made from the internal accruals of our Company.

Given the nature of the borrowings and the terms of repayment, the aggregate outstanding amounts under

the borrowings may vary from time to time and our Company may in accordance with the relevant repayment
schedule, pre-pay / repay or refinance some of its existing borrowings prior to Allotment. Further, the
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amounts outstanding under the borrowings as well as the sanctioned limits are dependent on several factors
and may vary with the business cycle of our Company with multiple intermediate repayments, drawdowns
and enhancement of sanctioned limits. Further, our Company may also avail additional borrowings after the
date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and/or draw down further funds under existing loans from time to
time. In light of the above, if at the time of filing this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any of the below
mentioned loans are repaid in part or full or refinanced or if any additional credit facilities are availed or
drawn down and if the terms of new loans are more onerous than the older loans or if the limits under the
borrowings are increased, then the table below shall be suitably revised to reflect the revised amounts or
loans as the case may be which have been availed by our Company.

The repayment of outstanding borrowings of the Company has been planned to optimize the financial
position of the Company. The Company intends to reduce overall financial leverage and lower its interest
expenses by repaying the outstanding borrowings. Such pre-payment / repayment will also help reduce the
existing borrowings and debt servicing costs of our Company and assist the Company in maintaining a
favourable debt-equity ratio and enable utilisation of internal accruals for further investment in business
growth and expansion. In addition, the Company believes that this would also improve its ability to raise
further resources in the future to fund potential business development opportunities. We believe that the
repayment of a portion of certain outstanding borrowings availed by our Company will help reduce our
outstanding indebtedness and finance costs, assist us in maintaining a favorable debt to equity ratio and
enable utilisation of our internal accruals for further investment in business growth and expansion.

The borrowings proposed to be repaid will be based on various factors, including (i) cost of the borrowing,
including applicable interest rates, (ii) any conditions attached to the borrowings restricting our ability to
repay the borrowings and time taken to fulfil, or obtain waivers for fulfilment of such conditions, (iii) terms
and conditions of such consents and waivers, (iv) levy of any prepayment penalties and the quantum thereof,
(v) provisions of any laws, rules and regulations governing such borrowings, and (vi) other commercial
considerations including, among others, the amount of the loan outstanding and the remaining tenure of the
loan. Our Company may utilize Net Proceeds to repay the facilities disclosed below in accordance with
commercial considerations, including amounts outstanding at the time of repayment. For details, see
“Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

In accordance with Clause 9(A)(2)(b) of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company
has obtained the requisite Statutory Auditor’s report dated August 01, 2025 issued in accordance with
Standard on Related Services (SRS) 4400, “Engagements to Perform Agreed-upon Procedures regarding
Financial Information”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, certifying the utilisation
of loans for the purpose availed.

The details of the outstanding loans of our Company on a standalone basis proposed for repayment or
prepayment, in full or in part from the Net Proceeds are set forth below:

[Remainder of the page has been intentionally left blank]
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Name
of the
Lender

Axis
Finance
Limited

Nature of Date of Sanction Letter Amount Outstanding  Interest
Borrowing sanctioned Amount as Rate
s as on on March p-a./
March 31, 31, 2025
2025 (R in lakhs)
(R in lakhs)
Term Loan August 29, 1,300.00 1,148.85 10.95%
2023

Note:
As certified by M/s. Patel Mehta & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor of the Company, vide their certificate dated August 01, 2025.

1.
2.

For details, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 277 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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Purpose for which the
loan was sanctioned

Balance transfer of
loans running from Yes
Bank, refinance of
capex incurred by
company, payment to
creditors &  other
general business
purpose.

Prepayment Charges

1-Partial Prepayment Charges

a) NIL fees for Part Prepayment up to 25% of the
Principal Outstanding(in a financial year and can
be made multiple times in a financial year)

- b) For part prepayments more than 25% of the
principal outstanding (in the same financial year,
2% + Applicable Taxes of the amount being
prepaid would be chargeable)

2-Pre-Payment Charges for full Loan closure of
loan amount (Foreclosure). Nil fees on Floating
Rate Term Loans granted to Individuals where
end use of funds is not related to Business or
Professional Purposes.

For other Category of Loans: - 2% + Applicable
Taxes of principal outstanding for loan tenure
between 25 months to 36 months.

- 1% + Applicable Taxes of principal outstanding
post 36 months loan tenure.

Tenor/Re
payment
Schedule

96 months



General Corporate Purposes

In terms of Regulation 230(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended, the extent of the Issue
Proceeds proposed to be used for general corporate purposes must not exceed 15% of the Gross Proceeds
from the Issue or X 1,000.00 lakhs, whichever is lower. Our Board will have flexibility in applying the
balance amount towards part or full repayment/prepayment of outstanding borrowings, meeting our
additional working capital requirements, capital expenditure, funding our growth opportunities,
including strategic initiatives, meeting expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business including
salaries and wages, administration expenses, insurance related expenses, meeting of exigencies which
our Company may face in course of business and any other purpose as may be approved by the Board
or a duly appointed committee from time to time, subject to compliance with applicable law, including
the necessary provisions of the Companies Act.

Our management, in response to the competitive and dynamic nature of our industry and business, will
have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for general corporate purposes under the overall guidance and
policies of our Board. The quantum of utilisation of funds towards any of the purposes will be determined
by the Board or a duly appointed committee, based on the amount actually available under this head and
the business requirements of our Company, from time to time, subject to compliance with applicable
law, including the necessary provisions of the Companies Act.

Estimated Issue related expenses

The total expense of this Issue is estimated to be X [e] lakhs. The break-up of the Issue expenses is as
follows:

Particulars Amount* % of Estimated % of
(X in lakhs) Issue related Estimated
expenses Issue size
Fees payable to BRLM and commission [o] [o] [®]

(including selling commission, brokerage and

underwriting commission) *

Commission/processing fee for SCSBs, [®] [®] [®]
Sponsor Bank and Bankers to the Issue and

bidding/uploading charges for Members of

the Syndicate, Registered Brokers, RTAs and

CDPs

Fees payable to the Registrar to the Issue [e] [e] [e]
Others

(i) Listing fees, SEBI filing fees, NSE [e] [®] [e]
processing fees and other regulatory

expenses;

(i) Printing and stationery expenses; [e] [e] [e]
(iii) Advertising and marketing expenses; [e] [e] [e]
(iv) Fees payable to legal counsel; [o] [e] [e]
(vi) Miscellaneous (including brokerage and [e] [e] [®]
selling commission and bidding charges of

members of the syndicate, marketing and

selling expenses, fees payable to auditors,

market maker, consultants, market research

firms and other professional agencies, stamp

duty charges and other miscellaneous

expenses)

Total estimated Issue expenses* [o] [o] [e]

* Amounts will be finalised and incorporated in the Prospectus on determination of Issue Price
A The details of the fees and commissions payable to Designated Intermediaries will be updated at the time of filing of Prospectus
with RoC.
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Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan from any bank or financial institution as on the date of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds.

Interim use of Net Proceeds

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to temporarily deposit the funds in
the scheduled commercial banks included in the second schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as may be
approved by our Board of Directors. In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company
confirms that pending utilization of the Net Proceeds towards the stated objects of the Issue, our Company shall
not use/deploy the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any other listed company or
for any investment in the equity markets.

Monitoring of utilization of funds

Since the Issue is for an amount less than X 5,000 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for the purposes of the Issue. Our Audit Committee
will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. We will disclose details of the utilization of the Net
Proceeds of the Issue, including interim use, under a separate head in our financial statements specifying the
purpose for which such proceeds have been utilized or otherwise disclosed as per the disclosure requirements.

Pursuant to the SEBI LODR Regulations, our Company will disclose to the Audit Committee the uses and
applications of the Net Proceeds. Our Company will prepare a statement of funds utilised for purposes other than
those stated in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee, as required under
applicable law. Such disclosure shall be made only until such time that all the Net Proceeds have been utilised in
full. The statement shall be certified by the statutory auditor of our Company. Furthermore, in accordance with
the Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, our Company will furnish to the Stock Exchange on a half
yearly basis, a statement indicating (i) deviations, if any, in the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue from the
objects of the Issue as stated above; and (ii) details of category wise variations in the utilisation of the proceeds
from the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated above.

Variation in Objects

In compliance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company will not vary the Objects of the Issue
unless our Company is authorized to do so by way of a special resolution of its Shareholders and such variation
will be in accordance with applicable laws, including the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution shall specify
the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules. The notice shall
simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English, one in Hindi and one in Gujarati, being the
regional language of Ahmedabad, where our Registered Office is situated, in accordance with the Companies Act,
2013 and applicable rules. Our Promoters or controlling shareholders must provide an exit opportunity to such
Shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to vary the Objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be
presc